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BEFORE THE 
POSTAL RATE COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20268-0001 

POSTAL. RATE AND FEE CHANGES, 1997 Docket No. R97-I 

REQUEST OF THE UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE 
FOR A RECOMMENDED DECISION ON CHANGES IN 

RATES OF POSTAGE AND FEES FOR POSTAL SERVICES 

Pursuant to chapter 36 of title 39, United States Code, the United States Postal 

Service has determined that changes in rates of postage and fees for postal services would 

be in the public interest and in accordance with the policies of that title. Accordingly, the 

Postal Service requests the Postal Rate Commission to make and submit to’ the Governors 

of the Postal Service a recommended decision on changes in rates of postage and fees for 

postal services. 

In accordancl: with the Commission’s rules of practice and procediure, the Postal 

Service submits herewith information and data which explain the nature and scope, 

significance, and impact of the proposed rate and fee changes. 

Without rate and fee changes, the Postal Service would incur a substantial revenue 

deficiency in the proposed test year, in contravention of 39 U.S.C. 5 3621. 



The rate and fee changes shown on the series of schedules in .,4ttachment A are 
‘\ 

suggested to the Commission as a basis for providing sufticient revenues’ in the test year to 

cover the prciected revenue deficiency. “After rates” financial results are shown in the 

following tab le. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS WITH 
PROPOSED RATE Ah’D FEE CHANGES 

TEST YEAR 1998 
($000) 

Present Rates Test Year -- 

Total Revenues $59,403,483 

Less: Total Revenue Requirement S61,645,600 

Total Revenue Deficiency ($2,442,117) 

msed Rates 

Total Increase in Revenue S2,24.2,407 

Total Decrease in Costs (Revenue Requirement) ($241,659) 

Decrease in Revenue Deficiency $2,484,066 

Total Revenue Surplus $41,949 

In acc’ordance with the Commission’s rules of practice and procedure, the Postal 

Service with this Request files the prepared direct evidence on which it proposes to rely, 

which consists of testimony and exhibits of 40 witnesses (42 testimonies:). The testimony 

and exhibits have been marked for identification as shown on Attachment F. Following the 

practice established in prior proceedings, each witness’s proposed testimony has been given 

a number, which is shown on the prepared evidence in the upper right hand corner of the 

--.. 

‘Together with income r?om other sources not within the Commission’s jurisdiction under 



cover page Further data submitted for informational purposes or in reisponse to sections of 

the rules ofpractice are included in other attachments 

Included in this filing is a Request for a Recommended Decision on certain changes 

in the Domestic Mail Classification Schedule. As a consequence, the (data and information 

submitted herewith respond to Rule 64 of the Commission’s rules of practice and 

WHEREFORE, the Postal Service Requests that the Commission recommend a 

decision in accordance with this Request. 

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE 

By: 

Daniel J. Foucheaux, Jr. 
Chief Counsel 

Anthony F. Alverno 
Richard T. Cooper 
Susan M. Duchek 
Kenneth N. Hollies 
Eric P. Koetting 
Scott L. Reiter 
Anne B. Reynolds 
David H. Rubin 
Michael T. Tidwell 

Its Attorneys 

475 L’Enfant P&a West, S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20260-l 137 

title 39, Un.ited States Code, 
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REQUESTED CHANGES IN THE DOMESTIC MAIL CLASSIFICATION 
SCHEDULE 

In this Request, the Postal Service asks the Commission to recommend certain 

changes in the Domestic Mail Classification Schedule (DMCS). The changes requested 

herein alter the DMCS as amended from time-to-time, most recently by the Decision of the 

Governors on the Recommended Decision of the Postal Rate Commission on Special 

Services Fees and Classifications, Docket No. MC96-3, (Special Services Decision) as 

implemented by Resolution 97-7 of the Board of Governors, and the Decision of the 

Governors on the Kecommended Decision of the Postal Rate Commission on the 

.C Experimental Nonletter-Size Business Reply Mail Categories and Fees, Docket No. MC97- 

1 (BRM Deci:sion)l, as implemented by Resolution 97-8 of the Board of Governors. The 

current DMC!j (which is published in part at 39 CFR Part 3001, subpati C, appendix A, in 

part as Attachment A to the Special Services Decision (62 Fed. Reg. 26,099), in part as 

Attachment A to the BRM Decision (62 Fed. Reg. 25,756), and in part as Attachment B to 

the Decision of the Governors of the United States Postal Service on the Recommended 

Decision of the Postal Rate Commission on Nonprofit Standard Mail, Nonprofit Enhanced 

Carrier Route Standard Mail, Nonprofit Periodicals, and Within Couni$ Periodicals, Docket 

No. MC96-2 (61 Fed. Reg. 42,464)), is incorporated by reference in thds Request. 

Excqpt as otherwise noted, proposed additions to text of the classification 

r. schedules are underlined, and proposed deletions are stricken. Classification schedules for 
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special services, which are currently numbered as schedules SS-l-6, !3S-8-16: and SS- 

18-20, are renuunbered as indicated in the table below. Existing section numbers for the 

special service schedules do not appear as overstricken text in this attachment; however, 

edits to the remaining text of the renumbered sections appear as they are printed in the 

existing special service schedules, and edits to the remaining text are Istricken or 

underlined, as appropriate. 

SPECIAL SERVICES 
DMCS CROSS-REFERENCE TABLE 

EXISTING TO PROPOSED 

PROPOSED 
DMCS SECTION 

911 
931 
921 
941 
941 
944 
971 
943 
921 
912 
933 
951 
942 
946 
945 
952 
961 
962 
932 1 
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The changes in the DMCS requested by the Postal Semite are as follows: 
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AMEND THE DOMESTIC MAIL CLASSIFICATION 
SCHEDULE AS FOLLOWS: 

110 DEFINITION 

Expedited Mail is mail matter entered as Express Mail WM w&the 
provisions of this Schedule. Any matter eligible for mailing may, at the option of the 
mailer, be mailed as Express Mail. Insurance is either included in Express Mail 
postage or is available for an additional charge, depending on the value and nature of 
the item sent by Express Mail. 

120 

121 

122 

DESCRJPTION OF SERVICES 

Same T)ay Airport Service 

Same Day Airport service is available between designated airport mail 
facilities. 

Custom Designed Service 

EXPEDITED MAIL 
CLASSIFICATION SCHEDULE 

122.1 General. Custom Designed service is available between designated postal 
facilities or other designated locations for mailable matter tendered ti 
Wmun a service agreement between the Postal Service and the 
mailer. Service under a service agreement shall be offered in a manner 
consistent. with 39 U.S.C. 403(c). 

122.2 Service Agreement. A service agreement shall set forth the following: 

a. The scheduled place for each shipment tendered for service to each specific 
destin,ation; 

-_ 
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,- 

122.3 Pickup and Delivery. Pickup at the mailer’s premises, and/or delivery at an 
address other than the destination postal facility is provided under terms and 
conditions as pras&&d specified by the Postal Service. 

122.4 Commencement of Service Agreement. Service provided pursuant to a 
service agreement shall commence not more than 10 days after the signed 
service agreement is tendered to the Postal Service. 

122.5 Ter,mination of Service Agreement 

122.51 Termination by Postal Service. Express Mail service provided pursuant to a 
service agreement may be terminated by the Postal Service, upon 10 days prior 
written notice to the mailer if: 

a. !service cannot be provided for reasons beyond the control of the Postal 
!Service or because of changes in Postal Service facilities or operations, or 

b. The mailer fails to adhere to the terms of the service agreement or this 
schedule. 

122.52 Termination by Mailers. The mailer may terminate a service agreement, for 
any reason, by notice to the Postal Service. 

123 Next Day Service and Second Day Service 

123.1 Availability of Services. Next Day and Second Day Services are available at 
designated retail postal facilities to designated destination facilities or locations 
for items tendered by the time or times press&&snecified by the Postal 
Service. Next Day Service is available for overnight delivery. Second Day 
Service is available for second day delivery. 

b. Scheduled place for claim, or delivery, at destination for each scheduled 
shipment; 

c. Scheduled time of day for tender at origin and for claim. or delivery at 
destination. 
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123.2 Pickup Service. Pickup service is available for Next Day and Second Day 
Services under terms and conditions as press&& suecitiedby the Postal 
Service. Service shall be offered in a manner consistent with 39 U.S.C. 403(c). 

130 PHYSICAL LIMITATIONS 

Express Mail may not exceed 70 pounds or 108 inches in length and girth 
combined. 

140 POSTAGE AND PREPARATION 

Except as provided in Rate Schedules 121, 122 and 123, postage on Express 
Mail is charged on each piece. For shipments tendered in Express Mail 
pouches under a service agreement, each pouch is a piece. 

150 DEPtDSIT AND DELIVERY 

151 Deposit 

Express Mail must be deposited at places designated by the IPostal Service. 

I, 52 Receipt 

A receipt showing the time and date of mailing will be provided to the mailer 
upon acceptance of Express Mail by the Postal Service. Thi,s receipt serves as 
evidence of mailing. 

153 Service 

Express Mail service provides a high speed, high reliability service. Same Day 
Airport Express Mail will be dispatched on the next available transportation to 
the destination airport mail facility. Custom Designed Express Mail will be 
available for claim or delivery as specified in the service agreement. 

154 Forwarding and Return 

When Express Mail is returned, or forwarded, as prese&& ispecified by the 

Postal Service, there will be no additional charge. 
7 
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160 ANCILLARY SERVICES 

The following services may be obtained in conjunction with mail sent under this 
classification schedule upon payment of applicable fees: 

Service Schedule 

a. Address correction gll :is& 
b. Return receipts p-lJ:H 
C. COD 944 s-6 

d. Express Mail Insurance y4J ss4 

170 RATES AND FEES 

The rates for Express Mail are set forth in the following rate :schedules: 

Schedule 

a. Same Day Airport 
b. Cus,tom Designed 
c. Next Day Post Office-to-Post Office 
d. Second Day Post Office-to-Post Office 
e. Next Day Post Office-to-Addressee 
f. Second Day Post Office-to-Addressee 

121 
lZi2 
123 
123 
123 

123 

180 REFUNDS 

18 1 Procedure 

Claims for refunds of postage must be tiled within the period of time and under 
terms and conditions pmse&ed snecified by the Postal Service. 

182 Availatbility 

182.1 Same Day Airport. The Postal Service will refund the postage for Same Day 

?-- Airport Express Mail not available for claim by the time specified, unless the delay 
is caused b;y: 
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a. Shikes or work stoppage; 

b. Delay or cancellation of flights; or 

C. Governmental action beyond the conuol of Postal Service or air carriers. 

182.2 Custom Designed. Except where a service agreement provides for claim, or 
delivery, of Custom Designed Express Mail more than 24 hours after scheduled 
tender at point of origin, the Postal Service will refund postage for such mail not 
available for claim, or not delivered, within 24 hours of mailing, unless the item was 
delayed by strike or work stoppage. 

182.3 Next Day. Unless the item was delayed by strike or work stoppage, the Postal 
Service will refund postage for Next Day Express Mail not available for claim or not 
delivered: 

a. By 10:00 a.m., or earlier time(s) press&& suecified by the Postal Service, of 
the next delivery day in the case of Post Office-to-Post O&e service; 

b. By 3:00 p.m., or earlier time(s) pfasa&& snecified by the Postal Service, of 
the ne.xt delivery day in the case of Post Office-to-Addressee service. 

182.4 Second Day.. Unless the item was delayed by strike or work stoppage, the Postal 
Service will refund postage for Second Day Express Mail not available for claim or 
not delivmered:: 

,a. B:y 10100 a.m., or earlier time(s) pras&b& specified by the Postal Service, of 
the second delivery day in the case of Post Office-to-Post Office service; 

b. B:y 3:00 p.m., or earlier time(s) press&& specified by the Postal Service, of 
the second delivery day in the case of Post Office-to-Addressee service. 

190 Hazardous Medical Materials And Other Mailable Hazardous Materials 
ahames. Exnress Mail containing hazardous medical materials or other 
&ble hazardous materials. as defined by the Postal Service. must meet the 
-ration reauirements of the Postal Service and is subiect to one or both 
surcharaes. 
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210 DEFINITION 

Any matter eligible for mailing may, at the option of the mailer, be mailed as 
First-Class Mail. The following must be mailed as First-Class Mail, unless 
mailed as Express Mail or exempt under title 39, United IStates Code, or except 
as authorized under sections 344.12,344.23 and 443: 

a. Mail sealed against postal inspection as set forth in section 5000; 

b. Matter wholly or partially in handwriting or typewriting except as 
specifically permitted by sections 3 12,3 13,323,344.22, and 446; 

c. Matter having the character of actual and personal correspondence except as 
specifically permitted by sections 3 12,3 13,323,344.22, and 446; and 

d. Bills and statements of account. 

220 

221 

221.1 

221.2 

221.21 

DESCRIPTION OF SUBCLASSES 

Letters and Sealed Parcels Subclass 

G’eneral. The Letters and Sealed Parcels subclass consists of First-Class Mail 
weighing 11 ounces or less that is not mailed under section 222 or 223. 

Regular Rate Categories. The regular rate categories cclnsist of Letters and 
Sealed Parcels subclass mail not mailed under section 2211.3. 

&kqhPhe Single-Piece Rate Category. The single:piece rate category 
applies to regular rate Letters and Sealed Parcels subclass mail not mailed 
under section 221.22:, 221.23, or 221.24. 

FIRST-CLASS MAIL 
CLASSIFICATION SCHEDULE 
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221.22 Presort Rate Category. The Presort rate category applies to Letters and 
Se,aled Parcels subclass mail that: 

a. Is prepared in a mailing of at least 500 pieces; 

b. Is presorted, marked, and presented as p+es&&d suec:ified by the Postal 
Service; and 

c. Meets the addressing and other preparation requirements ~ww&& 
specified by the Postal Service. 

22 1.:23 The Prepaid Reulv Mail catem Preuaid Reulv Mail Rate Category. 
auulies to Letters and Sealed Parcels subclass mail that: 

a. Is urovided to senders with uostage-ureuaid bv the reciuient, a 
Preuaid Reulv Mail uermit holder, for return bv mail to the recipient; 

L Bears the recipient’s ureurinted machine-readable return address. a 
barcode representing not more than 11 digits (not including 
“correction” digits), a Facing Identification Mark. and other 
markings suecifled and auuroved bv the Postal Service; and 

c. Meets the letter machinability and other ureuaration reauirements 
suecified by the Postal Service. 

221.24 Qualified Business ReDlv Mail Rate Category. The Oualified Business 
Reulv Mail category auulies to Letters and Sealed Parcels subclass mail 
that: 

a. Is provided to senders bv the reciuient. an advance deuosit account 
Business Reulv Mail uermit holder. for return by mail to the 
reciuient; 

IL Bears the reciuient’s ureurinted machine-readable return address, a 
barcode reuresenting not more than 11 digits (not including 
“correction” digits). a Facing Identification Mark. and other 
markings suecified and auuroved by the Postal IService: and 
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L Meets the letter machinabilitv and other ureuaration requirements 
specified by the Postal Service. 

221.25 Nonstandard Size Surcharge. Regular rate category Letters and Sealed 
Parcels subclass mail is subject to a surcharge if it is nonstandard size mail, as 
deiined in section 232. 

221.3 

221.31 

221.32 

221.33 

221.34 

- - 
e&““T”“Te 

Automation Rate Categories - Letters and Flats 

General. The automation rate categories consist of Letters and Sealed Parcels 
subclass mail weighing 11 ounces or less that: 

a. Is prepared in a mailing of at least 500 pieces; 

b. Is presorted, marked, and presented as specified by the Postal Service; 

c. Bears a barcode representing not more than 11 digits (not including 
“correction” digits) as pr+s&l& specified by the Postal Service; and 

d. Meets the machinability, addressing, barcoding, and other preparation 
requirements ~FEW&&A specified by the Postal Service. 

Basic Rate Category. The basic rate category applies to letter-size automation 
rate category mail not mailed under section 221.33, 221.34, or 221.35. 

Three-Digit Rate Category. The three-digit rate category applies to letter-size 
automation rate category mail presorted to single or multiple three-digit ZIP 
Code destinations as ~~wGGwA suecified by the Postal Service. 

Five-Digit Rate Category. The five-digit rate category applies to letter-size 
automation rate category mail presorted to single or multiple five-digit ZIP 
Code destinations as mxx&bed suecified by the Postal Service. 
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221.35 

221.36 

221.37 

221.38 

Carrier Koute Kate Category. The carrier route rate category applies to 
letter-size automation rate category mail presorted to carrier routes. It is 
available only for those carrier routes e suecified by the Postal 
Service. 

Hasic Flats Kate Category. The basic flats rate category applies to flat-size 
automation rate category mail not mailed under section 221.37. 

Three- alnd Five-Digit Flats Kate Category. The three- and five-digit flats 
rate category applies to flat-size automation rate category mail presorted to 
single or multiple three- and five-digit ZIP Code destinations as specified by 
the Postal Service. 

Nonstandard Size Surcharge. Flat-size automation rate category pieces are 
subject toI a surcharge if they are nonstandard size mail, as defined in section 
;!32. 

221.30 
. . 

DQM : . 

221.4 Automation Rate Category - Parcels 

221.41 Preharcolded Parcel Rate Category. The prebarcoded parcel rate category 
applies to Letters and Sealed Parcels subclass nonpresorted mail that: 

a.. Is prepared in a mailing of at least 50 pieces; 

b. Bears a barcode as w specified by the Postal Service:; 

c. Is marked and presented as pws&l& suecified by the Posta’l Service; and 

d. Meets the machinability, addressing, barcoding, and other preparation 
requirements pws&bed specified by the Postal Service. 

This provision is applicable only to mailings entered for processing at no more 
than six facilities designated by the Postal Service. This provision expires ? 
April 28, 1998. 
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221.5 Hazardous Medical Materials and Other Mailable Halzardous Materials 
Surcharges. Letters and Sealed Parcels subclass mail containing hazardous 
medical materials or other mailable hazardous materials, as defined by the 
Postal Service, must meet the ureuaration reauirements of the Postal Service 
and is subject to one or both surcharges. 

222 p Cards Subclass 

222.1 Definition 

,--‘ 

222., 121 nc. ards The Cards subclass consists of Stamued Cards, defined in 
classification schedule 962. and nostcards. A peskaa& postcard is a privately 
printed, mailing card for the transmission of messages. Tlo be eligible to be 
mailed as a First-Class-pest+& postcard, a card must be of uniform thickness 
and must not exceed any of the following dimensions: 

a. 6 inches in length; 

b. 4% inches in width: 

c. 0.0 16 inch in thickness. 

222.132 Double Cards. Double Stamped Cards or pes%a~& postcards may be mailed 
as Stamped Cards or peskzdspostcards. ABD_ouble Stamped Cards a 
de.fined in classification schedule 962. m Arble uostcard consists 
of two attached cards, one of which may be detached by the receiver and 
returned by mail as a single +kqeG&+ postcard ~s&oa~& 

222.2 Restriction. A mailpiece with any of the following characteristics is not 
mailable as a Stamped Card or pest+& postcard unless it is prepared as 
pmskbed suecified by the Postal Service: 

/-‘ 
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a. Numbers or letters unrelated to postal purposes appearing in the ad,dress 
portion of the card; 

b. Punched holes; 

c. Vertical tearing guide; 

d. An address portion which is smaller than the remainder of the card. 

222.3 Regular Rate Categories 

222.3 1 SinglePiece Kate Category. The single:piece rate category applies to regular 
rate yards subclass mail not mailed under 
section 222.32, 222.33, or 222.34. 

222.32 Presort Rate Category. The presort rate category applies to v 
E&-I+& Cards subclass mail that: 

a. Is prepared in a mailing of at least 500 pieces; 

b. Is presorted, marked, and presented as pre&bed snecifie:d by the Postal 
Service; and 

c. Meets the addressing and other preparation requirements ,p+as&b& 
snecified by the Postal Service. 

222.33 &eDaid Reulv Mail Kate Category. The Preuaid Reulv Mail category 
annlies to Cards subclass mail that: 

a. Is nrovided to senders with nostage-nrenaid bv the recipient, a 
Prepaid Reply Mail Den-nit holder, for return by mail to the recipient: 

!L ,Bears the recinient’s nrenrinted machine-readable return address. a 
barcode reuresentmg not more than 11 digits (not including 
:;‘correction” digits). a Facing Identification Mark. and other 
markings snecified and annroved by the Postal Service: and 
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c. Meets the card machinabilitv and other ureuaration requirements 
specified by the Postal Service. 

222.34 Oualitied Business Reuly Mail Rate Cateeorv. The Oualifled Business 
Reuly Mail cateeorv applies to Cards subclass mail th:& 

a. Is provided to senders bv the recipient. an advance deuosit account 
Business Reply Mail permit holder, for return by mail to the 
recipient; 

L Bears the recinient’s meminted machine-readable return address, a 
barcode renresenting not more than 11 dipits (not including 
crk, and other 
markings specified and approved bv the Postal Service; ann 

L Meets the card machinabilitv and other preparation requirements 
specified bv the Postal Service. 

222.4 Automation Rate Categories 

222.41 General. The automation rate categories consist of S&E- 
Cards subclass mail that: 

a. Is prepared in a mailing of at least 500 pieces; 

b. Is presorted, marked, and presented as specified by the Postal Service; 

c. Bears a barcode representing not more than 11 digits (not including 
“correction” digits) as pws&&d specified by the Postal Service; and 

d. Meets the machinability, addressing, barcoding, and other preparation 
requirements pxwf&& Specified by the Postal Service. 

222.,42 Basic Rate Category. The basic rate category applies to automation rate 
category cards not mailed under section 222.43, 222.44, osr 222.45. 

-- 
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222.43 

222.44 

222.45 

223 

223.1 

223.2 

223.3 

223.4 

Three-Digit Rate Category. The three-digit rate category applies ‘to 
automation rate category cards presorted to single or multiple three-digit ZIP 
Code destinations as ~FW&I& snecified by the Postal Service. 

Five-Digit Rate Category. The five-digit rate category applies to automation 
rate category cards presorted to single or multiple five-digit ZIP Code 
destinations as pi=as&& specified by the Postal Service. 

Carrier Route Rate Category. The carrier route rate category applies to 
automation rate category cards presorted to carrier routes. It is available only, 
for those carrier routes pr~&-I& snecified by the Postal Service. 

Priority Mail 

General. The Priority Mail subclass consists of: 

a. First-Class M,ail weighing more than 11 ounces; and 

b. Any mailable matter which, at the option of the mailer, is mailed for 
expeditious mailing and transportation. 

Single-Piece Priority Mail Rate Category. The single:piece Prioritv Mail 
~FWR+BA rate category applies to Priority Mail subclass mail not mailed 
under section 223~.34-. 

Preharcoded Pri,ority Mail Parcel Rate Category. The prebarcoded Priority 
Mail Parcel rate category applies to Priority Mail BW 
that: 

a. Is prepared in a mailing of at least 50 pieces; 

.--X 
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223.5 

223.6 

.-. 223.7 

223.8 

230 PHYSI:CAL LIMITATIONS 

231 Size and Weight 

b. Bears a barcode as pras&b& suecified by the Postal Service; 

c. Is marked and presented as praaa&& specified by the Postal Service; and 

d. Meets the machinability, addressing, barcoding, and other preparation 
requirements ~FBSH+& specified by the Postal Service. 

This provision is applicable only to mailings entered for processing at no more 
than six facilities designated by the Postal Service. This provision expires 
April 28, 1998. 

Flat Rate Envelope. Priority Mail subclass mail sent in ;a “flat rate” envelope 
provided by the Postal Service is charged the two-pound rate. 

Pickup Service. Pickup service is available for Priority Mail subclass mail 
under terms and conditions pmsa&ad soecified by the Postal Service. 

Bulky Parcels. Priority Mail subclass mail weighing less than 15 pounds, and 
measuring over 84 inches in length and girth combined, is charged a minimum 
rate equal to that for a 15-pound parcel for the zone to which the piece is 
addressed. 

Hazardous Medical Materials and Other Mailable Hazardous Materials 
Surcharges. Priority Mail containing hazardous medical materials or other 
mailable hazardous materials, as defined bv the Postal Service. must meet the 
preoaration reouirements of the Postal Service and is subiect to one or both 
surcharges. 

First-Class Mail may not exceed 70 pounds or 108 inches in length and girth 
combined. Additional size and weight limitations apply to individual First- 
Class Mail subclasses. 
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232 Nonstandard Size Mail 

Letters and Sealed Parcels subclass mail weighing one ounce or less is 
nonstandard size if: 

a. Its aspect ratio do’es not fall between 1 to 1.3 and 1 to 2.5 inclusive; or 

b. It ex.ceeds any of the following dimensions: 

i. 11.5 inches in length; 

ii. 6.125 inches in width; or 

iii. 0.25 inch in thickness, 

240 POSTAGE AND PREPARATION 

Postage on First-Class Mail must be paid as set forth in section 3000. Postage 
is, computed separately on each piece of mail. Pieces not within the same 
postage rate increment may be mailed at other than a single:piece rate a.s part of 
the same mailing only when specific methods approved by the Postal Service 
for m determining and verifying postage are followed. All mail 
mailed at other than a single:piece rate must have postage paid in a manner not 
requiring cancellation. 

---. 

250 DEPOSIT AND DELIVERY 

251 Deposit 

First-Class Mail musl: be deposited at places and times designated by the Postal 
Service. 

252 Service 

First-Class Mail receives expeditious handling and transportation, except that 
when First-Class Mail is attached to or enclosed with mail of another class, the 
service of that class applies. 
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253 Fotwa,rding and Return 

First-Class Mail that is undeliverable-as-addressed is forwarded or returned to 
the serrder without additional charge. 

260 ANCILLARY SERVICES 

First-Class Mail, except as otherwise noted, will receive the following additional services 
upon payment of the fees prescribed in the corresponding schedule: 

Service Schedule 

/-- 

a. 
b. 
C. 

d. 

; 

E: 

i. 
1. 

Address correction 
Business reply mail 
Certificates of mailing 
Certified mail 
COD 
Insured mail 
Registered mail 
Return receipt (limited to merchandise sent 

by Priority Mail) 
Merchandise return 
Delivery Confirmation (limited to 

Priority Mail) 

270 RATES AND FEES 

271 The rates-a&&as for First-Class Mail are set forth in the following schedules: 

Schedule 

it: 
Letters and Sealed Parcels 221 
v Cards 222 
Priority Mail 223 

ii> 

272 - Kevs and Identification Devices. Kevs. identification cards. identification tags, 
or similar identification devices that: 



Docket No. -7-l 
Proposed Changes to Domestic Mail Classification Schedule 

Attachment A Page 20 .._ 

(a) weigh no more than 2 oounds; 
(l?J are mailed without cover: and 
@bear. contain. or have securely attached the name and address 

information. as suecified by the Postal Service. of a uerson, 
organization, or concern. with instructions to return to the address and a 
statement guaranteeing the nayment of postage due on delivm 

an= subject to the followina rates and fees: I 

@the annlicable sinzle-niece rates in schedules 221 Ior 223: 
(bathe fee set forth in fee schedule 93 1 for uavment of oostage due charges 

if an active business renlv mail advance deposit account is not used, and 
(cJthe nonstandard surcharge, if anulicable. under section 232. 

280 AUTHORTZATIONS AND LICENSES 

The fee set forth in R&a Schedule 1000 must be paid once each year at each 
office of mailing by any person who mails other than single:piece First-Class 
Mail-or courtesy envelope mail. Payment of the fee allows the mailer to mail at 
any First-Class rate. 
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STANDARD MAIL 
CLASSIFICATION SCHEDULE 

310 DEFINITION 

311 General 

Any mailable matter may be mailed as Standard Mail except: 

a. Matter required to be mailed as First-Class Mail; 

b. Copies of a publication that is entered as Periodicals class mail, except 
copies sent by a printer to a publisher, and except copies that would have 
traveled at the former second-class transient rate. (The: transient rate 
applied to individual copies of second-class mail (currently Periodicals 
class mail) forwarded and mailed by the public, as well as to certain sample 
copies mailed by publishers.) 

312 Printed Matter 

Printed matter, including printed letters which according to internal evidence 
are being sent in identical terms to several persons, but which do not have the 
character of actual or personal correspondence, may be mailed as Standard 
Mail. Printed matter does not lose its character as Standard Mail when the date 
and name of the addressee and of the sender are written thereon. For the 
purposes of the Standard Mail Classification Schedule, “printed” does not 
in&de reproduction by handwriting or typewriting. 

313 Written Additions 

Standard Mail may have the following written additions placed on the wrapper, 
on a tag or label attached to the outside of the parcel, or irrside the parcel, either 
loose or attached to the article: 

a. Marks, numbers, name, or letters descriptive of contents; 

b. “Please Do Not Open Until Christmas,” or words of similar import; 
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c. Instructions and directions for the use of an article in the package; 

d. Manuscript dedication or inscription not in the nature of personal 
correspondence; 

e. Marks to call attention to any word or passage in text; 

f. Corrections of typographical errors in printed matter; 

g. Manuscripts accompanying related proof sheets, and corrections in proof 
shelets to include: corrections of typographical and other errors; alterations 
of text, insertion of new text, marginal instructions to the printer, and 
rewrites of parts if necessary for correction; 

h. Handstamped imprints, except when the added matter is itself personal or 
converts the original matter to a personal communication; 

i. An invoice. 

320 DESCRIPTION OF SUBCLASSES 

321 Subclasses Limited to Mail Weighing Less than 16 Ouuces 
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321.2 Regular Subclass 

321.21 General. The Regular subclass consists of Standard Mail weighing less than 
16 ounces that is not mailed under sections w 321.3, 321.4, 321.5 or 323. 

32 1.22 Presort Rate Categories 

321.221 General. The presort rate categories apply to Regular subclass mail that: 

a. Is prepared in a mailing of at least 200 addressed piece:s or 50 pounds of 
addressed pieces; 

b. Is presorted, marked, and presented as pras&&d suec:ified by the Postal 
Service; and 

c. Meets the machinability, addressing, and other preparation requirements 
~x+xib& snecified by the Postal Service. 

321.222 Basic Rnte Categories. The basic rate categories apply to presort rate category 
mail not mailed under section 32 1.223 

32 1.223 Three- and Five-Digit Rate Categories. The three- and five-digit rate 
categories apply to presort rate category mail presorted to single or multiple 
three- and five-digit ZIP Code destinations as pras&bA specified by the Postal 
Service. 

32 1.23 Automation Rate Categories 

32 1.23 1 General. The automation rate categories apply to Regular subclass mail that: 
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a. Is prepared in a mailing of at least 200 addressed pieces or 50 pounds of 
addressed pieces; 

b. Is presorted, marked, and presented as pras&b& suecified by the Postal 
Service; 

c. Bears a barcode representing not more than 11 digits (not including 
“correction” digits) as pr-as&A specified by the Postal Service; 

d. Meets the machinability, addressing, barcoding, and otheir preparation 
requirements w specified by the Postal Service. 

321.232 Basic Barcoded Rate Category. The basic barcoded rate catmegory applies to 
letter-size automation rate category mail not mailed under se:ction 32 1.233 or 
321.234. 

321.233 Three-Digit Barcoded Rate Category. The three-digit barco’ded rate c,ategory 
applies to letter-size automation rate category mail presorted to single or 
multiple three-digit ZIP Code destinations as pns%&%l snecified by the Postal 
Service. 

321.234 Five-Digit Barcoded Rate Categoly. The five-digit barcodeid rate camgory 
applies to letter-size automation rate category mail presorted to single or 
multiple five-digit ZIP Code destinations as pms&bad specified by the Postal 
Service. 

321.235 Basic Barcoded Flats Rate Category. The basic barcoded flats rate #‘category 
applies to flat-size automation rate category mail not mailed under section 
321.236. 

321.236 Three- and Five-Digit Barcoded Flats Rate Category. The three- and five-digit 
barcoded flats rate category applies to flat-size automation rate category mail 
presorted to single or multiple three- and five-digit ZIP Code destinations as 
pmseibd snecified by the Postal Service. 

321.24 Destination Entry Discount. The destination entry discounts apply t’o Regular 
subclass mail prepared as e snecified by the Postal Service and 
addressed for delivery within the service area of the BMC (or auxiliary service 
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facility), or sectional center facility (SCF), at which it is entered, as (defined by 
the Postal Service. 

321.25 Residual Shaue Surcharee. Regular subclass mail is subiect to a surcharge if 
it is DreWred as a name1 or if it is not letter or flat shaped. 

321.26 Hazardous Medical Materials and Other Mailable Hazamdous Materials 
Surchawes. Regular subclass mail containing hazardous medical materials or 
other mailable hazardous materials, as defined by the Postal Service, must meet 
the ureuaration requirements of the Postal Service and is subject to one or both 
surcharges. 

321.3 Enhanced Carrier Route Subclass 

321.31 Definition. The Enhanced Carrier Route subclass consists of Standard Mail 
weighing less than 16 ounces that is not mailed under section J&l+ 321.2, 
321.4, 321.5 or 323, andthat: 

a. Is prepared in a mailing of at least 200 addressed pieces or 50 polunds of 
addressed pieces; 

b. Is prepared, marked, and presented as pms&&d specified by the Postal 
Service; 

c. Is presorted to carrier routes as pres&b& suecified by the Postal Service; 

d. Is sequenced as prasaA& suecified by the Postal Servjce; and 

e. Meets the machinability, addressing, and other preparanon requirements 
p.xskbd suecified by the Postal Service. 

321.32 Basic Rate Category. The basic rate category applies to Enhanced Carrier 
Route subclass mail not mailed under section 321.33,321.34 or 321.35. 

321.33 Basic Pre-Barcoded Rate Category. The basic pre-barcoded rate category 
applies to letter-size Enhanced Carrier Route subclass mail which bears a 
barcode representing not more than 11 digits (not including “correction” 
digits), as specified -by the Postal Service, and which meets the 
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machinability, addressing, and barcoding specifications and other preparation 
requirements psas&&d specified by the Postal Service. 

321.34 

321.35 

321.36 

High Density Rate Category. The high density rate category applies to 
Enhanced Carrier Route subclass mail presented in walk-sequence order and 
meeting the high density requirements pras&h& specified by the Postal 
Service. 

Saturation Rate Category. The saturation rate category applies to Enhanced 
Carrier Route subclass mail presented in walk-sequence order and meeting the 
saturation requirements pras&LA specified by the Postal Service. 

Destination Entry Discounts. Destination entry discounts apply to Enhanced 
Carrier Route subclass mail prepared as pms&bad snecified by the Postal 
Service and addressed for delivery within the service area of the IBMC (or 
auxiliary service facility), sectional center facility (SCF), or destination 
delivery unit (DDU) at which it is entered, as defined by the Postal Service. 

321.37 Residual ShaDe Surcharge. Enhanced Carrier Route subclass mail is sut& 
to a surcharge if it is nrepared as a name1 or if it is not letter or flat shaped. 

321.38 Hazardous Medical Materials and Other Mailable Hazardous Materials 
Surcharges. Enhanced Carrier Route subclass mail containing hazardous 
medical materials or other mailable hazardous materials, as defnted by the 
Postal Service. must meet the preparation reauirements of the Postal Servic:e 
and is subiect to one or both surcharges 

321.4 Nonprofit Subclass 

321.41 General. The Nonprofit subclass consists of Standard Mail weighing less than 
16 ounces that is not mailed under section 3&l& 321.2,321.3, 3211.5 or 323, 
and that is mailed by authorized nonprofit organizations or associations of .the 
following types: 

a. Religious, as defined in section 1009, 

b. Educational, as defined in section 1009, 
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c. Scientific, as defined in section 1009, 

d. Philanthropic, as defined in section 1009, 

e. Agricultural, as defined in section 1009, 

f. Labor, as defined in section 1009, 

g. Veterans’, as defined in section 1009; 

h. Fraternal, as defined in section 1009, 

i. Qualified political committees, 

j State or local voting registration officials when making a mailing required 
or authorized by the National Voter Registration Act of 1993. 

/- 321.411 Qualified Political Committees. The term “qualified political committee” 
means a national or State committee of a political party, the Repubhcan and 
Democratic Senatorial Campaign Committees, the Democratic National 
Congressional Committee, and the National Republican Congressional 
Committee: 

a. The term “national committee” means the organization which, by virtue of 
the bylaws of a political party, is responsible for the day-to-day (operation of 
such political party at the national level; and 

b. The term “State committee” means the organization which, by virtue of the 
bylaws of a political party, is responsible for the day-to-day operation of 
such political party at the State level. 

321.412 Limitation on Authorization. An organization authorized jto mail at the 
nonprofit Standard rates for qualified nonprofit organizati’ms may mail only its 
own matter at these rates. An organization may not delegilte or lend the use of 
its permit to mail at spe&J Nonurofit S&F&& rates to any other pe:rson, 
organization or association. 
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321.42 Presort Rate Categories 

321.421 General. The presort rate categories apply to Nonprofit subclass mail that: 

a. Is prepared in a mailing of at least 200 addressed pieces or ,50 pounds of 
addressed pieces; 

b. Is presorted, marked, and presented as pww&bed suecified by the Po,stal 
Service: and 

c. Meets the machinability, addressing, and other preparation requirements 
pms&&d specified by the Postal Service. 

321.422 Basic Rate Categories. The basic rate categories apply to presort rate ctitegory 
mail not mailed under section 32 1.423. 

321.423 Three- and Five-Digit Rate Categories. The three- and five-digit rate 
categories apply to presort rate category mail presorted to single or multiple 
three- and five-digit ZIP Code destinations as pras&b& specified by the Postal 
Service. 

32 1.43 Automation Rate Categories 

321.43 1 General. The automation rate categories apply to Nonprofit subclass mail that: 

a. Is prepared in a mailing of at least 200 addressed pieces or 50 pounds of 
addressed pieces; 

b. Is presorted, marked, and presented as press&& soecified Iby the Postal 
Service; 

c. Bears a barcode representing not more than 11 digits (not including 
“correction” digits) as prwzi&d suecified by the Postal Sewice; 

d. Meets the machinability, addressing, barcoding, and other preparation 
requirements press&A suecified by the Postal Service. 

-, 
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321.432 

321.433 

321.434 

321.435 

I- 
321.436 

321.44 

Basic Burcoded Rate Cutegoly. The basic barcoded rate category applies to 
letter-size automation rate category mail not mailed under section 321.433 or 
321.434. 

Three-Digit Burcoded Rate Cutegoly. The three-digit barcoded rate category 
applies to letter-size automation rate category mail presorted to single or 
,multiple three-digit ZIP Code destinations as ~RGG&& suecified by the Postal 
Service. 

Five-Digit Burcoded Rate Category. The five-digit barcoded rate category 
applies to letter-size automation rate category mail presorted to single or 
multiple five-digit ZIP Code destinations as ~ww&& specified by the Postal 
Service. 

Basic Barcoded Flats Rate Categov. The basic barcoded flats rate category 
applies to flat-size automation rate category mail not mailed under section 
321.436. 

Three- and Five-Digit Barcoded Flats Rate Cutegoly The three-, and five-digit 
b;xcoded flats rate category applies to flat-size automation rate category mail 
presorted to single or multiple three- and five-digit ZIP Code destinations as 
~WGF&& suecified by the Postal Service. 

Destination Entry Discounts. Destination entry discounts apply t,o Nonprofit 
subclass mail prepared as ~XWG&& suecified by the Postal Service and 
addressed for delivery within the service area of the BMC (or auxiliary service 
cxility) or sectional center facility (SCF) at which it is entered, a.s defmed by 
the Postal Service. 

321.45 Residual ShaDe Surcharpe. Nonurofit subclass mail is subiect l;o a surch;s 
if it is orepared as a uarcel or if it is not letter or flat shaued. 

321.46 Hazardous Medical Materials and Other Mailable Hazardous Materials 
Surcharges. Nonurofit subclass mail containing hazardous medical mater& 
pr other mailable hazardous materials. as defined bv the Postal Service. rnw 
meet the ureuaration requirements of the Postal Service and is subiect to one 
110th surcharges. 
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321.51 Definition. The Nonprofit Enhanced Carrier Route subclass consists of 
Standard Mail weighing less than 16 ounces that is not mailed. under section 
Gl+ 321.2, 321.3, 321.4 or 323, that is mailed by authorized nonprofit 
organizations or associations (as defmed in section 32 1.4 1) under the te:rms and 
limitations stated in section 32 1.4 12, and that: 

a. Is prepared in a mailing of at least 200 addressed pieces or 50 pounds of 
addressed pieces; 

b. Is prepared, marked, and presented as l%sa&%d specified-by the Postal 
Service; 

c. Is presorted to carrier routes as ~ws&IA specified by the, Postal Service; 

d. Is sequenced as ~FW&WA specified by the Postal Service:; and 

e. Meets the machinability, addressing, and other preparation requirements 
~FSAXA specified by the Postal Service. 

321.52 Basic Rate Category. The basic rate category applies to Nonprofit Enlhanced 
Carrier Route subclass mail not mailed under section 321.53, 321.54 or 321.55. 

321.53 Basic Pre-Barcoded Rate Category. The basic pre-barcoded rate category 
applies to letter-size Nonprofit Enhanced Carrier Route subclass mail which 
bears a barcode representing not more than 11 digits (not including 
“correction” digits), as ~HSHGWJ suecified by the Postal Service, and which 
meets the machinability, addressing, and barcoding specifications and other 
preparation requirements ~F%&!A specified by the Postal Service. 

321.54 High Density Rate Category. The high density rate category applies to 
Nonprofit Enhanced Carrier Route subclass mail presented in walk-sequence 
order and meeting the high density requirements e alecified by the 
Postal Service. 
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321.55 Saturation Rate Category. The saturation rate category applies to Nonprofit 
Enhanced Carrier Route subclass mail presented in walk-sequence order and 
meeting the saturation requirements ~FH&IA suecified b’y the Postal Service. 

321 S6 Destination Entry Discounts. Destination entry discounts apply to Nonprofit 
Enhanced Carrier Route subclass mail prepared as @A specified by the 
Postal Service and addressed for delivery within the service area of the BMC 
(or auxiliary service facility), sectional center facility (SC]?), or destination 
delivery unit (DDU) at which it is entered, as defined by the Postal Iservice. 

F- 

321.57 Residual Shape Surcharge. Nonurofit Enhanced Carrier Route subclass mail 
is subject to a surcharge i it is prepared as a parcel or if it is not letteir or flat 
shaued. 

321.57 Hazardous Medical Materials and Other Mailable Hazardous Materials 
Surchawes. Nonurofit Enhanced Carrier Route subclass mail 
hazardous medical materials or other mailable hazardous materials. as defined 
bv the Postal Service. must meet the preparation requirements of the Postal 
Service and is subject to one or both surcharges. 

322 Subclasses Limited to Mail Weighing 16 Ounces or Mare 

322.1 Parcel Post Subclass 

322.11 Definition. The Parcel Post subclass consists of Standard Mail weighing 16 
ounces or more that is not mailed under sections 322.2. 322.3, 323.1, or 323.2. 

322.12 Description of Rate Categories 

322.12 1 Infer-&WC Rate Cureaor~. Inter-BMC Parcel Post rates aDuly to all Parcel 
Post not mailed under sections 322.122. 322.123. 322.124. or 322.1:& 

/-- 

322.122 Intra-BMC Rate Catenorv. Intra-BMC rates auulv to Parcel Post rnald 
originating and destinating within a desiaated BMC or auxiliarv service 
facilitv service area. Alaska, Hawaii or Puerto Rico. 
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322.123 Destination Bulk Mail Center (DBMCJ Rate Catenorv. DBMC rates awAy to 
Parcel Post mail DreDared as wecified by the Postal Servio: in a mailing of at 
least 50 pieces entered at a deskmated destination BMC, auxiliary se& 
facilitv, or other equivalent facilitv. as wecified bv the Postal Service. 

322.124 Destination Sectional Center Facilitv (DSCFI Rate Cateww. DSCF- 
a&y t0 hrCe1 POSt mail Drewred as wecified bv the POSt;d SeNiCed 

mailing of at least 50 Dieces sorted to five dieit destination ZIP Codes as 
specified bv the Postal Service and entered at a designated destinatiao 
processing and distribution center or facilit/. or other eauivalent facilitv. as 
specified bv the Postal Service. 

322.125 Destination Deliven, Unit (DDVI Rate Cateaorv. DDU rates auulv lo Parcel 
Post mail meDared as specified by the Postal Service in a mailing of at least 50 
pieces, and entered at a desknated destination delivery unit, or other eauivalent 
facility, as Specified bv the Postal Service. 

?. 

322.13 [Reserved] 

. . 

322.14 Bulk Mail Center @MC) Presort Discounts 

322.141 BMC Presort Discount. The BMC oresort discount applies to Inter-m 
Parcel Post mail that is prepared as specified by the Postal Service in a mailing - 
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of 50 or more uieces, entered at a facilitv authorized bv the Postal Service, and 
sorted to destination BMCs. as specified by the Postal Sen& 

322.142 Origin BulkMail Center (OBMC) Discount. The Origin PMC Parcel 
discount applies to Inter-BMC Parcel Post mail that is prepared as specified by 
the Postal Service in a mailing of at least 50 pieces, entered at the origin BMC. 
and sorted to destination BMCs. as specified by the Postal Service. 

322.15 Barcoded Discount. The barcoded discount applies to Inter-BMC. Intra-BMC. 
and DBMC Parcel Post mail that is entered at designated facilities, bw 
barcode specified by the Postal Service, is prepared as specified by the Postal 
Service in a mailing of at least 50 pieces, and meets all other preparation and 
machinabilitv reouirements of the Postal Service. 

322.16 Oversize Parcel Post 

322.161 Excessive Len.& and Girth. Parcel Post pieces exceeding 108 inches in length 
and girth combined. but not greater than 130 inches in lens&h and girth 

combined, are mailable. provided that such pieces constitute no more than 10 
percent of the total number of Parcel Post uieces mailed as a part of ia single 
mailing. If mailable, such pieces are subiect to the applicable rates for the 70 
pound weight increment. 

322.162 Balloon Rate. Parcel Post pieces exceeding 84 inches in l~ength and girth 
combined and weighing less than 15 pounds are subiect to a rate eaual to that 
for a 15 pound parcel for the zone to which the parcel is ad,dressed. 

322.142 Nonmachinable Surcharge. VW& 
Inter-BMC Parcel Post that does not meet machinability criteria pr=as&bad 
specified by the Postal Service-is subject to a nomnachinable surcharge. 

322.138 Pickup Service. Pickup service is available for Parcel Pos~t&Aass- mail 
under terms and conditions press&& specified by the Postal Service. 
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322.19 Hazardous Medical Materials and Other Mailable Hazardous Matem 
Surcharges. Parcel Post mail containing hazardous medical materials or other 
mailable hazardous materials. as defined by the Postal Service:. must me- 
preparation requirements of the Postal Service and is subiect t,o one or b& 
surcharges. 

322.2 Bulk Parcel Post 

322.21 Bulk parcel post mail is Parcel Post mail consisting of properly prenared and 
Separated single mailings of at least 300 Dieces or 2000 pounds. Pieces 
wei&mg less than 15 nounds and measuring over 84 inches in length and girth 
combined or Dieces measuring over 108 inches in length and trirth combined 
are not mailable as bulk parcel nest. 

322.22 Barcoded Discount. The barcoded discount auulies to Bulk Parcel PO:- 
that is entered at designated facilities. bears a barcode snecifiefd by the P& 
Service. is prepared as specified by the Postal Service. and meets all otia 
preparation and machinabilihi requirements of the Postal Service. 

322.23 Hazardous Medical Materials and Other Mailable Hazardous Mate:& 
Surchawes. Bulk Parcel Post mail containing hazardous meclical materials or 
other mailable hazardous materials. as defined by the Postal Service, must meet 
the areparation requirements of the Postal Service and is subject to one or both 
surcharges. 

322.3 Bound Printed Matter Subclass 

322.3 1 Definition. The Bound Printed Matter subclass consists of Stimdard Mail 
weighing at least 16 ounces, but not more than A-Q 15 pounds, which: 

a. Consists of advertising, promotional, directory, or editorial1 material, or any 
combination thereof; 

b. Is securely bound by permanent fastenings including, but not limited to, 
staples, spiral bindings, glue, and stitching; loose leaf binders and si:milar 
fastenings are not considered permanent; 
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322.32 

322.33 

322.34 

c. Consists of sheets of which at least 90 percent are imprinted with letters, 
characters, figures or images or any combination of these, by any process 
other than handwriting or typewriting; 

d. Does not have the nature of personal correspondence; 

e. Is not stationery, such as pads of blank printed forms. 

SiuglezPiece Rate Category. The single:piece rate category applie:s to Bound 
Printed Matter subclass mail which is not mailed under section 322.33 or 
322.34. 

Bulk Rate Category. The bulk rate category applies to Eiound Printed Matter 
subclass mail prepared in a mailing of at least 300 pieces, prepared and 
presorted as pfas&&d snecified by the Postal Service. 

Carrier Route Presort Rate Category. The carrier route rate category applies 
to Bound Printed Matter subclass mail prepared in a mailing of at 1e:ast 300 
pieces of carrier route presorted mail, prepared and presorted as specified 
pr+s&b&by the Postal Service. 

322.35 Barcoded Discount. The barcoded discount applies to Single-Piece and Bulk 
Rate Bound Printed Matter that is entered at designated facilities. be- 
barcode snecified bv the Postal Service, is nrepared as srxcified by the Postal 
Service in a mailing of at least 50 nieces, and meets all other preparation and 
machinabilitv requirements of the Postal Service. 

323 Subclasses With No 16..Ounce Limitation 

323.1 Special Subclass 

323.11 Definition. The Special subclass consists of Standard Mail of the following 
types: 

a. Books, including books issued to supplement other bo’oks, of at least eight 
printed pages, consisting wholly of reading matter or scholarly bibliography 
or reading matter with incidental blank spaces for notations, and dontainmg 
no advertising matter other than incidental announcements of books. Not 
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more than three of the announcements may contain as part of their format a 
single order form, which may also serve as a postcard p&+a~& The order 
forms permitted in this subsection are in addition to and not in lieu of order 
forms which may be enclosed by virtue of any other provision; 

b. 16 millimeter or narrower width films which must be !positive prints in final 
form for viewing, and catalogs of such films, of 24 pages or more, at least 
22 of which are printed, except when sent to or from commercial theaters; 

c. Printed music, whether in bound form or in sheet form; 

d. Printed objective test materials and accessories thereto used by or in behalf 
of educational institutions in t$e testing of ability, aptitude, achievement, 
interests and other mental and personal qualities with or withouit answers, 
test scores or identifying information recorded thereon in writing or by 
mark; 

e. Sound recordings, including incidental announcements of recordings and 
guides or scripts prepared solely for use with such recswdings. l\lot more 
than three of the announcements permitted in this subsection may contain as 
part of their format a single order form, which may also serve as a postcard 
pest+& The order forms permitted in this subsection are in addition to 
and not in lieu of order forms which may be enclosed by virtue of any other 
provision; 

f. Playscripts and manuscripts for books, periodicals and music; 

g. Printed educational reference charts, permanently processed for 
preservation; 

h. Printed educational reference charts, including but not limited to 

i. Mathematical tables, 

ii. Botanical tables, 

iii. Zoological tables, and 

- 
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323.12 

323.13 

_,--. 323.14 

iv. Maps produced primarily for educational reference puqposes; 

i. Looseleaf pages and binders therefor, consisting of medical information for 
distribution to doctors, hospitals, medical schools, and medical students; 
and 

j Computer-readable media containing prerecorded informal:ion and guides or 
scripts prepared solely for use with such media. 

Single-Piece Rate Category. The single$iece rate category applies to Special 
subclass mail not mailed under section 323.13 or 323.14. 

Level A Presort Rate Category. The Level A presort rate category aplplies to 
mailings of at least 500 pieces of Special subclass mail, prepared and presorted 
to five-digit destination ZIP Codes as e specified by -the Postal 
Service. 

Level B Presort Rate Category. The Level B presort rate category applies to 
mailing of at least 500 pieces of Special subclass mail, prepared and presorted 
to destination Bulk Mail Centers as e snecified by the Postal Service. 

,,-. 

323.15 Barcoded Discount. The barcoded discount apulies to Single:-Piece and Level 
B Presort Soecial subclass mail that is entered at designated facilities. be- 
barcode specified by the Postal Service, is ureuared as specified bv the Postal 
Service in a mailing of at least 50 nieces. and meets all other nrenaration and 
machinability requirements of the Postal Service. 

323.2 Library Subclass 

323.21 Definition. 

323.2 11 General. The Library subclass consists of Standard Mail of the following 
types, separated or presorted as e specified by the Postal Service: 

a. Matter designated in subsection 323.213, loaned or exchanged (including 
cooperative processing by libraries) between: 

i. Schools or colleges, or universities; 
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ii. Public libraries, museums and herbaria, nonprofit religious, educational, 
scientific, philanthropic, agricultural, labor, veterans’ or t?aiemal 
organizations or associations, or between such organizatiorrs and their 
members, readers or borrowers. 

b. Matter designated in subsection 323.214, mailed to or from schools, 
colleges, universities, public libraries, museums and herbaria and to or from 
nonprofit religious, educational, scientific, philanthropic, agricultural, labor, 
veterans’ or tiaternal organizations or associations; or 

c. Matter designated in subsection 323.215, mailed from a publisher or a 
distributor to a school, college, university or public library. 

323.212 Definition ofNonprofit Organizations and Associations. Nonprofii 
organizations or associations are defmed in section 1009. 

323.2 13 Library subclass mail under section 323.211 a. Matter eligible for mailing as 
Library subclass mail under section 323.21 la consists of: 

a. Books consisting wholly of reading matter or scholarl:y bibliography or 
reading matter with incidental blank spaces for notations and containing no 
advertising other than incidental announcements of books; 

b. Printed music, whether in bound form or in sheet form; 

c. Bound volumes of academic theses in typewritten or other duplicated form; 

d. Periodicals, whether bound or unbound; 

e. Sound recordings; 

f. Other library materials in printed, duplicated or photo:graphic form or in the 
form of unpublished manuscripts; and 

g. Museum materials, specimens, collections, teaching aids, printed matter and 
interpretative materials intended to inform and to further the educational 
work and interest of museums and herbaria. 

,-----~ -- ~--__ 
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323.214 Library subclass mail under section 323.211b. Matter el:igible for lmailing as 
Library subclass mail under section 323.21 lb consists of 

a. 16-millimeter or narrower width films; filmstrips; transparencies; slides; 
microfilms; all of which must be positive prints in firral form for viewing; 

b. Sound recordings; 

c. Museum materials, specimens, collections, teaching aids, printed matter, 
and interpretative materials intended to inform and to further the 
educational work and interests of museums and herbaria; 

d. Scientific or mathematical kits, instruments or other devices; 

e. Catalogs of the materials in section 323.214 a through d and guides or 
scripts prepared solely for use with such materials. 

/-- 
323.215 Library subclass mail under section 323.211~. Matter eligible for mailing as 

Library subclass mail under section 323.21 lc consists of books, including 
books to supplement other books, consisting wholly of reading matter or 
scholarly bibliography or reading matter with incidental blank spaces for 
notations, and containing no advertising matter other than incidental 
announcements of books. 

323.22 Basic Rate Category. The basic rate category applies to all Library subclass 
mail. 

323.23 Barcoded Discount. The barcoded discount auulies to Ljibrarv submclass mail 
that is entered at desianated facilities, bears a barcode suecitied bv the Postal 
Service, is ureuared as suecified bv the Postal Service in a! mailing of at least 50 
pieces, and meets all other ureuaration and machinability requirements of the 
Postal Service. 

323.24 Hazardous Medical Materials and Other Mailable Haz,ardous Materials 
Surcharees. Librarv subclass mail containing hazardous medical materials or 
other mailable hazardous materials. as defined by the Postal Service, must meet 
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the preparation requirements of the Postal Service and is subiect to one or both 
surcharges. 

330 PHYSICAL LIMITATIONS 

331 Size 

Exceut as urovided in 322.16 1, Standard Mail may not exceed 108 inches in 
length and girth combined. Additional size limitations apply to individual 
Standard Mail subclasses. The maximum size for mail presorted to carrier 
route in the Enhanced Carrier Route and Nonprofit Enhanced Carriler Route 
subclasses is 14 inches in length, 11.75 inches in width, and 0.75 inch in 
thickness. For merchandise samples mailed with detacheli address cards, the 
carrier route maximum dimensions apply to the detached address cards and not 
to the samples. 

332 Weight 

Standard Mail may not weigh more than 70 pounds. Additional weight 
limitations apply to individual Standard Mail subclasses. 

333 Nonstandard Size Mail 

Single-Piece subclass mail weighing one ounce or less is nonstandard size if: 

a. Its aspect ratio does not fall between 1 to 1.3 and 1 to 2.5 inclusive; or 

b. It exceeds any of the following dimensions: 

i. 11.5 inches in length; 

ii. 6.125 inches in width; or 

iii. 0.25 inch in thickness. 
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340 POSTAGE AND PREPARATION 

341 Postage 

Postage must be paid as set forth in section 3000. When the postage computed 
at a S.&l&&+ Regular, Enhanced Carrier Route, Nonprofit or Nonproftt 
Enhanced Carrier Route Standard rate is higher than the rate prescribed in any 
of the Standard subclasses listed in 322 or 323 for which the piece also 
qualifies (or would qualify, except for weight), the piece is eligible for the 
applicable lower rate. All mail mailed at a bulk or presort rate must have 
postage paid in a manner not requiring cancellation. 

342 Preparation 

All pieces in a Standard mailing must be separately addressed. All pieces in a 
Standard mailing must be identified as f+ms&&d soecitied by the Postal 
Service, and must contain the ZIP Code of the addressee when press&& 
specified by the Postal Service. All Standard mailings must be prepared and 
presented as snecified pmsar&&by the Postal Service. Tweo or more Standard 
mailings may be commingled and mailed only when specific methods approved 
by the Postal Service for m determininEa.nd verifying postage are 
followed. 

343 Non-Identical Pieces 

Pieces not identical in size and weight may be mailed at a blulk or presort rate 
as part of the same mailing only when specific methods approved by the Postal 
Service for ass&&&+ determining and verifying postage are followed. 

344 Attachments and Enclosures 

344.1 SiqH%e+ Regular, Enhanced Carrier Route, Nonprofit and Nonprofit 
Enhanced Carrier Route Subclasses (section 321) 

344.11 General. First-Class Mail may be attached to or enclosed in Standard books, 
catalogs, and merchandise entered under section 321. The: piece must be 
marked as presa&& snecifled by the Postal Service. Exc:ept as prsvided in 
section 344.12, additional postage must be paid for the attachment or enclosure 
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as if it had been mailed separately. Otherwise, the entire combined piece is 
subject to the First-Class rate for which it qualifies. 

344.12 

344.2 

344.21 

344.22 

344.23 

Incidental First-Class Attachments and Enclosures. First-Class Mail, as 
defined in section 210 b through d, may be attached to or enclosed with 
Standard merchandise entered under section 321, including books but 
excluding merchandise samples, with postage paid on the combined piece at 
the applicable Standard rate, if the attachment or enclosure is incidental to the 
piece to which it is attached or with which it is enclosed. 

Parcel Post, Bound Printed Matter, Special, and Library Subclasses 
(sections 322 and 323) 

General. First-Class Mail or Standard Mail from any of the subclasses listed 
in section 32 1 (w Regular, Enhanced Carrier Route, Nonprofit. or 
Nonprofit Enhanced Carrier Route) may be attached to or enclosed in Standard 
Mail mailed under sections 322 and 323. The piece must be marked as 
pms&&d specified by the Postal Service. Except as provided in sections 
344.22 and 344.23, additional postage must be paid for the attachment or 
enclosure as if it had been mailed separately. Otherwise, the entire combined 
piece is subject to the First-Class or section 321 Standard rate fbr which it 
qualifies (unless the rate applicable to the host piece is higher), or, if a 
combined piece with a section 32 1 Standard Mail attachment or enclosure 
weighs 16 ounces or more, the piece is subject to the Parcel Post rate for which 
it qualifies. 

Specifically Authorized Attachments and Enclosures. Standard Mail -mailed 
under sections 322 and 323 may contain enclosures and attachments as 
pma&bad snecified by the Postal Service and as described in section 323.11 a 
and e, with postage paid on the combined piece at the Standard rate applicable 
to the host piece. 

Incidental First-Class Attachments and Enclosures. First-Class Mail that 
meets one or more of the definitions in section 2 10 b through d, may be 
attached to or enclosed with Standard Mail mailed under section 322 or 323, 
with postage paid on the combined piece at the Standard rate applicable to the 
host piece, if the attachment or enclosure is incidental to the pilece to whjch it is 
attached or with which it is enclosed. 

,- 
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DEPOSIT AND DELIVERY 

Deposit 

Standard Mail must be deposited at places and times designated by the Postal 
Service. 

Service 

Standard Mail may receive deferred service. 

Forwarding and Return 

Si&&ieq Regular, Enhanced Carrier Route, Nonprofit and Nonprofit 
Enhanced Carrier Route Subclasses (section 321) 

Undeliverable-as-addressed Standard Mail mailed under section 32 1 will be 
returned on request of the mailer, or forwarded and returned on request of the 
mailer. Undeliverable-a.s-addressed combined First-Class; and Standard pieces 
will be returned as presGb& specified by the Postal Service. The iapplicable 
First-Class Mail m rate is charged for each piece receiving 
return only service. Charges for forwarding-and-return xrvice are assessed 
only on those pieces which cannot be forwarded and are returned. The charge 
for those returned pieces is the appropriate First-Class Ma&S+$a-l’~ 
S,&rd& rate for the piece plus that rate multiplied by a factor equal to the 
number of section 321 Standard pieces nationwide that are successfully 
forwarded for every one piece that cannot be forwarded and must be returned. 

Parcel Post, Bound Printed Matter, Special, and Library Subclasses 
(sections 322 and 323) 

Undeliverable-as-addressed Standard Mail mailed under sections 322 and 323 
will be forwarded on request of the addressee, returned on request of the 
mailer, or forwarded and returned on request of the mailer. Pieces which 
combine Standard Mail from one of the subclasses described in 322 and 323 
with First-Class Mail or Standard Mail horn one of the subclasses described in 
321 will be forwarded if undeliverable-as-addressed, and returned if 
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undeliverable, as suecified -by the Postal Service. When Standard 
Mail mailed under sections 322 and 323 is forwarded or returned fkom one post 
office to another, additional charges will be based on the 2ppDlicable.w 
ssingle @niece Standard wrate under 322 or 323. 

360 ANCILLARY SERVICES 

361 All Subclasses 

All Standard Mail will receive the following services upon payment of the 
appropriate fees: 

Service Schedule 

a. Address correction 

b. Certificates of mailing 947ss4 
indicating that a specified 
number of pieces have been mailed 

Certificates of mailing are not available for Regular, Enhanced Carrier Route, 
Nonprofit and Nonprofit Enhanced Carrier Route subclass mail when postage 
is paid **permit imprint. 

362 %&+Kw+, Parcel Post, Bound Printed Matter, Special, and Libraq 
Subclasses 

G?k&&k+ Parcel Post, Bound Printed Matter, Special, and Library subclass mail will 
receive the following additional services upon payment of the approplriate fees:: 

Service Schedule 

it1 
Certificates of mailing 947S&4 
COD p&SW5 

C. Insured mail plJssL9 
d. Special handling 952ss44 

;. 
Return receipt (merchandise only) mss-4-4 
Merchandise return 932+ss-a 

- 
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g, Delivery Confirmation 948 

Insurance, special handling, and COD services may not be used sele:ctively for individual 
pieces in a multi-piece m Standard Mail mailing unless specific 
methods approved by the Postal Service for asa~&%+ determinirgand verifying 
postage are followed. 

370 RATES AND FEES 

The rates and fees for Standard Mail are set forth as follows: 

Schedule 

/- 

l+& Regular subclass 
&. Enhanced Carrier Route subclass 
&cc Nonprofit subclass 
4. Nonprofit Enhanced Carrier Route subclass 
f;e, Parcel Post subclass 

%&Inter-BMC 
Intra-BMC 
Destination BMC 
Destination SCF 
Destination Delivery Unit 

& Bound Printed Matter subclass 
Single-Piece 
Bulk and Carrier Route 

&. Special subclass 
i& Library subclass 
$i Fees 

42M 
321.2 
321.3 
321.4 
321.5 

322.1A 
322.1B 
322.lBc 
322.1D 
322.1E 

322.3A 
322.3B 
323.1 
323.2 
1000 
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AUTHORIZATIONS AND LICENSES 

Regular, Enhanced Carrier Route, Nonprofit and Nonprofit Enhanced 
Carrier Route Subclasses 

A mailing fee as set forth in Rata Schedule 1000 must be paid once each year 
by mailers of Regular, Enhanced Carrier Route, Nonprofit and Nonprofit 
Enhanced Carrier Route subclass mail. 

Special Subclass 

A presort mailing fee as set forth in F&a@ Schedule 1000 must be Ipaid once 
each year at each offke of mailing by or for any person who mails presorted 
Special subclass mail. Any person who engages a business concern or othe:r 
individuals to mail presorted Special subclass mail must pay the fee. 

Parcel Post Subclass 

A mailing fee as set forth in Rata Schedule 1000 must be paid once each, year 
by mailers of Destination BMC, Destination SCF or Destination Delivery UJ 
rate category mail in the Parcel Post subclass. 
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410 DEFINITION 

4:1 1 General Requirements 

4 :I 1 1 Definition. A publication may qualify for mailing under the Periodicals 
Classification Schedule if it meets all &he requirements in sections 4 11.2 
through 411.5 and the requirements for one of the qualification categories in 
sections 4 12 through 4 15. Eligibility for specific Periodicals rates is prescribed 
in section 420. 

411.2 Periodicals. Periodicals class mail is mailable matter consisting of newspapers 
and other periodical publications. The term “periodical publications” includes, 
but is not limited to: 

a. Any catalog or other course listing including mail announcements of legal 
texts which are part of post-bar admission education issued by any 
institution of higher education or by a nonprofit organization engaged in 
continuing legal education. 

b. Any looseleaf page or report (including any index, instruction for filing, 
table, or sectional identifier which is an integral part of such report) which 
is designed as part of a looseleaf reporting service concerning developments 
in the law or public policy. 

411.3 Issuance 

411.31 Regular Issuance. Periodicals class mail must be regularly issued at stated 
intervals at least four times a year, bear a date of issue, and be numbered 
consecutively. 

411.32 Separate Publication. For purposes of determining Periodicals rate eligibility, 
an “issue” of a newspaper or other periodical shall be deemed to be a separate 
publication when the following conditions exist: 

PERIODICALS 
CLASSIFICATION SCHEDULE 
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a. The issue is published at a regular frequency more often than once a month 
either on (1) the same day as another regular issue of the same publication; 
or (2) on a day different horn regular issues of the same publication, and 

b. More than 10 percent of the total number of copies of the issue is 
distributed on a regular basis to recipients who do not s,ubscribe to it or 
request it, and 

c. The number of copies of the issue distributed to nonsubscribers or 
nonrequesters is more than twice the number of copies of any other issue 
distributed to nonsubscribers or nonrequesters on that same day, or, if no 
other issue that day, any other issue distributed during the same period. 
“During the same period” shall be defined as the periods of time ensuing 
between the distribution of each of the issues whose eligibility is being 
examined. Such separate publications must independently meet the 
qualifications for Periodicals eligibility. 

411.4 Offke of Publication. Periodicals class mail must have a known office of 
publication. A known office of publication is a public offme where business of 
the publication is transacted during the usual business hours. The office must 
be maintained where the publication is authorized original entry. 

411.5 Printed Sheets. Periodicals class mail must be formed of .printed sheets. It 
may not be reproduced by stencil, mimeograph, or hectogmph procelsses, or 
reproduced in imitation of typewriting. Reproduction by any other printing 
process is permissible. Any style of type may be used. 

412 General Publications 

412.1 Definition. To qualify as a General Publication, Periodicals class mail must 
meet the requirements in section 411 and in sections 412.2 through 412.4. 

412.2 Dissemination of Information. A General Publication must be originated and 
published for the purpose of disseminating information of a public character, or 
devoted to literature, the sciences, art, or some special industry. 

412.3 Paid Circulation 
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4L2.31 Total Distribution. A General Publication must be designed prim,arily for 
paid circulation. At least 50 percent or more of the copies of the publication 
must be distributed to persons who have paid above a nominal rate. 

412.32 List of Subscribers. A General Publication must be distributed to a legitimate 
list of persons who have subscribed by paying or promising to pay at a rate 
above nominal for copies to be received during a stated time. Copies mailed to 
persons who are not on a legitimate list of subscribers are: nonsubsc:riber copies. 

412.33 Nominal Rates. As used in section 412.3 1, nominal rate means: 

a. A token subscription price that is so low that it cannot be considered a 
material consideration; 

b. A reduction to the subscriber, under a premium offer or any other 
arrangements, of more than 50 percent of the amount charged at the basic 
annual rate for a subscriber to receive one copy of each issue published 
during the subscription period. The value of a premium is considered to be 
its actual cost to the publishers, the recognized retail value, or the 
represented value, whichever is highest. 

41.2.34 Nonsubscriber Copies 

412.341 Up to Ten Percent. Nonsubscriber copies, including sample and 
complimentary copies, mailed at any time during the calendar year up to and 
including 10 percent of the total number of copies mailed to subscribers during 
the calendar year are mailable at the rates that apply to subscriber copies 
provided that the nonsubscriber copies would have been eligible for those rates 
if mailed to subscribers. 

412.342 Over Ten Percent. Nonsubscrib& copies, including sample and complimentary 
copies, mailed at any time during the calendar year, in excess of 10 percent of 
the total number of copies mailed to subscribers during the calendar year which 
are presorted and commingled with subscriber copies are charged the 
applicable rates for Regular Periodicals. The 10 percent limitation for a 
publication is based on the total number of all copies of that publication mailed 
to subscribers during the calendar year. 
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412.35 Advertiser’s Proof Copies. One complete copy of each issue of a General 
Publication may be mailed to each advertiser in that issue as an advertiser’s 
proof copy at the rates that apply to subscriber copies, whether the advertiser’s 
proof copy is mailed to the advertiser directly or, instead, to an advertising 
representative or agent of the publication. These copies count as subscriber 
copies. 

412.36 Expired Subscriptions. For six months after a subscription has expired, 
copies of a General Publication may be mailed to a former subscriber at the 
rates that apply to copies mailed to subscribers, if the publisher has attempted 
during that six months to obtain payment, or a promise to pay, for rene:wal. 
These copies do not count as subscriber copies. 

412.4 Advertising Purposes 

A General Publication may not be designed primarily for advertising purposes. 
A publication is “designed primarily for advertising purposes:” if it: 

a. Has advertising in excess .of 75 percent in more than one-half of its issues 
during any 12-month period; 

b. Is owned or controlled by individuals or business concerns and conducted 
as an auxiliary to and essentially for the advancement of the main business 
or calling of those who own or control it; 

c. Consists principally of advertising and editorial write-ups of the advertisers; 

d. Consists principally of advertising and has only a token list of subscribers, 
the circulation being mainly free; 

e. Has only a token list of subscribers and prints advertisements bee for 
advertisers who pay for copies to be sent to a list of persons furnished by 
the advertisers; or 

f. Is published under a license from individuals or institutions and features 
other businesses of the licenser. --. 
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413 

413.1 

413.2 Minimum Pages. It must contain at least 24 pages. 

413.3 

413.31 

Advertising Purposes 

Advertising Percentage. It must devote at least 25 perclent of its pages to 
nonadvertising and not more than 75 percent to advertisements. 

413.32 

r 
4.13.4 

4l3,.41 

413.42 Nonrequester Copies 

413.421 Up to Ten Percent. Nonrequester copies, including sample and complimentary 
copies, mailed at any time during the calendar year up to and including 10 
percent of the total num’ber of copies mailed to requesters during the calendar 
year are mailable at the rates that apply to requester cop& provided that the 
nonrequester copies would have been eligible for those rates if mailed to 
requesters. 

Requester Publications 

Definition. A publication which is circulated free or mainly bee may qualify 
for Periodicals class as a Requester Publication if it meets the requirements in 
sections 411, and413.2 through413.4. 

Ownership and Control. It must not be owned or controlled by one or more 
individuals or business concerns and conducted as an auriliaty to and 
essentially for the advancement of the main business or calling of those who 
own or control it. 

Circulated to Requesters 

List of Requesters. It must have a legitimate list of persons who request the 
publication, and 50 percent or more of the copies of the publication must be 
distributed to persons making such requests. Subscription copies paid for or 
promised to be paid for, including those at or below a nominal rate may be 
included in the determination of whether the 50 percent mquest requirement is 
met. Persons will not be deemed to have requested the publication if their 
request is induced by a premium offer or by receipt of material consideration, 
provided that mere receipt of the publication is not material consideration. 
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4 13.422 Over Ten Percent. Nonrequester copies, including sample and complimentary 
copies, mailed at any time during the calendar year, in excess ‘of 10 percent of 
the total number of copies mailed to requesters during the calendar year which 
are presorted and commingled with requester copies are charged the applicable 
rates for Regular Periodicals. The 10 percent limitation for a publication is 
based on the total number of all copies of that publication mailed to requesters 
during the calendar year. 

413.43 Advertiser’s Proof Copies. One complete copy of each issue of a Requester 
Publication may be mailed to each advertiser in that issue as an advert&r’s 
proof copy at the rates that apply to requester copies, whether ~the advertiser’s 
proof copy is mailed to the advertiser directly or, instead, to an advertising 
representative or agent of the publication. These copies count as requester 
copies. 

414 Publications of Institutions and Societies 

414.1 Publisher’s Own Advertising. Except as provided in section 414.2, a 
publication which meets the requirements of sections 411 and ,412.4, and which 
contains no advertising other than that of the publisher, qualifks for Periodicals 
class as a publication of an institution or society if it is: 

a. Published by a regularly incorporated institution of learning; 

b. Published by a regularly established state institution of learning supported 
in whole or in part by public taxation; 

c. A bulletin issued by a state board of health or a state industrial development 
agency; 

d. A bulletin issued by a state conservation or fish and game agency or 
department; 

e. A bulletin issued by a sta1.e board or department of public charities and 
corrections; 

f. Published by a public or nonprofit private elementary or selcondary 
institution of learning or its administrative or governing body; 
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g. Program announcements or guides published by an educational radio or 
television agency of a state or political subdivision thereof, or by a 
nonprofit educational radio or television station; 

h. Published by or under the auspices of a benevolent or fiatemal society or 
order organized under the lodge system and having a bona fide :membership 
of not less than 1,000 persons; 

i. Published by or under the auspices of a trade(s) union; 

j. Published by a strictly professional, literary, historical, or scientific society; 
or, 

/- 

414.2 

k. Published by a church or church organization. 

General Advertising. A publication published by an institution or society 
identified in sections 414.1 h through k, may contain advertising of other 
persons, institutions, or Iconcerns, if the following additional condit:ions are 
met: 

a. The publication is originated and published to further the objectives and 
purposes of the socie:ty; 

b. Circulation is limited to: 

i. Copies mailed to members who pay either as a part of their dues or 
assessment or otherwise, not less than 50 percent of the regular 
subscription price; 

ii. Other actual subscribers: and 

iii. Exchange copies. 

c. The circulation of nonsubscriber copies, including sample and 
complimentary copies, does not exceed 10 percent of ihe total number of 
copies referred to in 414.2b. 
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415 Publications of State Departments of Agriculture 

A publication which is issued by a state department of agriculture and which 
meets the requirements of sections 411 qualifies for Periodicals class as a 
publication of a state department of agriculture if it contains no advertising and 
is published for the purpose of furthering the objects of the department. 

416 Foreign Publications 

Foreign newspapers and other periodicals of the same general charac,ter as 
domestic publications entered as Periodicals class mail may be accerlted on 
application of the publishers thereof or their agents, for transmission through 
the mail at the same rates as if published in the United Statles. This section 
does not authorize the transmission through the mail of a publication which 
violates a copyright granted by the United States. 

420 DESCRIPTION OF SUBCLASSES 

421 Regular Subclass 

421.1 Definition. The Regular subclass consists of Periodicals class mail that is not 
mailed under section 423 and that: 

a. Is presorted, marked, and presented as snecified prasaribad by the Postal 
Service; and 

b. Meets machinability, addressing, and other preparation requirements 
y the Postal Service. 

421.2 Regular Pound Rates 

An unzoned pound rate applies to the nonadvertising portimon of Regular 
subclass mail. A zoned pound rate applies to the advertising portion and may 
be reduced by applicable destination entry discounts. The pound rate postage 
is the sum of the nonadvertising portion charge and the advertising portion 
charge. 
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421..3 Regular Piece Rates 

421..31 Basic Rate Category. The basic rate category applies to all Regular subclass 
mail not mailed under section 421.32;8r 421.33, or 421.34. 

421.32 ThreeABi@Gi+ awl-G+Digit Rate Category. The lhree digit- 
category aoolies r to Regular subclass mail 
presorted to t&%-d%&- single or multiule three- ZIP 
Code destinations as pfW specified by the Postal Service. 

421.33 

421.34 

/-- 
421.4 

421.41 

421.42 

421.43 

Five-Dieit Rate Cateeorv. The five-dipit rate category auulies to Regular 
subclass mail uresorted to single or multiule five-digit ZIP Code destinations as 
specified by the Postal Service. 

Carrier Route Rate Category. The carrier route rate category applies to 
Regular subclass mail presorted to carrier routes as px+seGbed suecified by the 
Postal Service. 

Regular Subclass Discounts 

Barcoded Letter Discounts. Barcoded letter discounts iapply to letter size 
Regular subclass mail mailed under sections 421.3 1, a&421.32, and 421.33 
which bears a barcode representing not more than 11 digits (not including 
“correction” digits) as w suecified by the Postal iservice, and which 
meets the machinability, addressing, and barcoding specifications and other 
preparation requirements w suecified by the Postal Service. 

Barcoded Flats Discounts. Barcoded flats discounts apply to flat size Regular 
subclass mail mailed under sections 42 1.3 1 ~xA-42 1.32,smd 42 1.33 which bear 
a barcode representing not more than 11 digits (not including “correction” 
digits) as e suecified by the Postal Service, and meet the flats 
machinability, addressing, and barcoding specifications and other preparation 
requirements suecified -by the Postal Service. 

High Density Discount. The high density discount applj es to Regular subclass 
mail mailed under section- 421.34, presented in walk:sequence order, 
and meeting the high density and preparation requirements specified pw.e&ed 
by the Postal Service. 
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421.44 Saturation Discount. The saturation discount applies to Regular subclass 
mail mailed under section M-lGG 42 1.34, presented in walk-sequence order, 
and meeting the saturation and preparation requirements soecified pxribed 
by the Postal Service. 

421.45 Destination Entry Discounts. Destination entry discounts apply to Regular 
subclass mail which is destined for delivery within the service area of the 
destination sectional center facility (SCF) or the destination ‘delivery unit 
(DDU) in which it is entered, as defined by the Postal Service. The DlDU 
discount only applies to Carrier Route rate category mail. 

421.46 Nonadvertising Discount. The nonadvertising discount applies to all Regular 
subclass mail and is determined by multiplying the proportion of 
nonadvertising content by the discount factor set forth in Rate Schedule 421 
and subtracting that amount from the applicable piece rate. 

422 [Reserved] 

423 Preferred Rate Periodicals 

423.1 Definition. Periodicals class mail, other than publications qualifying as 
Requester Publications, may qualify for Preferred Rate Periodicals rates if it 
meets the applicable requirements for those rates in sections 423.2 through 
423.5. 

423.2 Within County Subclass 

423.21 Definition. Within County mail consists of Preferred Rate Periodicals class 
mail mailed in, and addressed for delivery within, the county where published 
and originally entered, from either the office of original entry or additional 
entry. In addition, a Within County publication must meet one of the following 
conditions: 

a. The total paid circulation of the issue is less than 10,000 (copies; 01 

-. 



.- 
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b. The number of paid copies of the issue distributed within the c13unty of 
publication is at least one more than one-half efthe total paid c:irculation of 
such issue. 

423.22 Entry in an Incorporated City. For the purpose of determining eligibility for 
Within County mail, when a publication has original entry at an independent 
incorporated city which is situated entirely within a county or which is 
contiguous to one or more counties in the same state, such incorporated city 
shall be considered to be within the county with which it is principally 
contiguous. Where more than one county is involved, the publisher will select 
the principal county. 

423.3 Nonprofit Subclass 

Nonprofit mail is Preferred Rate Periodicals class mail entered by authorized 
nonprofit organizations or associations of the following types: 

a. Religious, as defined in section 1009, 

b. Educational, as defined in section 1009, 

c. Scientific, as defined in section 1009, 

d. Philanthropic, as defmed in section 1009, 

e. Agricultural, as defined in section 1009, 

f. Labor, as defined in section 1009, 

g. Veterans’, as defined in section 1009, 

h. Fraternal, as defined in section 1009, and 

i. Associations of rural electric cooperatives, 

j. One publication, which contains no advertising (except advertising of the 
publisher) published by the official highway or development agency of a 
state, 
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423.4 Classroom Subclass 

Classroom mail is Preferred Rate Periodicals class mail which consists of 
religious, educational, or scientific publications designed specifically for use m 
school classrooms or religious instruction classes. 

423.5 Science of Agriculture 

Science of Agriculture mail consists of Preferred Rate Pe:riodicals class mail 
devoted to the science of agriculture if the total number of copies of the 
publication furnished during any 12-month period to subscribers reisiding in 
rural areas amounts to at least 70 percent of the total number of comes 
distributed by any means for any purpose. 

423.6 Preferred Rate Pound Rates 

For Preferred Rate Periodicals entered under sections 423.3,423.4 and 423.5, 
an unzoned pound rate applies to the nonadvertising portion. A zoned pound 
rate applies to the advertising portion and may be reduced by applicable 
destination entry discounts. The pound rate postage is the sum of the 
nonadvertising portion charge and the advertising portion charge. For 
Preferred Rate Periodicals entered under section 423.2, one pound rate applies 
to the pieces presorted to carrier route to be delivered within the delivery area 
of the originating post office, and another pound rate applies to all other pieces. 

423.7 Preferred Rate Piece R:ates 

423.71 Basic Rate Category. The basic rate category applies to all Preferred Rate 
Periodicals not mailed under section 423.72, e1=423.73- 423.74. 

k. Program‘announcements or guides published by an educational radio or 
television agency of a state or political subdivision thereof or by a nonprofit 
educational radio or television station, 

1. One conservation publication published by an agency of a state which is 
responsible for management and conservation of the fish or wilidlife 
resources of such state. 

-- 
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423.72 

423.73 

423.74 

423.8 
- 

423.81 

423.82 

423.83 

The-Digit Rate Category. The aree-difit rate categon 
auulies m to Preferred Rate Periodicals entered under 
sections 423.2.423.3,423,4, or 423.5 that are presorted to sinale or multiple 
three-digit B ZIP a destinations as, pras&b& snecihed 
by the Postal Service. 

Five-Digit Rate Cateporv. The five-dipit rate category ;applies to Preferred 
Rate Periodicals entered under sections 423.2.423.3, 4234. or 423.5 that are 
presorted to sinele or multiule five-digit ZIP Code destin,ations as aoecified bv 
the Postal Service. 

Carrier Route Rate Category. The carrier route rate category applies to 
Preferred Rate Periodicals presorted to carrier routes as px!s&bed specified by 
the Postal Service. 

Preferred Rate Discounts 

Barcoded Letter Discounts. Barcoded letter discounts alpply to letter size 
Preferred Rate Periodicals mailed under sections 423.71, aadA23.72. 
423.73 which bear a barcode representing not more than 11 digits (not 
including “correction” digits) as suecified pms&bedby the Postal Service, and 
which meet the machinability, addressing, and barcoding specifications and 
other preparation requirements ~FW&&A suecified by the Postal Service. 

Barcoded Flats Discounts. Barcoded flats discounts apply to flat :size 
Preferred Rate Periodicals mailed under sections 423.7 1, anM23.72. 
423.73 which bear a barcode representing not more than l 1 digits (not 
including “correction” digits) as pr%a&ed specified by the Postal Service, and 
meet the flats machinability, addressing, and barcoding specifications and other 
preparation requirements fx+s&l& snecified by the Postal Service. 

High Density Discount. The high density discount applies to Preferred Rate 
Periodicals mailed under section GW3 423.74, presented in walk-sequence 
order, and meeting the high density and preparation requirements pms&b& 
specified by the Postal Service. 
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423.84 Saturation Discount. The saturation discount applies to Preferred Rate 
Periodicals mailed under section 4ZGG 423.74, presented in walk:sequence 
order, and meeting the saturation and preparation requirements praao&& 
specified by the Postal Service. 

423.85 Destination Entry Discounts. Destination entry discounts apply to Preferred 
Rate Periodicals which are destined for delivery within the service iarea of the 
destination sectional center facility (SCF) or the destination delivery unit 
(DDU) in which they are entered, as defmed by the Postal Service. the DDU 
discount only applies to Carrier Route rate category mail; the SCF discount is 
not available for mail entered under section 423.2. 

423.86 Nonadvertising Discount. The nonadvertising discount applies to Preferred 
Rate Periodicals entered under sections 423.3,423.4, 423.5 and is determined 
by multiplying the proportion of nonadvertising content b:y the discount factor 
set forth in Rate Schedules 42 1,423.3 or 423.4 and subtracting that amount 
born the applicable piece rate. 

430 PHYSICAL LIMITATIONS 

There are no maximum size or weight limits for Periodicals class mail. 

440 POSTAGE AND PREPARATION 

441 Postage. Postage must be paid on Periodicals class mail as set forth in section 
3000. 

442 Presortation. Periodicals class mail must be presorted &HGGW&WQ& 
&regulations pms&bad suecified by the Postal Service. 

443 

443.1 

Attachments and Enclosures 

General. First-Class Mail or Standard Mail from any of tihe subclasses listed 
in section 321 (m Regular, Enhanced Carrier Route or Nonprofit) 
may be attached to or enclosed with Periodicals class mail. The piece must be 
marked as pms&bed specified by the Postal Service. Except as provided in 
section 443.2, additional postage must be paid for the attachment or enclosure 
as if it had been mailed separately. Otherwise, the entire c:ombined piece is 

-- 
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443.2 

444 

r‘ 

445 

446 

450 

451 

subject to the appropriate First-Class or section 32 1 Standard Mail rate for 
which it qualities (unless the rate applicable to the host piece is higher), or, if a 
combined piece with a section 321 Standard Mail attachment or enclosure 
weighs 16 ounces or more, the piece is subject to the Parcel Post rate for which 
it qualifies. 

Incidental First-Class Mail Attachments and Enclosures. First-Class Mail 
that meets one or more of the definitions in sections 2 10 b through d may be 
attached to or enclosed with Periodicals class mail, with postage paid on the 
combined piece at the applicable Periodicals rate, if the attachment or enclosure 
is incidental to the piece to which it is attached or with which it is enclosed. 

Identification 

Periodicals class mail must be identified as required by the Postal Service. 
Nonsubscriber and nonrequester copies, including sample and complimentary 
copies, must be identified as required by the Postal Service. 

Filing of Information 

Information relating to Periodicals class mail must be file’d with the Postal 
Service e&39 U.S.C. 3685. 

Enclosures and Supplements 

Periodicals class mail may contain enclosures and supplements as ~WSGF&~ 
specified by the Postal Service. An enclosure or supplement may rrot contain 
writing, printing or sign thereof or therein, in addition to the original print, 
except as authorized by the Postal Service, or as authorized under section 
443.2. 

DEPOSIT AND DELIVERY 

Deposit 

Periodicals class mail must be deposited at places and times designated by the 
Postal Service. 
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452 Service 

Periodicals class mail is given expeditious handling insofar ;as is practicable. 

453 Forwarding and Return 

Undeliverable-as-addressed Periodicals class mail will be forwarded or 
returned to the mailer, as pms&bed suecified by the Postal IService. 
Undeliverable-as-addressed combined First-Class and Periodicals class mail 
pieces will be forwarded or returned, as prasa&& suecified-by the Postal 
Service. Additional charges when Periodicals class mail is returned will be 
based on the applicable &and& First-Class Mail rate. 

470 RATES AND FEES 

The rates and fees for Periodicals class mail are set forth as follows: 
--. 

a. Regular 
b. Within County 
c. Nonprofit 
d. Classroom 
e. Science of Agriculture 
f. Fees 

Schedule 
421 
423.2 
423.3 
423.4 
4:2 1 

1000 

480 AUTHORIZATIONS AND LICENSES 

481 Entry Authorizations 

Prior to mailing at Periodicals rates, a publication must be authorized for entry 
as Periodicals class mail by the Postal Service. Each authorized publication 
will be granted one original entry authorization at the post office where the 
office of publication is maintained. An authorization for the establishment of 
an account to enter a publication at an additional entry of&e may be granted 
by the Postal Service upon application by the publisher. An application for 
re-entry must be made whe:never the publisher proposes to clhange the 
publication’s title, frequency of issue or office of original entry. 
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482 Preferred Rate Authorization 

Prior to mailing at Nonprofit, Classroom, and Science of Agriculture rates, a 
publication must obtain an additional Postal Service entry authorization to mail 
at those rates. 

483 Mailing by Publishers and News Agents 

Periodicals class mail may be mailed only by publishers or registered news 
agents. A news agent is a person or concern engaged in selling two or more 
Periodicals publications published by more than one publisher. News agents 
must register at all post offices at which they mail Periodicals class mail. 

484 Fees 

r‘ 

Fees for original entry, additional entry, re-entry, and registration of a news 
agent are set forth in P&e Schedule 1000. 
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RENUMBER AND AMEND SPECIAL SERVICE 
CLASSIFICATION SCHEDULES 
SS-l-6, SS-S-16, AND SS-18-20 

A,S FOLLOWS: 

SPECIAL. SERVICES 

910 ADDRESSING 

911 

911.1 

911.11. 

911.2 

911.21. 

911.22. 

911.23 

911.3 

911.31 

ADDRESS CORRECTION SERVICE 

Definition 

Address correction service is a service which provides the mailer with a 
method of obtaining the correct address, if available to the Postal Serfice, of 
the addressee or the reason for nondelivery. 

Description of Service 

Address correction service is available to mailers of postage: prepaid mail of all 
classes. Periodicals class mail will receive address correction service. 

Address correction service is not available for items address,ed for delivery by 
military personnel at any military installation. 

Address correction provides the following service to the mailer: 

a. If the correct address is known to the Postal Service, the mailer is notified 
of both the old and the correct address. 

b. If the item mailed cannot be delivered, the mailer will be notified Iof the 
reason for nondelivery. 

Requirements of the Mailer 

Mail, other than Periodicals class mail, sent under this classification schedule 
must bear a request for address correction service. 
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911.4 Fees 

911.41 There is no charge for address correction service when the correction is 
provided incidental to the return of the-in&+&a mailpiece to the sender. 

911.42 A fee, as set forth in RaGa kScheduleSG1-m, is charged for all other 
forms of address correction service. 

912 MAILLNG LIST SERVICES 

912.1 Definition 

912.11 Mailing list services include: 

a. Correction of mailing lists; 
b. vhange-of-address information for election .boards and 
registration commissions; 

c. ZIP coding of mailing lists; and 
d. Arrangement of address cards in the sequence of delniery. 

912.12 Correction of mailing list service provides current information concerning 
name and address mailing lists or correct information concerning occupant 
mailing lists. 

912.13 ZIP coding of mailing lists service is a service identifying ZIP a& addresses 
in areas served by multi-ZIP coded postal facilities. 

912.2 Description of Service 

912.21 Correction of mailing list service is available only to the following owners of 
name and address or occupant mailing lists: 

a. Members of Congress 
b. Federal agencies 
c. State government departments 
d. Municipalities 
e. Religious organizations 
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921.22 

g. Recognized charitable organizations 
h. Concerns or persons who solicit business by mail 

The following corrections will be made to name and address lists: 

a. 
b. 
C. 

d. 

Names to which mail cannot be delivered or forwarded will be deleted; 
Incorrect house, rural, or post office box numbers will be corrected; 
When permanent forwarding orders are on tile for customers who heave moved, 
new addresses including ZIP &odes will be furnished; 

New names will not be added to the list. 

912.23 The following corrections will be made to occupant lists: 

912.24 

912.25 

a. Numbers representing incorrect or non-existent street addresses will be 
deleted; 

b. Business or rural route addresses will be distinguished if known; 
c. Corrected cards or sheets will be grouped by route; 
d. Street address numbers will not be added or changed. 

Corrected lists will be returned to customers at no additional charge:. 

Residential change-of-address information is available only to election boards 
or registration commissions for obtaining, if known to the Postal Service, the 
current address of an addressee. 

912.26 ZIP coding or mailing list service provides that addresses will be sorted to the 
finest possible ZIP &ode sortation. 

912.27 Gummed labels, wrappers, envelopes,-ef Stamped Cards, or pes%ar& 
postcards indicative of one-time use will not be accepted as mailing lists. 

912.28 Sequencing of address cards service provides for the remlsval of incorrect 
addresses, notation of missing addresses and addition of missing addresses. 

912.3 Requirements of Customer 

f. Fraternal organizations 
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912.31 A customer desiring correction of a mailing list or arrangement of ,address 
cards in sequence of carrier delivery must submit the list or cards as w 
specified by -the Postal Service. 

912.4 

912.41 

Fees 

The fees for mailing list services are set forth in P&e @-Schedules 912 S&!- 
446, CP l’m. 

920 

$&l 

921.1 

921.11 

DELIVERY ALTERNATIVES 

POST OFFICE BOX AND CALLER SERVICE 

Caller Service 

Definition 

/-- 921.111 

921.12 

921.121 

Caller service is a service which permits a customer to obtain mail addressed to 
the customer’s box number through a call window or load,ing dock. 

Description of Service 

Caller service uses post office box numbers as the addres:; medium but does not 
actually use a post office box. 

921.122 Caller service is not available at certain postal facilities. 

921.123 Caller service is provided to customers on the basis of mail volume received 
and number of post office boxes used at any one facility. 

921.124 A customer may reserve a caller number. 

921.125 

921.13 -. 

Caller service cannot be used when the sole purpose is, by subsequently filing 
v change-of-address orders, to have mail forwarded or 
transferred to another address by the Postal Service free of charge. 

Fees 
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921.131 

922.2 

922.21 

922.211 

922.22 

922.22 1 

922.222 

922.223 

922.23 

922.23 1 

922.232 

Fees for caller service are set forth in-F&e &Schedule 9:a S.S-&& 

Post Offke Box Service 

Definition 

Post office box service is a service which provides the customer with a private, 
locked receptacle for the receipt of mail during the hours when the lobby of a 
postal facility is open. 

Description of Service 

The Postal Service may limit the number of post office boxes occupied by any 
one customer. 

A post office box-h&& boxholder may ask the Postal Service to deliver to the 
post office box all mail properly addressed to the holder. If the post (office box 
is located at the post office indicated on the piece, it will be: transferred without 
additional charge, m &existing regulations. 

Post office box service cannot be used when the sole purpo:re is, by 
subsequently filing w change-of-address orders, to have mail 
forwarded or transferred to another address by the Postal Service free: of 
charge. 

Fees 

Fees for post office box service are set forth in Rate &Schedule 92&4%44& 

In postal facilities primarily serving academic institutions or the students of 
such institutions, fees for post office boxes are: 

--. 
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PeriodoTboxuse--- ------- - ------ ~~Fee ---- -- ---- --_-------__ 

_______---____------____________________------.--------- 

95 days or less % semi-annual fee 
96 to 140 days % semi-annual fee 
141 to 190 days Full semi-annual ,fee 
191 to 230 days 1 L/ semi-annual fee 
23 1 to 270 days 1% semi-annual fee 
271 days to full year Full annual fee 

922.233 No refunds will be made for post office box fees paid under section 922.32. 
I-&Q% For purposes of this classification scheduleX%lB, the full annual fee 
is twice the amount of the semi-annual fee. 

.‘^ 930 PAYMENT ALTERNATIVES 

931 BUSINESS REPLY MAIL 

931.1 Definitions 

931.11 Business reply mail is a service whereby business reply cards, envelopes, cartons 
and labels may be distributed by or for a business reply distributor for use by 
mailers for sending First-Class Mail without prepayment of postage to an address 
chosen by the distributor. A distributor is the holder of a business reply license. 

931.12 A business reply mail piece is nonletter-size for purposes of Classification 
Schedule 93-l-S%& if it meets addressing and other preparation requirements, but 
does not meet the machinability requirements pres&& specified by the Postal 
Service for mechanized or automated letter sortation. 

This provision expires June 7, 1999. 

931.2 Description of Service 

/-- 
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931.21 

931.3 

931.31 

93132 A 

931.4 

931.41 

931.42 

931.43 

931.5 

931.51 

The distributor guarantees payment on delivery of postage and fees for all 
returned business reply mail. Any distributor of business reply cards, envelopes, 
cartons and labels under any one license for return to several addresses 
guarantees to pay postage and fees on any returns refused by say such addressee. 

Requirements of the Mailer 

Business reply cards, envelopes, cartons and labels must be preaddressed and 
bear business reply markings. 

Handwriting, typewriting or handstamping are not acceptable methods of 
preaddressing or marking business reply cards, envelopes, cartons, or labels. 

Fees 

The fees for business reply mail are set forth in &ate &Schedule B-SSGZ. 

To qualify as an active business reply mail advance deposit trust account, the 
account must be used solely for business reply mail and contain sufficient 
postage and fees due for returned business reply mail. 

An accounting fee as set forth in l&ate &Schedule 931 SS4 must be paid each 
year for each advance deposit business reply account at each facility w!here the 
mail is to be returned. 

Experimental Reverse Manifest Fees 

A set-up/qualification fee as set forth in &ate &Schedule-$% ss3 must be 
paid by each business reply mail advance deposit trust account holder at each 
destination postal facility at which it applies to receive nonletter-size business 
reply mail for which the postage and fees will be accounted for through a reverse 
manifest method approved by the Postal Service for ase&&ning determinine and 
verifying postage. 

A distributor must pay this fee for each business reply mail advance deposit trust 
account for which participation in the nonletter-size business reply mail 
experiment is requested. .- 
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931.j2 A nonletter-size reverse manifest monthly fee as set forth in Rate &-Schedule 
$&l SS.4 must be paid each month during which the distributor’s revserse 
manifest account is active. 

This fee applies to the (no more than) 10 advance deposit account holders which 
are selected by the Postal Service to participate in the reverse manifest nonletter- 
size business reply mail experiment and which utilize reverse manifest 
accounting methods approved by the Postal Service for ass&&&g determining 
and verifying postage and fees. 

This provision expires June 7, 1999. 

931.6 Experimental Weight Averaging Fees 

931.61 A set-up/qualification fee as set forth in R&e &Schedule 931 SS-2 must be 
paid by each business reply mail advance deposit trust account holder at each 
destination postal facility at which it applies to receive nonletter-size ‘business 
reply mail for which the postage and fees will be accounted for through a weight 
averaging method approved by the Postal Service for assert&&rg &termining 

and verifying postage. 

A distributor must pay this fee for each business reply mail advance deposit trust 
account for which participation in the nonletter-size business reply mail 
experiment is requested. 

This provision expires June 7, 1999. 

931.62 A nonletter-size weight averaging monthly fee as set forth in P&e &-Schedule 
US%2 must be paid each month during which the distributor’s weight 
averaging account is active. 

This fee applies to the (no more than) 10 advance deposit account holders which 
are selected by the Postal Service to participate in the weighlt averaging nonletter- 
size business reply mail experiment. 

This provision expires June 7, 1999. 
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931.7 

931.71 

931.72 

931.73 

931.74 

931.75 

932 

932.1 

932.11 

Authorizations and Liienses 

In order to distribute business reply cards, envelopes, cartons or labels, the 
distributor must obtain a license or licenses from the Postal Service and pay the 
appropriate fee as set forth in I&a &Schedule 931 SS-2. 

Except as provided in section 93 1.73 &&W2, the license to distribute business 
reply cards, envelopes, cartons, or labels must be obtained at each oftice from 
which the mail is offered for delivery. 

If the business reply mail is to be distributed horn a central office to be retnmed 
to branches or dealers in other cities, one license obtained t?om the post office 
where the central office is located may be used to cover all business reply mail. 

The license to mail business reply mail may be canceled for failure to pay 
business reply postage and fees when due, and for distributing business reply 
cards or envelopes &s-i& -do not conform to prescribed form, style or size. 

Authorization to pay experimental nonletter-size business reply mail fees as set 
forth in W&Schedule= -SK2 may be canceled for failure of a business 
reply mail advance depofsit trust account holder to meet the standards pms&&l 
snecified by the Postal Service for the applicable reverse manifest or weight 
averaging accounting method. 

This provision expires June 7, 1999. 

MERCHANDISE RETURN SERVICE 

Definition 

Merchandise return service provides a method whereby a shipper may 
authorize its customers to return a parcel with the postage paid by the shipper. 
A shipper is the holder of a merchandise return permit. 

932.2 Description of Service 
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932.21 

932.22 

932.3 

932.31 

932.32 

/- 932.4 

932.41 

932.42 

932.5 

Merchandise return service is available to all shippers who obtain the necessary 
permit and who guarantee payment of postage and fees for all returned parcels. 

Merchandise return service is available for the return of any parcel under the 
following classification schedules. 

a. First-Class Mail 
b. Standard Mail 

Requirements of the Mailer 

Merchandise return labels must be prepared at the shipper’s expense to 
specifications set forth by the Postal Service. 

The shipper must furnish its customer with an appropriate: merchandise return 
label. 

Other Services 

The following services may be purchased in conjunction with Merchandise 
Return Service: 

Classification 
Schedule 

a. Certificate of mailing 947ss-4 
b. Insured mail 943tx4? 
c. Registered mail 942w 
d. Special handling 952&?-H 

Only the shipper may purchase insurance service for the merchandke return 
parcel by indicating the iamount of insurance on the merchandise return label 
before providing it to the customer. The customer who returns a parcel to the 
shipper under merchandise return service may not purchase insurance. 

Fees 
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932.51 The fee for the merchandise return service is set forth in P&e FeeSchedule 
932. S&2& This fee is paid by the shipper. 

932.6 

932.61 

Authorizations and Licenses 

A permit fee as set forth in &ate Schedule 1000 must be paid once each 
calendar year by shippers utilizing merchandise return service. 

932.62 The merchandise return permit may be canceled for failure to maintain 
sufficient funds in a trust account to cover postage and fees on returned parcels 
or for distributing merchandise return labels that do not conform to Postal 
Service specifications. 

933 ON-SITE METER SETTING 

933.1 

933.11 

Definition 

On-site meter setting or examination service is a service whereby the Postal 
Service will service a postage meter at the mailer’s or meter manufacturer’s 
premises. 

933.2 

933.21 

Description of Service 

On-site meter setting or examination service is available on a scheduled basis, 
and meter setting may be& performed on an emergenc,y basis for those 
customers enrolled in the scheduled on-site meter setting or examination 
program. 

933.3 

933.31 

934 

934.1 

934.11 

Fees 

The fees for on-site meter setting or examination service are set forth in Rate 
FeeSchedule 93JSSGI. 

PREPAID REPLY MAIL 

Definition 

Prepaid renly mail is a service wherebv letter-size reulv cards and enveloues 
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934.2 Descriotion of Service 

934.3 

934.3 1 

934.32 
/-- 

914.4 

934.41 

934.42 

934.5 

934.51 

934.52 

.--- 

may be distributed by or for a prepaid reply mail distributor for use, by mailers 
for sending First-Class Mail reply letters or cards on which postage is prepaid 
by the distributor. A distributor is the holder of a prepaid reply mail license. 

When paying uostaee on outgoing mail pieces which contain reply cards and 
letters to be returned by mail under the terms of this sectilm, the distributor 
simultaneously pays postage on reply cards and letters anticipated in response 
to those outuoine pieces2 

Requirements of the Mailer 

Prepaid reply cards and envelopes must be oreaddressed and bear prepaid reply 
mail markings. 

Handwriting. typewriting, or other handstampine are not ;acceptable methods of 
preaddressina or markin.~ prepaid reply cards and envelopes. - 

Fees 

To aualify as an active prepaid reply mail account, the account must be used 
solely for prepaid reply mail and contain a balance sufficient to cover postage 
for returned prepaid reply mail. 

A monthly accounting fee as set forth in Fee Schedule 934 must be paid each 
month for each prepaid reply mail account at each facility where the mail is 
returned. 

Authorizations and Licenses 

In order to distribute prepaid reply mail cards and envelopes, the distributor 
must obtain a license or licenses from the Postal Service and pay an annual 
permit fee as set forth in Fee Schedule 934. 

Except as provided in section 934.53. the license to distribute prepaid reply 
mail cards and envelopes must be obtained at each office :From which the mail 
is offered for delivery. 
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934.53 

934.54 

940 

y4J 

941.1 

941.11 

941.2 

941.21 

941.22 

941.23 

941.24 

941.25 

941.26 

941.3 

If the prepaid reply mail is to be distributed t?om a central office to be returned 
to branches or dealers in other cities. one license obtained from the uost office 
where the central office is located may be used to cover all prepaid reply mail. 

The license to mail prepaid reulv mail may be canceled for failure to pay 
prepaid reulv mail postage and monthly fees when due, and for distributing 
business reulv cards and envelopes which do not conform ito prescribed form, 
@le. size, or thickness. 

ACCOUNTABILITY & RECEIPTS 

CERTIFIED MAIL 

Definition 

Certified mail service is a service that provides a mailing receipt to the sender 
and a record of delivery at the office of deliver&&ass. 

Description of Service 

-, 

Certified mail service is provided for matter mailed as First-Class Mail. 

If requested by the mailer, the time of acceptances by the Postal Service will be 
indicated on the receipt. 

A record of delivery is retained at the office of delivery for a specified period 
of time. 

If the initial attempt to delivery mail is not successful, a notice of ax&a-l 
attempted delivery is left at the mailing address. 

A receipt of mailing may be obtained only if the article is mailed at a post 
office, branch or station, or given to a rural carrier. 

Additional copies of the original mailing receipt may be obtained by the mailer. 

Deposit of Mail 

.- - r 
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941.31 Certified mail must be deposited in a manner specified by the Postal Service, 

941.4 Other Services 

941.41 The following services may be obtained in conjunction with mail sent under 
this classification schedule: upon payment of the applicable fees: 

a. Restricted delivery 
b. Return receipt 

Classification 
Schedule 

ass-l4 
945ss-l-b 

Fees 

The fees for certified mail service are set forth in Rata &Schedule 941. SS-$ 

REGISTERED MAIL 

Definition 

Registered mail is a service w++l+kh provides added protection to mail sent 
under theis Domestic Mail Classification Schedule-and indemnity in case of 
loss or damage. 

Description of Service 

Registered mail service is available to mailers of prepaid mail sent as First- 
Class Mail except that registered mail must meet the minimum requirements 
for length and width regardless of thickness. 

Registered mail service provides insurance up to a maximum of $25,000, 
depending upon the actual value at the time of mailing, except that insurance is 
not available for articles of no value. mr 

There is no limit on the value of articles sent under this classification schedule. 

Registered mail service is not available for: 
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a. All delivery points because of the high security required. for registered mail; 
in addition, not all delivery points will be available for registry and livability is 
limited in some geographic areas:; 
b. Mail of any class sent in combination with First-Class htail; 
c. Two or more articles tied or fastened together, unless the envelopes are 
enclosed in the same envelope or container. 

942.25 The following services are provided as part of registered m.ail service: at no 
additional cost to the mail.er: 

a. A receipt; 
b. A record of delivery, retained by the Postal Service for :x specified period of 
time; 
c. A notice of arrival will be left at the mailing address if the initial delivery 
attempt is unsuccessful; 
d. When registered mail is undeliverable-as-addressed andl cannot bl: 
forwarded, a notice of nondelivery is provided. 

A claim for complete loss of insured articles may be filed by the mailer only. 942.26 
A claim for damage or for partial loss of insured articles may be filed by either 
the mailer or addressee. 

Indemnity claims for registered mail ~+eGde~&+Ge~ 942.27 
w must 

be filed within a spe&kd period of time, specified bv the Postal Service. kom 
the date the article was mailed. 

p?2.%? 9 

942.3 Deposit of Mail 

942.31 Registered mail must be deposited in a manner specified by the Postal Service. 

942.4 Service 

942.41 Registered mail is provided maximum security. 
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942.5 

942.51 

942.6 

942.61 

942.7 
/-- 

942.71 

943 

943.1 

943.11 

943.111 

943.12 

943.121 

943.122 

Forwarding and Return 

Registered mail is forwarded and returned without additional registry charge. 

Other Services 

The following services may be obtained in conjunction with mail sent under 
this classification schedule upon payment of applicable fees: 

a. Collect on delivery 
b. Restricted delivery 
c. Return receipt 
d. Merchandise return (shippers only) 

Fees 

Classification 
Schedlule 

944s-6 
946s-s 
Nss-l-6 
Bss4Q 

The fees for registered mail are set forth in &&a FeeSchedule 942. SG%lA 

INSURANCE 

Express Mail Insurance 

Definition 

Express Mail Insurance is a service that provides the mailer with indemnity for 
loss of, rifling of, or damage to items sent by Express Mail. 

Description of Service 

Express Mail Insurance is available only for Express Mail. 

Insurance coverage is provided, for no additional charge, up to $500 per piece 
for document reconstruction, up to $5,000 per occurrence r’zgardless of the 
number of claimants. Insurance coverage is also provided, for no additional 
charge, up to $500 per piece for merchandise. Insurance coverage for 
merchandise valued at more than $500 is available for an aqdditional fee, as set 
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943.123 

943.124 

943.125 

943.13 

943.131 

943.2 

943.21 

943.211 

943.212 

943.213 

forth in Rate &Schedule 943-S@. The maximum liability for merchandise 
is $5,000 per piece. For negotiable items, currency, or bullion, the maximum 
liability is $15. 

Indemnity claims for Express Mail must be filed within a[ specified’period of 
time from the date the article was mailed. 

Indemnity will be paid under terms and conditions m%bad snecified by the 
Postal Service. 

Among other limitations pre&bed snecified by the Postal Service, indemnity 
will not be paid by the Postal Service for loss, damage or rifling: 

a. Of nonmailable matter; 
b. Due to improper packaging; 
c. Due to seizure by any agency of government; or, 
d. Due to war, insurrection or civil disturbances. 

Fees 

The fees for Express Mail Insurance service are set forth in-F&&a Fee Schedule 
943.ssG 

General Insurance 

Retail Insurance 

Gene&m Insurance is a service that provides the mailer with indemnity 
for loss of, rifling of, or damage to mailed items. 

The maximum liability of the Postal Service +u&A%pz& for Retail Insurance 
is $5000. 

Gene&-~Insurance is available for mail sent under 1,he following 
classification schedules: 

a. First-Class Mail, if containing matter A-i&u may be mailed as Standard 
Mail 
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943.214 

943.215 

943.216 

943.217 

/- 
943.22 

943,221 

b. Sin@&%+ Parcel Post, Bound Printed Matter, Spe&l, and Library 
Standard Mail 

T&+si+A Retail Insurance is not available for matter offered for sale, 
addressed to prospective purchasers who have not ordereid or authorized their 
sending. If such matter is received in the mail, payment will not be: made for 
loss, rifling, or damage. 

For Retail Insurance. the The mailer is issued a receipt for each itern mailed. 
For items insured for more than $50, a receipt of delivery is obtained by the 
Postal Service. 

For items insured for more than $50, a notice of arrival is left at the mailing 
address when the first attempt at delivery is unsuccessful. 

Retail insurance provides indemnitv for the actual value of the article at the 
time of mailing. 

Bulk Insurance 

Bulk insurance service is available for mail entered in bulk at designated 
facilities and in a manner specified bv the Postal Service and sent under the 
following classification schedules: 

a. First-Class Mail. if containing matter that may be mailted as Standard Mail, 
b. Parcel Post. Bound Printed Matter, Snecial, and Librarv subclassa 

943.222 Bulk insurance bears endorsements and identifiers specified bv the Postal 
Service. Bulk insurance mailers must meet the documentation reauirements of 
the Postal Service. 

943.223 Bulk insurance provides indemnitv for the lesser of (1) the actual value of the 
article at the time of mailing. or (2) the wholesale cost of the contents to the 
sender. 

943.23 Claims 
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943.23 1 For Retail Insurance. a A claim for complete loss may be filed by the mailer 
only, and a A claim for damage or for partial loss may be -filed by either the 
mailer or addressee. For bulk insurance. all claims must be filed bv the mailer. 

A claim for damage or loss on a parcel sent merchandise retnrn under 943.232 
classification schedule 932 @%XJj may only be filed by the purchaser of the 
insurance. 

943.233 Indemnity claims must be filed within a specified period of time liom the date 
the article was mailed. 

. . 
94?.7?! A w- 

943.24 

943.241 

943.25 

943.251 

943.252 

943.26 

943.261 

Deposit of Mail 

Retail and Bulk Insured Mail- must be deposited &-a 
~flitft~ef &specified by the Postal Service. 

Forwarding and Return 

By insuring an item, the mailer guarantees forwarding and return po:stage 
unless instructions on the piece mailed indicate that it not be forwarded or 
returned. 

Mail undeliverable as addressed sent under this part will bte returned. to the 
sender as specified by the sender or by the Postal Service. 

Other Services 

The following services, if applicable to the &class of mail, may be obtained 
in conjunction with mail sent under this part upon payment of the applicable 
fees: 

Classification 
Schedule 

a. Parcel Airlift 951ss-u 
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b. Restricted delivery (for items insured for more than $50) 946 m 
c. Return receipt (for items insured for more than $50) 945ss-l-4 
d. Special handling 952ss-l-s 
e. Merchandise return (shippers only) 932ssa3 

Fees 943.27 

943.271 The fees for Gnaral Insurance are set forth in Rata -Schedule %I& SS& 

944 COLLECT ON DELIVERY 

944.1 Definition 

944.11 Collect on Delivery (COD) service is a service wl+i& w.allows a mailer to 
mail an article for which F full or uartial navment has not 
yet been received and have the price, the cost of postage and fees, and 
anticipated or past due charges collected by the Postal Service from the 
addressee when the article is delivered. 

944.2 Description of Service 

944.21 COD service is available for collection of $600 or less upon the delivery of 
postage prepaid mail sent under the following classificatio’n schedules: 

Express Mail 
First-Class Mail 
m Parcel Post, 
Bound Printed Matter, Special, and 
Library Standard1 Mail 

944.22 Service under this schedule is not available for: 

a. Collection agency purposes; 

b. Return of merchandise about which some dissatisfaction has arisen, unless the 
new addressee has consented in advance to such return; 
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C. Sending only bills or statements of indebtedness, even though the sender may 
establish that the addressee has agreed to collection in this manner; however, 
when the legitimate COD shipment consisting of merchandise: or bill of lading, 
is being mailed, the balance due on a past or anticipated trans:&on mqy be 
included in the charges on a COD article, provided the addres,see has consented 
in advance to such action; 

d. Parcels containing moving-pictnre films mailed by exhibitors to moving- 
picture manufacturers, distributors, or exchanges; 

e. Goodsa WJtlsk have not been ordered by the addressee. 

944.23 A 

944.24 

COD service provides the mailer with insurance against loss, rifling and 
damage to the article as well as failure to receive the amount collected from the 
addressee. This provision insures only the receipt of the instrument is:;ued to 
the mailer after payment of COD charges, and is not to be construed to make 
the Postal Service liable upon any such instrument other than a Postal Service 
money order. I 

A receipt is issued to the mailer for each piece of COD mail. Additional copies 
of the original mailing receipt may be obtained by the mailer. 

944.25 Delivery of COD mail will be made in a manner specified by the Postal 
Service. If a delivery to the mailing address is not attempted or if a delivery 
attempt is unsuccessful, a notice of arrival will be left at the mailing address. 

944.26 The mailer may receive a notice of nondelivery if the piece mailed is endorsed 
appropriately. 

944.27 The mailer may designate a new addressee or alter the COD charges by 
submitting the appropriate form and by paying the appropriate fee as set forth 
in R&B FeeSchedule 944. SS-& 

944.78 I 

944.29 

A claim for complete loss may be filed by the mailer only. A claim for damage 
or for partial loss may be filed by either the mailer or addressee. 

COD indemnity claims must be filed within a specified period of time from the 
date the article was mailed. 
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944.3 

944.3 1 

Requirements of the Mailer 

COD mail must be identified as COD mail. 

944.4 

944.41 

944.5 

944.51 

Deposit of Mail 

COD mail must be deposited in a manner specified by the Postal Service. 

Forwarding and Return 

A mailer of COD mail guarantees to pay any return postage, unless otherwise 
specified on the piece mailed. 

944.52 For COD mail sent as Standard Mail, postage at the applicable rate will be 
charged to the addressee: 

a. When an addressee, entitled to delivery to the mailing address under Postal 
Service regulations, requests delivery of COD mail wh-i-sk &was refused 
when first offered for delivery; 

b. For each delivery attempt, to an addressee entitled to delivery to the mailing 
address under Postal Service regulations, after the second such attempt. 

944.6 Other Services 

944.61 The following services, if applicable to the &class of mail, may be obtained 
in conjunction with mail sent under this classification schedule upon payment 
of the applicable fee: 

Classification SchIedule 

a. Registered mail, if sent as First-Class mss-l-4 
b. Restricted delivery ss.s-l4 
c. Special ‘handling Bss-ls 

944.7 Fees 

- 944.71 Fees for COD service are set forth in-F&& &Schedule %&s&6. 
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945 

945.1 

945.11 

945.2 

945.21 

RETURN RECEIPT 

Definition 

Return receipt service is a service& A&h-provides evidence to .the mailer 
that an article has been received at the delivery address. 

Description of Service 

Return receipt service is available for mail sent under the following 
classification schedules: 

Classification Schedule 
a. Certified mail 
b. COD mail 
c. Insured mail (if insured for more than $50) 
d. Registered mail 
e. Delivers Confirmation 
& f.Ex@ress Mail 
-f, g,Priority Mail (merchandise only) 
++ h, Standard Mail (limited to merchandise sent by-s&&&&e; 

Parcel Post, Bound Printed Matter, Special, and Library Subclasses) 

945 

945.23 

Return receipt service is available at the time of mailing or, when purchased in 
conjunction with certified& COD, insured &(if for more than $50), 
registered&, or Express Mail, after mailing. 

Mailers requesting return receipt service at the time of mailing will be 
provided, as appropriate, the signature of the addressee or addressei:‘s agent, 
the date delivered, and the address of delivery, if differenlt from the address on 
the mailpiece. 

Mailers requesting return receipt service after mailing will be provided the date 
of delivery and the name of the person who signed for the: article. 
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945.25 If the mailer does not receive a return receipt within a specified period of time 
from the date of mailing, the mailer may request a duplicate return receipt. No 
fee is charged for a duplicate return receipt. 

945.3 Fees 

945.31 The fees for return receipt service are set forth in P&e &Schedule ~-%-l-G. 

946 RESTRICTED DELIVERY 

946.1 Definition 

946.11 Restricted delivery service is a service that provides a means by which a mailer 
may direct that delivery will be made only to the addressee <or to someone 
authorized by the addressee to receive such mail. 

946.2 Description of Service 

946.21 This service is available for mail sent under the following classification 
schedules: 

‘Classification 
Schedule 

a. Certified Mail NssA 
b. CODMail 944ss-6 
c. Insured Mail (if insured for more than $50) 943&w 
d. Registered Mail 942ss-M 

946.22 Restricted delivery is available to the mailer at the time of mailing or after 
mailing. 

946.23 Restricted delivery service is available only to natural persons speci-fied by 
name. 

A record of delivery will be retained by the Postal Service for a specified 946.24 
period of time. 

-i- 
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946.25 Failure to provide restricted delivery service when requested after mailing, due 
to prior delivery, is not grounds for refund of the fee or communications 
charges. 

946.3 

946.3 1 

Fees 

The fees for restricted delivery service are set forth in Rate &Schedule 946 
s&l4 

947 

947.1 

947.11 

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 

Definition 

Certificate of mailing service is a service w&ah mfumishes evidence of 
mailing. 

947.2 

947.21 

Description of Service 

Certificate of mailing service is available to mailers of matter sent under the 
classification schedule to any class of mail. 

947.22 A receipt is not obtained upon delivery of the mail to the addressee. No record 
of mailing is maintained at the post office. 

941.23 Additional copies of certificates of mailing may be obtained by the mailer. 

947.3 

1 947.3 

947.4 

Other Services 

The following services, if applicable to the &class of mail, may be obtained 
in conjunction with mail sent under this classification schezdule upon payment 
of the applicable fees: 

a. Parcel airlift 
b. Special handling 

Fees 

Classification 
Schedule 
y5Js-43 
y5J s-l4 



Docket No. R!37-1 
Proposed Changes to Domestic Mail Classification Schedule 

Attachment A Page 89 

947.41 

948 

948.1 

948.11 

948.2 

948.21 

./-- 948.22 

948.23 

948.74 I 

948.3 

948.31 

The fees for certificate of mailing service are set forth in R&e &Schedule 947 
s&l. 

DELIVERY CONFIRMATION 

Definition 

Delivery confirmation service provides confirmation to the mailer that an 
article was delivered or that a deliverv attempt was made. 

Description of SeITiCe 

Deliver-v confirmation service is available for Prioritv Mail. Parcel Post, Bound 
Printed Matter. Special Standard Mail. and Library Mail. 

Deliver-v confirmation service may be reouested at the time of mailing only. 

Mail for which deliver-v confirmation service is requested must meet any 
preparation reauirements established bv the Postal Service. and bear a barcode 
specified by the Postal Service. 

Matter for which deliver-v confirmation service is reouested must be deposited 
in a manner specified bv the Postal Service. 

Fees 

Delivery confirmation service is subiect to the fees set fonh in Fee Schedule 
948. 

PARCEL HANDLING 

PARCEL AIRLIFT (PAL) 

Definition 



Docket No. R97-1 
Proposed Changes to Domestic Mail Classification Schedule 

Attachment A Page 90 _ 

951.11 Parcel airlift service is a service that provides for air transportation of parcels 
on a space available basis to or fi-om military post offices outside the 
contiguous 48 states. 

951.2 

951.21 

Description of Service 

Parcel airlift service is available for mail sent under the following classification 
schedule: 

Standard Mail 

951.3 

951.31 

Physical Limitations 

The minimum physical limitations established for the mail sent under the 
classification schedule for which postage is paid apply to parcel airlift mail. In 
no instance may ,me parcel exceed 30 pounds in weight, or 60 inche:s in length 
and girth combined. 

951.4 

951.41 

Requirements of the MYailer 

Mail sent under this schedule must be endorsed as presk!+ad snecified by 
w@&&+ the Postal Service. 

951.5 

951.51 

951.6 

951.61 

Deposit of Mail 

PAL mail must be deposited in a manner specified by the Postal Service 

Forwarding and Return 

PAL mail sent for delivery outside the contiguous 48 states is forwarded as set 
forth in section 2030 of the General Defmitions, Terms and Conditions. PAL 
mail sent for delivery within the contiguous 48 states is forwarded or returned 
as set forth in section 353 as appropriate. 

95I.7 Other Services 



Docket No. R97-1 
Proposed Changes to Domestic Mail Classification Schedule 

Attachment A Page 91 

951.71 

951.8 

951.81 
I- 

952 

952.1 

952.11 

952.2 

952.21 

The following services, if applicable to the &class of mail, may be obtained 
in conjunction with mail. sent under this classification schsedule upon payment 
of the applicable fees: 

Classification 

a. Certificate of mailing 
b. Insured mail 
c. Restricted delivery (if insured for more 

than $50) 
d. Return receipt (if insured for more 

than $50) 
e. Special handling 

Fees 

Schedule 
y4Jss4 
943SW 

946sa4 

945SW-6 
~Ss-l-8 

The fees for parcel airlift service are set forth in R&a &.Schedule mSS’-l3. 

SPECIAL HANDLING 

Definition 

Special handling service is a service that provides preferential handling to the 
extent practicable during dispatch and transportation. 

Description of Service 

Special handling service is available for mail sent under the following 
classification schedules: 

a. First-Class Mail 
b. &&n&&k+ Parcel Post, 

Bound Printed Matter, 
Special, and Library Standard Mail 

.- 
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952.22 

952.3 

952.31 

952.4 

952.41 

952.5 

952.51 

952.6 

952.61 

Special handling service is mandatory for matter w&b th&&requires special 
attention in handling, transportation and delivery. 

Requirements of the Mailer 

Mail sent under this schedule must be identified as pr+%kkd soecified by & 
Postal Service-. 

Deposit of Mail 

Mail sent under this schedule must be deposited in a manner ft4 
specified by the Postal Service. 

Forwarding and Return 

If undeliverable as addressed, special handling mail that is forwarded to the 
addressee is given special handling without requiring payment of an additional 
handling fee. However, additional postage at the applicable iStandard Mail rate 
is collected on delivery. 

Other Services 

The following services,if anolicable to the subclass of mail, may be obtained 
in conjunction with mail sent under this classification sched.ule upon payment 
of the applicable fees: 

Classikation 
Schedule 

a. COD mail 
b. Insured mail 
c. Parcel airlift 
d. Merchandise return (shippers only) 

952.7 Fees 

952.71 The fees for special handling service are set forth in R&e FeeSchedule a-+%- 
-l-& 

_---- -- 
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960 STAMPED PAPER 

STAMPED ENVELOPES 

Definition 

Plain stamped envelopes and printed stamped envelopes are envelopes with 
postage thereon offered for sale by the Postal Service. 

Description of Service 

Stamped envelopes are available for: 

a. First-Class Mail within the first rate increment. 
b. Standard Mail mailed at a minimum par+ase per niece rate as prasa&& 
specified by the Postal Service. 

Printed stamped envelopes may be obtained by special request. 

Fees 

The fees for stamped envelopes are set forth in &&ate FeeSchedule mS.S-l+. 

STAMPED CARDS 

Definition 

Stamped Cards. Stamped Cards are cards with postage imprinted or 
impressed on them and supplied by the Postal Service for the transmission of 
messages. 

Double Stamped Cards. Double Stamped Cards consist of two attacheh 
cards, one of which may be detached by the receiver and returned by mail as a 
single Stamped Card. 

Description of Service. Stamped Cards are available for First-Class Mail. 
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962.3 Fees. The fees for Stamped Cards are set forth in IGate BeSchedule 962 
cc. 

970 

971 

971.1 

971.11 

POSTAL MONEY ORDERS 

DOMESTIC POSTAL MONEY ORDERS 

Definition 

Money order service is a service that provides the customer with an instrument 
for payment of a specified sum of money. 

971.2 

971.21 

Description of Service 

The maximum value for which a domestic postal money order may be 
purchased is $700. Other restrictions on the number or dollar value of postal 
money order sales, or both, may be imposed &+xe&~~+ under -- 
regulations lxes&kd suecified by law or the Postal Servimce. 

971.22 A receipt of purchase is provided at no additional cost. 

971.23 The Postal Service will replace money orders that are spoiled or incorrectly 
prepared, regardless of who caused the error, without charge if replzed on the 
date originally issued. 

971.24 If a replacement money order is issued after the date of original issue because 
the original was spoiled or incorrectly prepared, the applicable money order fee 
may be collected from the customer. 

971.25 

97 

971.31 

Inquiries and/or claims may be filed by the purchaser, payee, or endorsee. 

Fees 

The fees for domestic postal money orders are set forth in ,&ate &Schedule 
y-lJss-& 

.- 
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AMEND THE DOMESTIC MAIL CLASSIFICATION 
SCHEDULE AS FOLLOWS: 

r-- 

1000 

1001 

1002 

1003 

1003.1 

GENERAL DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

GENERAL DEFINITCONS 

As used in this Domestic Mail Classification Schedule, the following terms 
have the meanings set forth below. 

Advertising 

Advertising includes all material for the publication of which a valuable 
consideration is paid, accepted, or promised, that calls attention to something 
for the purpose of getting people to buy it, sell it, seek it, or support it. If an 
advertising rate is charged for the publication of reading matter or other 
material, such material shall be deemed to be advertising. Articles, items, and 
notices in the form of reading matter inserted in accordance with a custom or 
understanding that textual matter is to be inserted for the advertiser or his 
products in the publication in which a display advertisemsent appears are 
deemed to be advertising. If a publisher advertises his own services or 
publications, or any other business of the publisher, whether in the form of 
display advertising or editorial or reading matter, this is deemed to be 
advertising. 

Aspect Ratio 

Aspect ratio is the ratio of width to length. 

Bills and Statements of Account 

A bill is a request for payment of a definite sum of money claimed ~to be owing 
by the addressee either to the sender or to a third party. The mere a.ssertion of 
an indebtedness in a definite sum combined with a demand for payment is 
sufficient to make the message a bill. 
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1003.2 A statement of account is the assertion of the existence of :a debt in a defmite 
amount but which does not necessarily contain a request ojr a demand for 
payment. The amount may be immediately due or may become due after a 
certain time or upon demand or billing at a later date. 

1003.3 A bill or statement of account must present the particulars of an indebtedness 
with sufficient definiteness to inform the debtor of the amount he& is 
required to pay -for acouittal of the debt. However, neither a 
bill nor a statement of account need state the precise amount if it contains 
sufficient information to enable the debtor to determine the exact amount of the 
claim asserted. 

1003.4 A bill or statement of account is not the less a bill or statement of account 
merely because the amount claimed is not in fact owing or may not be legally 
collectible. 

1004 Girth 

1005 

Girth is the measurement around a piece of mail at its thickest part. 

Invoice 

An invoice is a writing showing the nature, quantity, and c’ost or price of items 
shipped or sent to a purchaser or consignor. 

1006 Permit Imprints 

Permit imprints are printed indicia indicating postage has been paid by the 
sender under the permit nmber shown. 

1007 Preferred Rates 

Preferred rates are the reduced rates established pursuant to 39 U.S.C. 3626. 

1008 ZIP Code 

The ZIP Code is a numeric code that facilitates the sortation, routing, and 
delivery of mail. 
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1009 Nonprofit Organizations and Associations 

Nonprofit organizations or associations are organizations or associations not 
organized for profit, none of the net income of which benefits any pjrivate 
stockholder or individual, and which meet the qualifications set forth below for 
each type of organization or association. The standard of primary purpose 
applies to each type of organization or association, except veterans’ and 
tiatemal. The standard of primary purpose requires that each type of 
organization or association be both organized and operated for the primary 
purpose. The following are the types of organizations or associations +43-i& 
wmay qualify as authorized nonprofit organizations or :associations. 

a. Religious. A nonprofit organization whose primary purpose is one of the 
following: 

.-. 

i. 

ii. 

To conduct religious worship; 

TO support the religious activities of nonprofit organizations whose 
primary purpose is to conduct religious worship; 

111. To perform instruction in, to disseminate information about, or 
otherwise to further the teaching of particular religious faiths or 
tenets. 

b. Educational. A nonprofit organization whose primary purpose is one of the 
following: 

i. The instruction or tiaining of the individual for the purpose of 
improving or developing his capabilities; 

ii. The instruction of the public on subjects beneficial to the 
community. 

An organization may be educational even though it advocates a particular 
position or viewpoint so long as it presents a sufficiently full, and fair 
exposition of the pertinent facts to permit an individual or the public to form an 
independent opinion or conclusion. On the other hand, an organization is not 
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educational if its principal function is the mere presentation of unsupported 
opinion. 

c. Scientific. A nonprofit organization whose primary purpose is one of the 
following: 

i. 

ii. 

To conduct research in the applied, pure or natural sciences; 

To disseminate systematized technical information dealing with 
applied, pure or natural sciences. 

d. Philanthropic. A nonprofit organization primarily org;mized and operated 
for purposes beneficial to the public. Philanthropic organizations include, 
but are not limited to, organizations mwhi4-r are organized for: 

i. Relief of the poor and distressed or of the underprivileged; 

ii. Advancement of religion; 

111. Advancement of education or science; 

iv. 
\ 

V. 

Erection or maintenance of public buildings, monuments, or works; 

Lessening of the burdens of government; 

vi. Promotion of Isocial welfare by organizations designed to accomplish 
any of the above purposes or: 

(A) To lessen neighborhood tensions; 
(B) To eliminate prejudice and discrimination; 
(C) To defend human and civil rights secured b#ly law; or 
(D) To combat community deterioration and juvenile delinquency. 

e. Agricultural. A nonprofit organization whose primary purpose is the 
betterment of the conditions of those engaged in agriculture purxrits, the 
improvement of the grade of their products, and the development of a 
higher degree of efficiency in agriculture. The organiz:ation may advance 
agricultural interests through educational activities; the holding of 
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agricultural fairs; the collection and dissemination of information 
concerning cultivation of the soil and its fruits or the harvesting of marine 
resources; the rearing, feeding, and management of livestock, poultry, and 
bees, or other activities relating to agricultural interests. The term 
agricultural nonprofit organization also includes any nonprofit organization 
whose primary purpose is the collection and dissemination of information 
or materials relating to agricultural pursuits. 

f. Labor. A nonprofit organization whose primary purpose is the betterment 
of the conditions of workers. Labor organizations include, but are not 
limited to, organizations in which employees or workmen participate, 
whose primary purpose is to deal with employers concerning grievances, 
labor disputes, wages, hours of employment and working conditions. 

g. Veterans’. A nonprofit organization of veterans of the armed services of 
the United States, or an auxiliary unit or society of, or a trust or foundation 
for, any such post or organization. 

h. Fraternal. A nonprofit organization whi& wmeets all efthe following 
criteria: 

i. Has as its primary purpose the fostering of brotherhood and mutual 
benefits among its members; 

ii. Is organized under a lodge or chapter system with a representative 
form of government; 

111. Follows a ritualistic format: and 

iv. Is comprised of members who are elected to membership by vote of 
the members. 

2000 DELIVERY OF MAIL 

2010 Delivery Services 

The Postal Service provides the following modes of delivery: 
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a. Caller service. The fees for caller service are set forth in R&e &Schedule 
~ss-l-0. 

b. Carrier delivery service. 

c. General delivery. 

d. Post office box service. The fees for post office box service are set forth in 
I&a&a FeeSchedule 922SS-l-Q. 

2020 

2021 

2022 

2023 

2024 

2025 

Conditions of Delivery 

General. Except as provided in section 2022, mail will be delivered as 
addressed unless the Postal Service is instructed otherwise by the addressee in 
writing. 

Refusal of Delivery. The addressee may control delivery of his mail. The 
addressee may refuse to accept a piece of mail that does r-rot require a delivery 
receipt ;at the time it is offered for delivery or after delivery by returning it 
unopened to the Postal Service. For mail that requires a d’elivery receipt, the 
addressee or his representative may read and copy the name of the sender of 
registerled, insured, certified, COD, return receipt, and Express Mail prior to 
accepting delivery. Upon signing the delivery receipt the piece may not be 
returned to the Postal Service without the applicable postage and fees affixed. 

Receipt,. If a signed receipt is required, mail will be delivered to the addressee 
(or competent member of his family), to persons who custsomarily receive his 
mail or ‘to one authorized in writing to receive the addressee’s mail. 

Jointly Addressed Mail. Mail addressed to several persons may be delivered 
to any one of them. When two or more persons make conflicting orders for 
delivery for the same mail, the mail shall be delivered as determined by the 
Postal Service. 

Commercial Mail Receiving Agents. Mail may be delivered to a commercial 
mail receiving agency on behalf of another person. In consideration of delivery 
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2026 

2027 

/- 

2030 

203 1 

2032 

2033 

i-. 

of mail to the commercial agent, the addressee and the age,nt are considered to 
agree that: 

a. No v change-of-address order will be filed with the post 
office when the agency relationship is terminated; 

b. When remailed by the commercial agency, the mail is s:ubject to payment of 
new postage. 

Mail Addressed To Organizations. Mail addressed to governmental units, 
private organizations, corporations, unincorporated firms or partnerships, 
persons at institutions (including but not limited to hospitals and prisons), or 
persons in the military is delivered as addressed or to an authorized agent. 

Held Mail. Mail will be held for a specified period of time at the office of 
deliverv+d&ss upon request of the addressee, unless the mail: 

a. Has contrary retention instructions; 

b. Is perishable; or 

c. Is registered, COD, insured, return receipt, certified, or Express Mail for 
which the normal retention period expires before the end of the specified 
holding period. 

Forwarding and Return 

Forwarding. Forwarding is the transfer of undeliverable-as-addressed mail to 
an address other than the one originally placed on the~piaaamailniece. All 
post offices will honor v chanae-of-addres%orders for a period 
of time specified by the Postal Service. 

Return. Return is the delivery of undeliverable-as-addressed mail to the 
sender. 

Applicable Provisions. The provisions of sections 150, 25;0, 350 and 450 
apply to forwarding and return. 
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2034 Forwarding for Postal Service Adjustments. When mail is forwarded due to 
Postal Service adjustments (such as, but not limited to, the discontinuance of 
the post office of original address, establishment of,rural carrier service, 
conversion to city delivery service thorn rural, readjustme:nt of delivery 
districts, or renumbering of houses and renaming of streets), it is forwarded 
without charge for a period of time specified by the Postal Service. 

3000 POSTAGE AND PREPARATION 

3010 Packaging 

Mail must be packaged so that: 

a. The contents will be protected against deterioration 01~ degradation; 

b. The contents will not be likely to damage other mail, IPostal Service 
employees or property, or to become loose in transit; 

c. The package surface must be able to retain postage indicia and address 
markings; 

d. It is, marked by the mailer with a material ur166k thatis & neither readily 
water soluble nor +vl+i& 6az+be easily rubbed off or smeared, and the 
marking will be sharp and clear. 

3020 Envelopes 

Paper used in the preparation of envelopes may not be of a brilliant color. 
Envelopes must be prepared with paper strong enough to withstand normal 
handling. 

3030 Payment of Postage and Fees 

Postage must be fully prepaid on all mail at the time of mailing, except as 
authorized by law or this Schedule. Except as authorized by law or this 
Schedule, mail deposited without prepayment of sufficient postage shall be 
delivered to the addressee subject to payment of deficient postage, returned to 

.- 
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the sender, or otherwise disposed of as iwessfieee suecifi’ed by the Postal 
Service. Mail deposited without any postage affixed will be returned to the 
sender without any attempt at delivery. 

3040 Methods for Paying Postage and Fees 

Postage for all mail may be prepaid by -postage meter indicia, adhesive 
stamps, or permit imprint, unless otherwise limited or pre~&&~I specified by 
the Postal Service. The following methods of paying postage and fees require 
prior authorization from the Postal Service: 

a. Permit imprint, 

b. Pos,tage meter, 

c. Precanceled stamps, precanceled envelopes, and mailer’s precanceled 
postmarks. 

T--- 
3050 Authorization Fees 

Fees for authorization to use a permit imprint are set forth in &&a-Schedule 
1000. -No fee is charged for authorization to use a postage meter. Fees for 
setting postage meters are set forth in P&e &Schedule !>33SS-l2. No fee is 
charged for authorization to use precanceled stamps, precanceled envelopes or 
mailer’s precanceled postmark. 

3060 Special Service Fees 

Fees for special services may be prepaid in any manner appropriate for the 
class of mail indicated or as otherwise pms&bad suecified by the Postal 
Service:. 

3070 Marking of Unpaid Mail 

Matter authorized for mailing without prepayment of postage must bear 

markings identifying the class of mail service. Matter so ,marked will be billed 
at the applicable rate ofpostage set forth in this Schedule. Matter not so 
marked will be billed at the applicable First-Class rate of postage. 
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3080 Refund of Postage 

When postage and special service fees have been paid on mail for which no 
service is rendered for the postage or fees paid, or collected in excess of the 
lawful rate, a refund may be made. There shall be no refund for registered, 
COD, general insurance, and Express Mail Insurance fees when the article is 
later withdrawn by the mailer after acceotance. In cases involving returned 
articlels improperly accepted because of excess size or weight, a refund may be 
made. 

3090 Calculation of Postage 

When a rate schedule contains per piece and per pound rates, the postage shall 
be the sum of the charges produced by those rates. When a rate schedule 
contains a minimurn~ per uiece rate and a pound rate, the postage shall 
be the greater of the two. When the computation of postage yields a kaction of 
a cent in the charge, the next higher whole cent must be paid. 

40010 POST.AL ZONES 

4010 Geographic Units of Area 

In the determination of postal zones, the earth is considered to be divided into 
units of area thirty minutes square, identical with a quarter of the area formed 
by the intersecting parallels of latitude and meridians of leongitude. The distance 
between these units of area is the basis of the postal zones. 

4020 Measurement of Zone Distances 

The distance upon which zones are based shall be measured from the center of 
the unit of area containing the dispatching sectional center facility or multi-ZIP 
coded post office not serviced by a sectional center facility. A post office of 
mailing and a post office of delivery shall have the same zone relationship as 
their respective sectional center facilities or multi-ZIP coded post offices, but 
this shall not cause two post offices to be regarded as within the same local 
zone. 
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4030 

4031 

4032 

403’3 

4034 

4035 

4036 

. 4037 

4038 

Definition of Zones 

Local Zone. The local zone applies to mail mailed at any post office for 
delivery at that office; at any city letter carrier office or at any point within its 
delivery limits for delivery by carriers from that office; at any office t%om 
which a rural route starts for delivery on the same route; ,and on a rural route 
for delivery at the office horn which the route starts or on any rural route 
starting from that office. 

First Zone. The first zone includes all territory within the quadrangle of entry 
in conjlunction with every contiguous quadrangle, representing an area having a 
mean radial distance of approximately 50 miles from the center of a given unit 
of area.. The fast zone also applies to mail between two post offices in the 
same sectional center. 

Second Zone. The second zone includes all units of area outside the first zone 
lying in whole or in part within a radius of approximately 150 miles from the 
center of a given unit of area. 

Third Zone. The third zone includes all units of area omside the second zone 
lying in whole or in part within a radius of approximately 300 mile:; t?om the 
center of a given unit of area. 

Fourth Zone. The fourth zone includes all units of area outside the third zone 
lying in whole or in part within a radius approximately 600 miles from the 
center (of a given unit of area. 

Fifth Zone. The fifth zone includes all units of area outside the fourth zone 
lying in whole or in part within a radius of approximately 1,000 mil,es from the 
center of a given unit of area. 

Sixth Zone. The sixth zone includes all units of area outs:ide the tifti zone 
lying in whole or in part within a radius of approximately 1,400 miles from the 
center of a given unit of area. 

Seventh Zone. The seventh zone includes all units of area outside -the sixth 
zone lying in whole or in part within a radius of approximately 1,800 miles 
t?om the center of a given unit of area. 
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4039 Eighth Zone. The eighth zone includes all units of area outside the seventh 
zone. 

404.0 Zoned Rates 

Except as provided in section 4050, rates according to zone apply for 
zone-rated mail sent between Postal Service facilities including &med 
@Forces post offices, wherever located. 

4050 APOLFPO Mail 

4051 General. Except as provided in section 4052, the rates of postage for 
zone-rated mail transported between the United States, or the possessions or 
territories of the United States, on the one hand, and Army, Air Force and Fleet 
Post Offices on the other, or among the latter, shall be the applicable zone rates 
for mail between the place of mailing or delivery and the: city of the postmaster 
serving the Army, Air Force or Fleet Post Office concerned. 

4052 Transit Mail. The rates of postage for zone-rated mail +v&& &is mailed at 
or addressed to an Armed Forces- post office and &i& is 
transported directly to or horn Armed Forces amae&&+ as post offices at the 
expense of the Department of Defense, without transiting any of the 48 
contiguous states (including the District of Columbia), shall be the applicable 
local zone rate; provided, however, that if the distance from the place of 
mailing to the embarkation point or the distance from the: point of debarkation 
to the place of delivery is greater than the local zone for such mail, postage 
shah be assessed on the basis of the distance from the pla[ce of mailing to the 
embarkation point or the distance from the point of debarkation to the place of 
delivery of such mail, as the case may be. The word “transiting” does not 
include enroute transfers at coastal gateway cities which are necessary to 
transport military mail directly between military post offices. 
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50101 First-Class and Express Mail 

Matter mailed as First-Class Mail or Express Mail shall be treated as mail 
which is sealed against postal inspection and shall not be opened except as 
authorized by law. 

50201 All Other Mail 

Matter not paid at First-Class Mail or Express Mail rates must be wrapped or 
secured in the manner w sDecified by the Postal Service so that the 
contents may be examined. Mailing of sealed items as other than First-Class 
Mail or Express Mail is considered consent by the sender ‘to the postal 
inspection of the contents. 

6000 MAILABLE MATTER 
- 

6010 Genera,1 

Mailable matter is any matter which: 

a. Is not mailed in contravention of 39 U.S.C. Chapter 30, or of 17 U.S.C. 
109; 

b. While in the custody of the Postal Service is not likely to become damaged 
itself, to damage other pieces of mail, to cause injury to Postal Service 
employees or to damage Postal Service property; and 

c. Is not mailed contrary to any special conditions or limitations placed on 
transportation or movement of certain articles, when imposed under law by 
the 1J.S. Department of the Treasury; U.S. Department of Agriculture; U.S. 
Department of Commerce; U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, 
U.S. Department of Transportation; and any other Federal department or 
agency having legal jurisdiction. 
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6020 Minimum Size Standards 

The following minimum size standards apply to all mailable matter: 

a. All items must be at least 0.007 inches thick, and 

b. all items, other than keys and identification devices, which are 0.25 inch 
thick or less must be 

i. rectangular in shape, 

ii. at least 3.5 inches in width, and 

iii. at least 5 inches in length. 

6030 Maximum Size and Weight Standards 

Where applicable, the maximum size and weight standards for each class a 
subclass of mail are set forth in sections 130, 230 322.16 1-I 330 and 430. 
Additional limitations may be applicable to specific subclasses, and rate and 
discount categories as provided in the eligibility provisions for each subclass or 

category. 
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REQUESTED CHANGES IN RATES AND FEES AND PHASING SCHEDULES 

In conjunction with the requested changes in the Domestic Mail Classification 

Schedule (DMCS) set forth in Attachment A, the Postal Service also is requesting that 

the Commission recommend corresponding changes to the attendant rate and fee 

schedules. 

Rate and fee schedules were last amended in part by the Dec:ision of the 

Governors on the Further Recommended Decision of the Postal Rate Commission on 

Classroom Mail, Docket No. MC96-2 (Classroom Decision), as implemented by 

Resollution 97-9 of the Board of Governors; the Decision of the Governors on the 

Recommended Decision of the Postal Rate Commission on Special S’ervices Fees and 

P Classiifications, Docket No. MC96-3 (Special Services Decision), as implemented by 

Resolution 97-7 of the Board of Governors; and the Decision of the Governors on the 

Recommended Decision of the Postal Rate Commission on the Experimental Nonletter- 

SBs E3usiness Reply Mail Categories and Fees, Docket No. MC97-1 (BRM Decision), as 

implelmented by resolution 97-8 of the Board of Governors. The current rate and fee 

schedules (which are published in part at 39 CFR Part 3001, subpart C, appendix A, and 

in part as the Attachment to the Classroom Decision (62 Fed. Reg. 33,142), in part as 

Attachment B to the Special Services Decision (62 Fed. Reg. 26,099) in part as 

Attachment B to the BRM Decision (26 Fed. Reg. 25,756) and in part as Attachment B 

to the Decision of the Governors of the United States Postal Service on the 

Recommended Decision of the Postal Rate Commission on NonprofIt Standard Mail, 
/-- 

Nonprofit Enhanced Carrier Route Standard Mail, Nonprofit Periodicals, and Wrthin 
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County Periodicals, Docket No. MC96-2 (61 Fed. Reg. 42,464)), are incorporated by 

reference in this Request. 

The schedules in this attachment present both proposed and (current rates and 

fees. Iln general, for existing schedules, proposed additions to text in the schedules or 

notes ;are underlined; proposed deletions are stricken. New or renamed categories 

within existing schedules are underlined. Rate or fee categories that are either 

renamed or proposed for elimination are either stricken or are assigned the acronym 

“NA’” in the proposed rate or fee column. Special service schedules are renumbered 

according to the numbering system presented in Attachment A. 

The proposed rate and fee schedules in this attachment cont:ain both the 

proposed and the current rate levels for the preferred rate categories. The current 

levels are those approved by the Governors in Docket No. R94-1 for Library Rate, and 

in D’ocket No. MC96-2 for all other preferred subclasses. The proposed rates in this 

attach,ment are the “full” Step 6 rates pursuant 39 USC. 5 3626. Section 3626 

establishes a six-year phasing period, at the end of which the markups for preferred 

subclasses will be set at one-half the markups for the corresponding commercial 

subclasses. The test year in this proceeding is FY 98, during which the markups for 

preferred subclasses are to be set at 5/12’“* the markups for the corresponding 

commercial subclasses. The phasing schedules provided on pages. 67-74 of this 

attachment show the proposed rates at levels 5 and 6 and are provided for 

---T 

---.- _- 
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The requested changes in the rate and fee schedules are as follows: 



Docket No. R97-1 
Proposed Rates and Fees 

Attachment B at page 4 

PRCKSEDFMES 

WigtiM ?.&duk121 S&e&k122 

-4 
(Pounds) 

*my 
Airport 

Schedule 123 Sdm,ule 123 

0sigre.i 

0.5 89.25 $350 $10.50 
1 10.75 13.50 12.25 
2 11.25 13.75 12.25 
3 12.25 15.50 14.W 
4 13.25 17.35 15.75 
5 14.25 19.75 17.75 
6 15.X 22.75 21.03 
7 1650 24.25 zzx 
a 17.75 25.75 2350 
9 19.00 27.25 24.50 

10 20.25 28.75 25.75 
11 21.50 29.50 26.75 
12 22.75 30.25 2775 
13 24~00 31.W 29.03 
14 25.25 31.75 31.W 
15 26.x 32.50 32.M 
16 27.75 34.00 33.10 
17 29.w 34.x 34.5 
18 30.25 3%x 3503 
19 31.50 37.x 3745 
20 3275 3550 38.25 
21 34x 40.50 4o.w 
22 3525 41W 41.W 
23 36.50 43.w 42.W 
24 37.75 44.00 43w 
25 39.M 45.w 44w 
26 40.25 46.50 4520 
27 41.x 47.50 46.65 
28 4275 48.50 48.10 
29 44.w 50.M 49.55 

30 4525 50.80 51.W 
31 46.50 52.25 52.50 
32 47.60 53.70 53.95 
33 48.70 55.15 5540 
34 49.80 Efiffi s5as 
35 50.90 ES.10 5330 

cuRREM Fl4TEs 
SdMuk121 SdleduklzL Shduk123Sb&ule12 

QLstonEd PmtmcetoPcslmceto 

$11.25 

14.95 
18.00 
a.25 
22.w 
24.75 
27.M 
2775 
28.X 
3o.W 
30.75 
31.50 
32.25 
33.50 
34.25 
35.50 
37.w 
38.50 
40.00 
40.75 
42.W 
43.W 
4425 
45.70 
47.20 
48.65 
50.10 
51.55 
53.03 
54.M 
5595 
5740 
58.85 
60.30 
61.75 

$9.00 
10.50 
IO.50 
11.95 
1305 
14.15 
15.x 
1640 
17.55 
1870 
19.75 
20.93 
22.05 
2315 
24.30 
25.40 
26.50 
27.65 
2ml 
29.90 
31.w 
32.15 
33.25 
3440 
3555 
35.w 
37.75 
38.75 
39.70 
40.65 
41.60 
42.50 
43.45 
4440 
45.30 
46.30 

cksignzc 

$945 510.25 
14.00 12.05 
14.w 12.05 
16.15 14.20 
18.30 16.35 
20.45 1850 
24.x 2235 
25.40 2345 
26.50 24.55 
27.60 25.65 
28.75 26.80 
29.80 27.85 
30.95 29.00 
32.00 30.10 
3315 31.20 
34.25 32.X 
35.35 3345 
35.50 x.55 
37.60 35.65 
38.70 s.75 
39.80 ,37 a5 
a.95 39.w 
42.W 40.05 
a.15 41.2-c 
44.25 42.30 
452.5 .4x40 
46.45 ~44.50 
47.55 45.65 
466s a.70 
49.80 47.85 
50.90 49.w 
52.W 50.05 
53.15 51.20 
54.20 52.25 
55.35 53.40 
56.45 54.50 

$10.75 
15.w 
15.00 
17.25 
19.40 
21.55 
2540 
2645 
2Px 
28.65 
m?Ll 
3oco 
32.W 
33.10 
34.25 

35= 1 
36.45 
37.60 
38.65 
39~80 
40.43 
42.03 
43.10 
44.25 
45.30 
46.45 
47.50 
48.65 
49.75 
w.ffl 
52.W 
53.10 
54.22 
55.x 
5545 
57.50 
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P 

PROPOSED RATES CURRENTRATES 
We,ghlHO, Schedule 121 Schedule 122 Sded”k 123 Schedule 123 

same oay Pmt ofhe to Pod Ofk? to Ilrccsmg 
(Pmmdr, 

36 
37 
3i8 
3,9 
4,o 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 
51 
52 
53 
54 
55 
56 
57 
56 
59 
6’0 
61 
m 
6Z3 
6,4 
615 
613 
67 
68 
6!> 
70 

.&port 

52.00 59.55 
53.10 61 .oo 
54.20 62.45 
55.30 63.95 
56.40 65.40 
57.50 66.85 
58.60 68.30 
59.70 69.75 
60.80 7, 20 
61.90 72.70 
63.00 74.15 
64.10 75 60 
65.15 7705 
66.15 78.50 
67.15 79.95 
66.15 60.25 
69.15 81.70 
70.15 83.10 
71.15 84.55 
72.15 85.95 
73.15 87.45 
74 15 88.85 
75.15 90 30 
76.15 91 75 
77~15 93.15 
78.15 94.60 
79.15 96.05 
80.15 97.50 
81.15 98.90 
82.15 100.35 
83.15 101 .a 
84.15 10320 
65.15 104.70 
86 15 106.10 
87.15 107.55 

67.60 
67.70 
6915 
70.60 
72.00 
73.45 
74.85 
76.25 
76.55 
77.95 
79.35 
80.75 
82.15 
83.55 
85.00 
86.40 
87 80 
89.20 
90.60 
92.05 
93.45 
94 85 
96.25 
97.65 
99.05 

100.50 
101.90 
103.30 
104.70 
106.10 
107.50 
108.95 

55.60 58.65 
56.70 59.70 
57.85 60.86 
58.90 61.95 
60.05 63.05 
61.15 54,s 
62.25 65.30 
63.40 66.40 
64.50 67.50 
65 60 68.65 
66.70 6970 
67.80 7065 
68.90 71.95 
7001 73.05 
7110 74.15 
72.25 75.30 
73.35 76.35 
74.45 77.50 
75.60 78.60 
76.70 79.70 
77.80 80.85 
78.90 81.90 
60.05 83.05 
81.20 84.25 
82.50 85.55 
63.90 86.95 
85.20 88.25 
86.50 89.55 
67.90 90.95 
89.20 92.25 
90.60 93.65 
91.90 94.95 
93.30 96.35 
94.60 97.65 
95.90 98.95 

Attac:hment B at page 5 
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Attachment B at page 6 

FIRST-CLASS MAIL 
RATE SCHEDULE 221 

LETTERS and SEALED PARCELS g 

Proposed Current 
Rate Rate 
(cents) (cents) 

LETTERS8SEALEDPARCELS 

Regular 

Single Piece: First Ounce 

Presort’ 

Pre-barcoded Parcels (experimental)” 
Bepaid Reply Mail 
Qualified Business Reply Mail 

Additional Ounce2 
Nonstandard Surcharge 

Single Piece 
Presort 

Automation - Presort’ 

Letter2 

Basic Presort4 

3.Digit Presort’ 

5-Digit Presort” 

Carrier Route Presort’ 

27.5 .2&l 

26.5 25.4 

24.9 :23.8 

24.6 :23.0 

Flats’ 

Basic Presort’ 

35Digit Presort” 

30.0 

26.0 

29.0 

27.0 

Additional Ounce’ 23.0 23.0 
Nonstandard Surcharge 11.0 5.0 

33.0 32.0 

31.0 :29.5 

29.0 :28.0 
30.0 NA 
30.0 NA 

23.0 23.0 

16.0 11.0 
11.0 5.0 



Docket No. R97-1 
Proposed Rates and Fees 

/- 

Attachment B at page 7 

I- 

SCHEDULE 221 NOTES 

’ A mailing fee of WLEJ88100.00must be paid once each year at each office of mailing by any person 
who mails other than Single Piece First-Class Mail. Payment of the fee allows the Imailer to mall at any 
First-Class rate. SV 

2 Rate applies through 11 ounces Heaver peces are subject to Priority Mall rates, 

’ Rates apply to bulk-entered mailings of at least 500 letter-size pieces, which must be delivery point 
barcoded and meet other preparation requirements pmes&&specifiedby the Postal Sewce 

’ Rate applies to letter-size Automation-Presort category mail not mailed at 3-Dlgit. !j-Digit, 
or Carder Route rates. 

’ Rate applies to letter-size Automation-Presort category mail presorted to single or multiple 
threedigrt ZIP Code destinations SDecifiedby the Postal Service. 

’ Rate applies to letter-size Automation-Presort category mail presorted to single or multiple 
fivedigit ZIP Code destinations -specifiedby the Postal Service 

’ Rate applies to letter-size Automation-Presort category mail presorted to carrier roLltes specified 
by the Postal Service 

’ Rates apply to bulkentered mailings of at least 500 flat-size pieces, each of which must be delivery-point 
barcoded or bear a ZIP+4 barcode, and must meet other preparation requirements specified wes~&ed by the 

the Postal Service. 

’ Rate applies to flat-size Automatton-Presort category mail not mailed at the 36Digiit rate 

” Rate applies to flat-size Automation-Presort category mail presorted to single or multiple 
three- and five-digit ZIP Code destinations as specified by the Postal Service 

” Nonpresorted pra-barmded parcels must be propedy prepared and submitted in mailings 
of at least 50 pieces. This experimental discount is in effect until April 28. 1999. 

g Add $0.50 per piece For hazardous medical materials and $1.00 per piece For other &&& 
hazardous materia$. 
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Proiposed Rates and Fees 

Attac:hment B at page a 

FIRST-CLASS MAIL 
RATE SCHEDULE 222 

Yards 

Proposed Current 
Rate Rate 
(cents) (cents) 

CARDS 

Regular 
Single Piece 

PESOd 

Prepaid Replv Mail 
Qualified Business Reply Mail 

Automation-Presort12 
Basic Presort3 

3.Digit Presort4 

5-Digit Presort’ 

Carrier Route Presort6 

21 .o 

19.0 

16.0 
16.0 

17.6 16.6 

17.0 15.9 

15.9 14.3 

15.6 14.0 

20.0 

16.0 

NA 
NA 

SCHEDULE 222 NOTES 

’ A mailing fee oF-$85&~~100.00 must be paid once each year at each office of mailing by any person who 

mails other than Single Piece First-Class Mail. Payment of the Fee allows the mailer to mail at any 

First-Class rate. 

’ Rates apply to bulk-entered mailings of at least 500 pieces, which must be barcoded 

and meet other preparation requirements pfesa&& specified by the Postal Service. 

3 Rate applies to Automation-Presort category mail not mailed at 3-Digit. 5-Digit, 

or Carrier Route rates. 

4 Rate applies to Automation-Presort category mail presorted to single or multiple 

three-digit ZIP Code destinations as pws&bed specified by the Postal Service. 

5 Rate applies to Automation-Presort category mail presorted to single or multiple 

five-digit ZIP Code destinations as fxess&& specified by the Postal Seivce. 

’ Rate applies to Automation-Presort category mail presorted to carrier routes specified 

by the Postal Service. 



.-- 
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Attachment B at page 9 
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Attachment B at page 12 

RATE SCHEDULE 321.2A 
REGULAR SUBCLASS 

Presort Category”? 

Letter Size 

Piece Rate 
Basic 
3/5Digit 

Destination Entry Discount per Piece 
BMC 
SCF 

Non-Letter Size i 

Piece Rate 

Minimum per Piece’ 
Basic 
315 Digit 

Destination Entry Discount per Piece 
BMC 
SCF 

Pound Rate2 
Plus per Piece Rate 

Basic 
3/5-Digit 

Destination Entry Discount per Pound 
BMC 
SCF 

Rate 
(cents) 

Current Proposed 

25.6 24.7 
20.9 20.9 

1.3 1.5 
1.8 1.8 

30.6 30.0 
22.5 24.0 

1.3 1.5 
1.8 1.8 

67.7 65.0 

16.6 16.6 
8.5 10.6 

6.4 7.2 
8.5 8.8 

SCHEDULE 321.2A NOTES 
’ A fee of -$8Wg $100must be paid each 12-month period for each bulk mailing permrt. 

* Mailer pays either the minimum piece rate or the pound rate, whichever is higher. 

9 Add $0.50 per piece for hazardous medical materials and $1 .OO per niece for other rrm 
hazardous materials. 

* Residual shape surcharge $0.10 per piece. 

‘-. 

- 



,,-. 
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STANDARD MAIL 
RATE SCHEDULE 321.2B 

REGULAR SUBCLASS 

Automation Category’,% 

Letter Size’ 

Piece Rate 

Basic Letter3 

3-Digit Letter4 

5-Digit Lette? 

Destination Entry Discount per Piece 
BMC 
SCF 

,_c Flat Size6 

Piece Rate 

Minimum per Piece’ - 

Basic Flat * 

3/5-Digit Flat’ 

Destination Entry Discount per Piece 
BMC 
SW 

Pound Rate’ 
Plus per piece Rate 

Basic Flat a 

3/5-Digit Flat’ 

Destination Elntry Discount per Pound 
BMC 
scl- 

Attachment B at page 13 

R.ate 
(cents) 

Current Proposed 

18.3 18.9 

17.5 17.8 

15.5 16.0 

1.3 1.5 
1.8 1.8 

27.7 24.3 

18.9 20.7 

1.3 1.5 
1.8 1.8 

67.7 65.0 

13.7 10.9 

4.9 7.3 

6.4 7.2 
8.5 8.8 
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Attachment B at page 14 

SCHEDULE 321.2B NOTES 

’ A fee of $-8&M $mmust be paid once each 12.month period for each bulk: mailing permit. 

’ For letter-size automation pieces meeting applicable Postal Service regulations 

’ Rate applies to letter-size automation mail not mailed at 3-digit, 5-digit or 

carrier route rates. 

4 Rate applies to letter-size automation mail presorted to single or multiple three-digit 

ZIP Code destinations as pmawikd specified by the Postal Service. 

5 Rate applies to letter-size automation mail presorted to single or multiple five-digit 

ZIP Code destinations as fxaaa&A specified by the Postal Service. 

’ For flat-size automation mail meeting applicable Postal Service regulations, 

’ Mailer pays mrnimum piece rate or pound rate, whichever is higher. 

a Rate applies to flat-size automation mail not mailed at 3ELdigit rate. 

’ Rate applies to flat-size automation mail presorted to single or multiple 

three- and five-digit ZIP Code destinations as specified by the Postal Service, 

E &ld $0.50 per oiece for hazardous medical materials and $1 .OO per oiece for other mailable 
&rzardous materials. 
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STANDARD MAIL 
RATE SCHEDULE 321.3 

ENHANCED CARRIER ROUTE SUBCLASS’ s 

Letter Size 

IPiece Rate 
Basic 

Basic Automated Lette? 
High Density 
Saturation 

IDestination Entry Discount per Piece 
BMC 
SCF 

DDU3 

NIon-Letter Size g 

IPiece Rate 

Minimum per Piece4 
Basic 
Hugh Density 
Saturation 

Destination Entry Discount per Piece 
BMC 
SCF 

DD$ 

Pound Rate4 
Plus per Piece Rate 

Basic 
High Density 
Saturation 

Destination Entry Discount per Pound 
BMC 
SCF 

DDU13 

Attachment B at page 15 

Rai:e 
(cents) 

Current Proposed 

15.0 16.4 

14.6 15.7 
14.2 14.3 
13.3 13.4 

1.3 1.5 
1.8 1.8 

2.3 2.3 

15.5 16.4 
14.7 15.3 
13.7 14.1 

1.3 1.5 
1.8 1.8 

2.3 23 

66.3 53.0 

1.8 5.5 
1.0 4.4 
0.0 3.2 

6.4 7.2 
a.5 a.8 

11.1 11.0 



Docket No. lR97-1 
Proposed Rates and Fees 

Attachment B at page 16 

SCHEDULE 321.3 NOTES 

’ A fee of $85&g $Cmust be paid each 12-month period for each Ibulk 

mailing permit. 

* Rate applies to letter-size automation mail presorted to routes specified by 

the Postal Service. 

3 Applies only to enhanced carrier route mail. 

4 Mailer pays either the minimum piece rate or the pound rate, whichever 
is higher. 

5 AddO. per piece for hazardous medical materials and $1 .OO per piece for 

-mailable hazardous materials. 

5 mual shape surcharoe $0.10 per piece. 
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Attachment B at page 17 

STANDARD MAIL 

RATE SCHEDULE 321.4A 

NONPROFIT SUBCLASS 

Presort Categories’? 

(Full Rates) 

Rate 

(cents) 
Letter Size 

Current Proposed 
Piece Rate 

Basic 

31%Digit 

Destination Entry Discount per Piece 

BMC 

SCF 

Non-Letter Size 4 

Piece Rate 

Minimum per Piece’ 

Basic 

3/5-Digit 

Destination Entry Discount per Piece 

BMC 

SCF 

Pound Rate* 

Plus per Piece Rate 

Basic 

3/5-Digit 

Destination Entry Discount per Pound 

BMC 

SCF 

‘13.8 16.5 

‘12.0 14.3 

1.3 

1.8 

1.5 

1.8 

20.1 23.9 

14.9 ‘17.6 

1.3 

1.8 

48.4 

10.0 

4.8 

6.2 

a.8 

1.5 

I.8 

55.0 

‘12.6 

6.3 

7.2 

a.8 

SCHEDULE 321.4A NOTES 
’ A fee of $SWQ$lOO.OO must be paid once each 12.month period for e,ach bulk mailing permit. 
’ Mailer pays either the minimum piece rate or the pound rate, whichever is higher. 
4 Add $0.50 per piece for hazardous medical materials and $1.00 per oiece for other 

mailable hazardous materials. 
5 Residual shaoe surcharge $0.10 per piece. 

- 
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Attachment B at page 18 

STANDARD MAIL 
RATE SCHEDULE 321.4B 
NONPROFIT SUBCLASS 
Automation Categories’ E 

(Full Rates) 

Rate 
(cents) 

L.etter Size 
Current Proposed 

Piece Rate 
Basic Letter3 

3-Digit Letter4 

5-Digit Lette? 

Destination Entry Discount par Piece 

BMC 

SCF 

F:lat Size6 

Piece Kate 

Minimum per Piece’ 

Basic Flat* 

3/5-Digit9 

Destination Entry Discount per Piece 

BMC 

SCF 

Pound Kate’ 

Plus per Piece Rate 

Basic Flat’ 

3%Digit Flat’ 

Destination Entry Discount per Pound 

BMC 

SCF 

10.5 12.4 
10.1 11.2 

a.0 9.5 

1.3 1.5 

1.8 1.8 

17.7 19.0 

12.5 15.5 

1.3 1.5 

1.8 1.8 

48.4 55.0 

7.6 7.7 

2.4 4.2 

6.2 7.2 

8.8 a.6 

-- 
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Attachment B at page 19 

SCHEDULE 321.46 NOTES 

’ A fee of $8&W $100must be paid once each 12-month period for each bulk mailing permit 

* For letter-size automation pieces meeting applicable Postal Service regulations. 

’ Rate applies to letter-size automation mail not mailed at 3-digit. 5-drgit or carrier rollte rates, 

4 Rate applies to letter-size automation mail presorted to single or multiple three-digit ZIP 
Code destinations as prasa&& specified by the Postal Service. 

’ Rate applies to letter-size automation mail presorted to single or multipbs five-digit ZIP Code 
destinations as pfa%&ad specified by the Postal Service. 

’ For flat-size automation mail meeting applicable Postal Service regulations. 

7 Mailer pays minimum piece rate or pound rate, whichever is higher 

* Rate applies to flat-size automation mail not mailed at 3/5-digit rate 

’ Rate applies, to flat-size automation mail presorted to single or multiple three- and five-digit 
ZIP Code destinations as specified by the Postal Service. 

lo Add $0.50 per piece for hazardous medical materials and $1 .OO per piecg! 
other mailable hazardous materials. 
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Attachment B at page 20 

- 

STANDARD MAIL 
RATE SCHEDULE 321.5 

NONPROFIT ENHANCED CARRIER ROUTE SUBCLASS’s 
(Full Rates) 

Rate 
(cents) 

Letter Size 

Piece Rate 
Basic 
Basic Automated Lette? 
High Density 
Saturation 

Destination Entry Discount per Piece 
BMC 
SCF 
DDU’ 

NowLetter Size g 

Piece Rate 
Minimum per Piece’ 

Basic 
High Density 
Saturation 

Destination Entry Discount per Piece 
BMC 
SCF 
DDU3 

Pound Rate4 
Plus per Piece Rate 

Basic 
High Density 
Saturation 

Destination Entry Discount per Pound 
BMC 
SCF 
DDU3 

Current Proposed 

9.9 9.6 
6.5 9.2 
9.3 7.8 
8.7 7.2 

1.3 1.5 
1.8 1.8 
2.4 2.3 

10.7 9.6 
10.0 8.6 

9.4 8.0 

1.3 1.5 
1.8 1.8 
2.4 2.3 

45.1 35.0 

1.3 2.4 
0.6 1.4 
0.0 0.8 

6.2 7.2 
8.8 8.8 

11.4 11.0 
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Proposed Rates and Fees 

r- 

SCHEDULE 321.5 NOTES 

’ A fee of $8540 $100must be paid each IZ-month period for each bulk mailing permit. 

’ Rate applies to letter-size automation mail presorted to routes specified by the Postal Service. 

3 Applies only to enhanced carrier route mall. 

4 Mailer pays either the minimum piece rate or the pound rate, whichever is higher. 

1 Add $0.50 per-piece for hazardous medical materials and $1 .OO per piecefor 

other mailable hazardous materials. 

6 Residual Shape surcharqe $0.10 per piece. 
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Attachment 6 at page 22 

-/ 

Rep/ace Rate Schedules 322.7A and ,322.lB 
with proposed Rate Schedules 322. IA, 32,2. IS, 322.C, 

322.1 D, and 322. ? E 
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Attac:hment B at page 23 
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Attachment B at page 24 

SCHEDULE 32Z.lA NOTES 

1 For nonmachinable Inter-BMC parcels, add: $1.35 per piece. 

2 &Jr each oickuo stoo. add: 36.25. 
3 @r Oriain Bulk Mail Center Discount. deduct $0.57 oer piece. 
4 Rx BMC Presort, deduct $0.12 cer oiece. 

5- For Barcoded Discount, deduct $0.04 cer oiece. 
!z se DMCS section 322.16 for oversize Parcel Post. 
L &id $0.50 oer olece for hazardous medical materials and $1.00 oer niece for other mailable 

kzzardous materials. 

,- 

- 
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Attachment B at page 25 
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Attachment B at page 26 

SCHEDULE 322.18 NOTES: 

1. 
2 
3: 

For Barcoded Discount. deduct $0.04 oer piece. 
See DMCS section 322.16 for oversize Parcel Post. 
Add $0.50 per piece for hazardous medical materials and $1.00 oer piece for other mailable 
hazardous materials. 

4. For each PiCkUD stop. add $6.25 

-.- -- --~ -- -~- 
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Attachment B at page 27 

-- 



Docket No. R97-1 
Proposed Rates and Fees 
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.- 

SCHEDULE 322.lC NOTES: 
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Proposed Rates and Fees 

STANDARD MAIL 
RATE SCHEDULE 322.1D 

PARCEL PDSTSUBCLASS 
DESllNATlDN SCF RATES 

(dollars) 

Attachment B at page 29 

Weight 
(Pounds) 

2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
a 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 

1.60 37 
1.72 38 
1.84 39 
1.94 40 
2.04 41 
2.12 42 
2.22 43 
2.31 44 
2.38 45 
2.46 46 
2.54 47 
2.60 48 
2.67 49 
2.74 50 
2.60 51 
2.86 52 
2.93 53 
2.98 54 
3.04 55 
3.11 56 
3.16 57 
3.21 58 
3.28 59 
3.32 60 
3.37 61 
3.42 62 
3.47 63 
3.52 64 
3.56 65 
3.61 66 
3.66 67 
3.70 68 

r 
DSCF 

Proposed 

3.83 
3 a7 
3.91 
3.95 
3~99 
4.04 
4.07 
411 
4.14 
4.18 
4.22 
4.26 
4.30 
4.33 
4.36 
440 
444 
4.47 
4.51 
4.54 
4.58 
4.61 
4.65 
4.68 
4.72 
4.74 
4.78 
4.60 
4.64 
4.87 
4.91 
4.94 
4.97 
5.00 
5.03 
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SCHEDULE 322.lD NOTES: 

Attachment 13 at page 30 

-. 

1 See DMCS section 322.16 for oversize Parcel Post. 
2 Add $0.50 oer piece for hazardous medical materials and $1.00 oer piece for other mailable 

hazardous materials. 
3 A fee of $100.00 must be paid each year for DSMC. DSCF. and DDU. 
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Attachment B at page 31 

STANDARD MAIL 
RATE SCHEDULE 322.1 E 

PARCEL POST SUBCLASS 
DESTINATION DELIVERY UNIT RATES 

(dollars) 

Weight 
(Pounds) 

2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 

I 36 
1.37 37 
1.44 38 
1.48 39 
1.54 40 
1.59 41 
1.63 42 
1.69 43 
1.73 44 
1.77 45 
1.80 46 
1.81 47 
1.83 48 
1.83 49 
1.84 50 
1.87 51 
1.87 52 
1.88 53 
1.89 54 
1.92 55 
1.92 56 
1.93 57 
1.95 58 
1.96 59 
1.98 60 
1.99 61 
2.01 62 
2.02 63 
2.05 64 
2.08 65 
2.09 66 
2.11 67 
2.13 68 
2.15 69 
2.161 70 

DDU 

Proposed 

2.17 
2.19 
2.21 
2.24 
2.26 
2.28 
2.30 
2.32 
2.36 
2.37 
2.39 
2.42 
2.44 
2.46 
2.48 
2.51 
2.52 
2.55 
2.58 
,2.60 
12.62 
,2.64 
.2.67 
,2.69 
12.70 
:2.75 
:2.76 
:2.79 
:2.81 
:2.84 
12.85 
:2.89 
:2.91 
:2.94 
:2.96 

----. 
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SCHEDULE 322.1E NOTES: 

Attachment B at page 32 

1, See DMCS section 322.16 for oversize Parcel Post. 

2. Add $0.50 !xr piece for hazardous medical materials and $1.00 per- piece for other mailable 
hazardous materials. 

3- A fee of $100.00 must be paid each year for DBMC, DSCF, and DDU. 



/-- 
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Proiposed Rates and Fees 

Attac:hment B at page 33 

STANDARD MAIL 
RATE SCHEDULE 322.3A 

BOUND PRINTED MAlTER SUBCLASS 
SINGLE PIECE RATES 5 

(dollars) 

SCHEDULE 322.3A NOTES: 

zL_Includes both catalogs and similar bound printed matter. 
2.:or barcoded discount. deduct $0.04 per piece. 
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Attachment 6 at page 34 

STANDARD MAIL 
RATE SCHEDULE 322.3B 

BOUND PRINTED MATTER SUBCLASS 
BULK AND CARRIER ROUTE PRESORT RATES I/ 

(dollars) 

Lone 

-- 
L.ocal 
l&2 

3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 

Per-rrecel 
I 

Carrier 
I 

Per-pound 
Route 21 

Proposed Current Proposed Current 
0.523 0.530 0.456 0.467 
0.697 0.700 0.630 0.637 
0.697 0.700 0.630 0.637 
0.697 0.700 0.630 0.637 
0.697 0.700 0.630 0.637 
0.697 0.700 0.630 0.637 
0.697 0.700 0.630 0.637 
0.697 0.700 0.630 0.637 

Proposed Current 
0.012 0.023 

0.061 0.043 
0.087 0.063 
0.131 0.099 
0.198 0.152 
0.269 0.209 
0.355 0.277 
0.428 0.335 - 

SCHEDULE 322.38 NOTES 

I/ Includes both catalogs and similar bound printed matter. 
21 Applies to mailings of at least 300 pieces presorted to carrier route as 

fxeawkd specified by the Postal Service. 
31 For Barcoded Discount, deduct $0.04 oer-oiece 
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Proposed Rates and Fees 

F-- 

STANDARD MAIL 
RATE SCHEDULES 323.1 &323.2 

SPECIAL AND LIBRARY RATE SUBCLASSES 

Schedule 323.,1: Special 
Proposed 

Rates 
(cents) 

First Pound Not presorted &/ 124 
LEVEL A Presort @-digits) II 21 90 
LEVEL B Presort (BMC) l/ 3/ 41 112 

Each additional pound through 7 pounds 51 

Each additional pound over 7 pounds 21 

T-. 

Schedule 323.2: Library 

First Pound 

Proposed Current 
Flull Rates Full Rates 

(cents) (cents) 
144 112 

Each additional pound through 7 pounds 52 42 

Each additional pound over 7 pounds 25 22 

Current 
Rates 

(cents) 
124 
70 

104 

50 

31 
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SCHEDULE 323.1 NOTES: 

Attacliment B at page 36 

II 
21 

31 

41 

A fee of $8&W $100.00 must be paid once each l&month period for each permit. 
For mailings of 500 or more pieces properly prepared and presorted to five-digit 
destination ZIP Codes. 
For mailings of 500 or more pieces properly prepared and presorted to Bulk Mail 
Centers. 
For Barcoded Discount, deduct $0.04 per-niece 

SCHEDULE 323.2 NOTES: 

1, Add $0.50 per piece for hazardous medical materials and $1 .OO oer piece for other 
mailable hazardous materials. 

2, For Barcoded Discount, deduct $0.04 oer-piece. 



Docket No. R97-1 
Proposed Rates and Fees 

/- 
PERIODICALS 

RATE SCHEDULE 421 
REGULAR SUBCLASS”’ 

postage 
Rate Unit 

PER POUND: 
Nonadvertising Portion: 
Advertising Porbon: 

Dellvery Office4 
SCF’ 
l&2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
6 

Science of Agriculture 
Delivery Office 

SCF 
zones 182 

PER PIECE: Less Nonadvertising Factor’ 
Required Preparation’ 
Presorted to 3-digil city&digit 
Presorted to 3-diail 
Presorted to 5-diqit 
Presorted to Carrier Route 
Di*count*: 

Prepared to Delivery Ofice’ 
Prepared lo SCF’ 
High Density’ 
Saturation’ 

Automation Discounts for 
Automation Compatible Mail” 

From Required: 
Pre-barcoded letter size 
Pre-barcoded flats 

From 3/5 Digit: 

Pre-barcoded 3.digit letter size 
Pre-barcoded s-digit letter size 
Pre-barcoded flats 

From 3 Diqit’ 
Pre-barcoded letter size 

Pre-barcoded flats 

From 5 Diqit. 

Pre-barcoded letter sne Piece 

Pre-barcoded flats Piece 

Pound 16.1 17.4 

Pound 16.9 15.6 
Pound 19.0 16.0 
Pound 21 4 20.3 
Pound 22.4 21.6 
Pound 25.1 25.1 
Pound 29.2 30.5 
Pound 33 6 36.1 
Pound 38 6 41.6 
Pound 43 2 47.4 

Pound 12.7 11.9 
Pound 1,4.3 13.5 
Pound 1’6.1 15.2 

Piece 
Piece 
Piece 
Piece 
Piece 

5.7 5.9 
2,4.0 26.3 
2’0 2 N.A. 
N.A. 21.7 
N.A. 21.4 

11.9 12.8 

Piece :2.1 2.3 
Piece 1.1 1.2 
Piece 10.8 1.2 
Piece :2.4 2.6 

Piece 
Piece 

Piece 
Piece 
Piece 

Piece 

Piece 

Attachment B at page 37 

Curlrent Proposed 
i%ad Rate 

(cents) (cents, 

61 
4.2 

N.A. 
N.A. 
NJ. 

5.1 

29 

5.2 

28 
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Attachment B at page 38 

SCHEDULE 421 NOTES 

’ The rates in this schedule also apply to commingled nonsubscriber, non-requester, 

complimentary, and sample copies in excess of 10 percent allowance in regular-rate, 

non-profit, and classroom periodicals. 

’ Rates do not apply to otherwise regular rate mail that qualifies for the Wth~in-County 

rates in Schedule 423.2. 

’ Charges are computed by adding the appropriate per-piece charge to the sum of the 

nonadvertising portion and the advertising portion, as applicable. 

4 Applies to carrier route (including high density and saturation) mail 

delivered within the delivery area of the originating post office. 

s Applies to mail delivered within the SCF area of the originating SCF office. 

6 For postage calculations, multiply the proportion of nonadvertising content by this factor and 

subtract from the applicable piece rate. 

* 
ges > 

z Mail not eliqible for carrier-route, 5diqit or 3diqit rates. 

’ Applicable to high density maiLdeducted from carrier route presort rate, 

‘Applicable to saturation mail, deducted from carrier route presort rate. 

” For automation compatible mail meeting applicable Postal Service regulati’ons. 

.- 

--.--. 
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PERIODICALS 
RATE SCHEDULE 423.2 

VVlTHlN COUNTY 
(Full Rates) 

PER POUND: 
General 
Delivery Office’ 

PER PIECE: 
Required Presort 
Presorted to 3-diqit 
Presorted to 5-diqit 
Carrier Route Presort 

PER. PIECE DISCOUNTS: 
Delivery Office* 
High Density (formerly 125 piece)3 
Saturation 

Automation Discounts for Automation 
Compatible Mail4 

From Required: 
3-Digit Pre-barcoded Letter size 
5-Digit Pre-barcoded Letter size 

_ Pre-barcoded Letter size 
3/5-Digit Pre-barcoded Flats 
Pre-barcoded Flat size 

_ From 3.diqit: 
Pre-barcoded Letter size 

_ Prebarcoded Flat size 

_ From 5-diqit: 
Pre-barcoded Letter size 

_ Pre-barcoded Flat size 

Attachment B at page 39 

f2urrent Proposed 
Rate Rate 
(cents) (cents) 

12.6 13.1 
11.6 11.7 

8.2 9.0 
N.A. 6.0 
N.A. 7.7 
4.4 4.5 

0.3 0.4 
0.5 0.5 
0.7 0.7 

0.4 
1.7 
N.A. 
1:5 
N.A. 

N.A. 1.9 
N.A. 1.4 

N.A. 1.8 
N.A. 1.4 

N.A. 
N.A. 

2.7 
N.A. 

1.2 

- 
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Proposed Rates and Fees 

Attachment B at page 40 

SCHEDULE 432.2 NOTES 

’ Applicable only to the pound charge of carrier route (including high density 
and saturation) presorted pieces to be delivered within the delivery area of the originating 
post office. 

’ Applicable only to carrier presorted pieces to be deliv,ered within the delivery area 
of the originating post office. 

3 Applicable to high denisty mail, deducted from carrier route presort rate 

4 For automation compatible pieces meeting applicable Postal Service regulations 

.-, 
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Proposed Rates and Fees 

r 

PERIODICALS 
RATE SCHEDULE 423.3 

PUBLICATIONS OF AUTHORIZED NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS “(Full Rates) 

Proposed 

PEIR POUND: 
Nonadvertising portion: 
Advertising portion? 

Delivery Office* 
SCF3 
182 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
0 

PER PIECE: Less Nonadvertising Factor’ 

Postage 

Rate Unit 

C&ent 

Rate’ 
(cents) 

Rate ’ 
(cents) 

r 

Pound 14.2 15.4 

Pound 
Pound 
Pound 
Pound 

Pound 
Pound 
Pound 
Pound 

Required Preparation’ Piece 
Presorted to 3-digit city/5-digit Piece 
Presorted to 3-diqit Piece 
Presorted to 5-diqit Piece 
Presorted to Carrier Route Piece 
Discounts: 

Prepared to Delivery Office’ Piece 
Prepared to SCF3 Piece 
High Density (formerly 125-Piece)6 Piece 
Saturation’ Piece 

Automation Discounts for Automation Compatible Mail’ 

From Required: 
Pre-barcoded Letter size 
Pre-barcoded Flats 

From 315 Digit: 
3-Digit Pre-barcoded Letter size 
5-Digit Pre-barcoded Letter size 
Pre-barcoded Flats 

3-Diqit: From 
Pre-barcoded Letter size 
Pre-barcoded Flats 

From 5-Diqit: 
pre-barcoded Letter size 
Pre-barcoded Flats 

Piece 3.0 7.9 
Piece 2.4 3.7 

Piece 2.3 N.A. 
Piece 2.3 N.A. 
Piece 2.4 N.A. 

Piece N.A. 2.9 
Piece N.A. 2.6 

Piece N.A. 3.2 
Piece N.A. 2.8 

16.9 15.8 
19.0 18.0 
21.4 20.3 
22.4 21.6 
25.1 25.1 
29.2 30.5 
33.6 36.1 
38.8 41.6 
43.2 47.4 

4.2 4.4 

21.9 24.4 
17.4 N .A. 
N.A. 18.5 
N.A. 18.3 

10.7 11.3 

1.2 1.2 
0.6 0.6 
0.7 2.0 
2.1 3.3 
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Attachment B at page 42 

SCHEDULE 423.3 NOTES 

’ Charges are computed by adding the appropriate per-piece charge to the sum of the 
nonadvertising portion and the advertising portion, as applicable. 

’ Applies to carrier route (including high density and saturation) mail delivered 
within the delivery area of the originating post office. 

’ Applies to mail delivered within the SCF area of the originating SCF ofhc:e. 

4 For postage calculation, multiply the proportion of nonadvertising content by this factor and 
subtract from the applicable piece rate. 

5 
gates I 1 , 

’ Mail not eliqible for carrier-route, 5-diait or 3-diait rates. 

6 Applicable to high density mail, deducted from carrier route presort rate 

’ Applicable to saturation mail, deducted from carrier route presort rate, 

* For automation compatible mail meeting applicable Postal Service regulations 

’ Not applicable to publications containing 10 percent or less advertising content 

” If qualified, nonprofit publications may use Within-County rates for applic:able portions of a 
mailing. 

-. 



Docket No. R97-1 
Proposed Rates and Fees 

/- 

Attachment B at page 43 

/-- 

/-- 

PERIODICALS 
RATE SCHEDULE 423.4 

CLASSROOM PUBLICATIONS ” 
(Full Rates) 

Current Ott 5 ‘97 Proposed 

PER POUND: 
Nonadvertising Portion: 

Advertising Portion? 

Delivery Office’ 

SCF’ 
182 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
a 

PER PIECE: Less Nonadvertising Factor4 

Required Preparation’ 
Presorted to 3-digit city/Cdigit 
Presorted to 3-diqit 
Presorted to 5diqit 
Presorted to Carrier Route 
Discounts. 

Prepared to Delivery Office* 
Prepared to SCF 

High Density (formerly 125-Piece)6 

Saturation’ 
Automation Discounts for Automation 

Compatible Mail’ 
From Required: 

ZIP+4 Letter size 
Pre-barcoded Letter size 
Pre-barcoded Flats 

From 3/5 Digit: 
ZIP+4 Letter size 

Postage 
Rate Unit Rate’ 

(cents) (cents) 
Rate ’ 

(cents) 

Pound 11.3 14.2 15.4 

Pound 

Pound 
Pound 
Pound 
Pound 
Pound 
Pound 
Pound 
Pound 

Piece 
Piece 
Piece 
Pike 
Piece 

18.0 16.9 15.8 
19.1 19.0 la.0 
21.2 21.4 20.3 
22.3 22.4 21.6 
25.0 25.1 25.1 
29.2 29.2 30.5 
33.5 33.6 36.1 
38.8 38.8 41.6 
43.2 43.2 47.4 

3.5 4.2 4.4 

17.1 21.9 24.4 
12.8 17.4 N.A. 
N.A. N.A. 18.5 
N.A. N.A. la.3 

9.0 10.7 11.3 

Piece 0.5 1.2 1.2 
Piece 0.3 0.6 0.6 

Piece 0.2 0.7 2.0 

Piece 0.7 2.1 3.3 

Piece 
Piece 
Piece 

0.7 N.A N.A. 
1.7 3.0 7.9 
2.3 2.4 3.7 

3-Digit Pre-barcoded Letter siz Piece 
5-Digit Pre-barcoded Letter siz Piece 
Pre-barcoded Flats Piece 

From 3 Diqit: 
Pre-barcoded Letter size Piece 
Pre-barcoded Flats Piece 

From 5 Diait: 
Pre-barcoded Letter size Piece 
Pre-barcoded Flats Piece 

0.4 N.A. 
1.0 2.3 
1.7 2.3 
1.5 2.4 

N.A. 
N.A. 
N.A. 
N.A 

N.A. N.A 2.9 
N.A. N.A 2.6 

N.A. N.A 3.2 
N.A. N.A. 2.8 



Docket No. R97-1 
Proposed Rates and Fees 

Attachment B at page 44 

SCHEDULE 423.4 NOTES 

’ Charges are computed by adding the appropriate per-piece charge to the sum of the 

nonadvertising portion and the advertising portion, as applicable. 

’ Applies to carrier route (including 12%piece walk sequence and saturation) miail 

delivered within the delivery area of the originating post office. 

3 Applies to mail delivered within the SCF area of the originating SCF office 

4 For postage calculation, multiply the proportion of nonadvertising content by this factor 

and subtract from the applicable piece rate. 

C44ai’, I I , 
z ml not eliqible for carrier-route, 5diqit, or 3diqit rates. 

6 For walk sequenced mail in batches of 125 pieces or more from carrier route presorted mail, 

7 Applicable to saturation mail; deducted from carrier route presort rate 

’ For automation compatible mail meeting applicable Postal Service regulations. 

’ Not applicable to publications containing 10 percent or less of advertising content. 

” If qualified, classroom publications may use Within-County rates for applicable portions of a 
mailing. 
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Attachlnent B at page 45 

FEE SCHEDULE 911 

ADDRESS CORRECTIONS 

Description 

Per manual correction 

Per automated correction 

Fee 
Proposed Current 

$0.50 $0.50 

$0.20 $ 0.20 
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Attachment B at page 46 

FEE SCHEDULE 912 

ZIP CODING OF MAlLlNG,LlSTS 

Fee 
Proposed Current 

Per thousand addresses $70.00 $60.00 

CORRECTION OF MAILING LISTS 

Fee 
Proposed Current 

Per submitted address $0.20 $ 0.17 

Minimum charge per list corrected $7.00 $5.50 

ADDRESS CHANGES FOR ELECTION BOARDIS 
AND REGISTRATION COMMISSIONS 

Fee 
. ,.. Proposed Current 

Per change of address $0.20 $0.17 

CORRECTIONS ASSOCIATED WITH ARRANGEMEI’JT OF 
ADDRESS CARDS IN CARRIER DELIVERY SEQUENCE 

Per Correction 

Fee 
Proposed Current 
$0.20 $0.17 

NOTE 

When rural routes have been consolidated or changed to another post 
office, no charge will be made for correction if the list contains only 
names of persons residing on the route or routes involved. 
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Proposed Rates and Fees 

F- 

FEE SCHEDULE 921 
POST OFFICE BOXES AND CALLER SERVICE 

I. Semi-annual Box Fees’ 

Fee Group 

Box Size’ A B C D8& E’ 
Proposed current Proposed CUrrent Proposed current Proposed current Proposed current 

1 $35.00 $ 24 $30.00 22 $22.50 $ 20 $9.00 $ 6.00 $0 N.A. 
2 52.50 37 45.00 33 32.50 29 15.00 10.00 0 N.A. 
3 92.50 64 75.00 56 57.50 52 27.50 18.00 0 N.A. 
4 162.50 121 145.00 109 97.50 86 40.00 26.50 0 N.A. 
5 275.00 209 217.50 186 162.50 144 62.50 41.50 0 N.A. 

’ A customer ineligible for carrier delivery may obtain a post office box at ne-&aqe 
Grolup E fees, subject to administrative decisions regarding customer’s proximity to post 
offke. 

/- * Box Size 1 = under 296 cubic inches; 2 = 296-499 cubic inches; 3 = 500-999 cubic 
inches; 4 = 1000-1999 cubic inches; 5 = 2000 cubic inches and over. 

II. Semi-annual Caller Service Fees 

Fee Group Fee 
Proposed Current 

A ___..._.._.....__.............,.....,.....,............... $275 $250 
B __........__...._.._..........,.....,..................... $275 $240 
C _..._.._..__...___..,.,........,.......,,.,.,,,........... $275 $225 
D .._..._.._....___....................................... $275 $225 

Ill. Annual Call Number Reservation Fee 

(a// applicable Fee Groups) .._....___....._.................. $40 $30 

/--.. 



Docket No,, R97-1 
Proposed f2ates and Fees 

Attachment B at page 48 

FEE SCHEDULE 931 
BUSINESS REPLY MAIL 

Fee’ 
Active business reply advance deposit account: Proposed 

Per piece: 
Pre-barcoded NA 
Qualified $0.06 
Nonletter-size, using reverse manifest (experimental) $0.02 
Nonletter-size, using weight averaging (experimental) $0.03 
Other $0.08 

$0.30 

$300 

$100 

$1000 
$3000 

$1,000 
$3,000 

Payment of postage due charges if active business 
reply mail advance deposit account not used: 

Per piece 

Annual License and Accounting Fees: 
Accounting Fee for Advance Deposit Account 
Permit fee (with or without Advance Deposit 

Account) 

Monthly Fees for customers using a reverse manifest or 
weight avlaraging for nonletter-size business reply 

Nonletter-size, using reverse manifest (experimental) 
Nonletter-size, using weight averaging (experimental) 

Set-up/Qualification fee for customers using a reverse 
manifest or weight averaging for nonletter-size business reply 

Nonletter-size, using reverse manifest (experimental) 
Nonletter-size, using weight averaging (experimental) 

Current 

$0.02 
$0.02 
$0.02 
$0.03 
$0.10 

$0.44 

$205 

$85 

$1000 
$3000 

$1,000 
$3,000 

’ Experimental per piece, monthly, and set-up/qualification fees are applicable only to 
Iparticipants selected by the Postal Service for the nonletter-size business reply mail 
experiment. The experimental fees expire June 7, 1999. 



,,I-. 
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Attachment B at page 49 

FEE SCHEDULE 932 
MERCHANDISE RETURN 

Per Transaction 

Fee 
Proposed CUrElM 

Shipper must have an advance deposit account 
(see DMCS Schedule 1000) $ 0.30 $0.30 

,.--. 
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PropiDsed Rates and Fees 

FEE SCHEDULE 933 
ON-SITE METER SETTING 

Attachment B at page 50 

Firlst Meter By appointment 
Unscheduled request 

Additional meters 

Checking meter in or out of service (per meter) 

f-ee _- 
Proposed Current 

$27.50 $27.50 
31.00 31 .oo 

4.00 3.25 

8.50 7.50 
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Attachment B at page 51 

FEE SCHEDULE 934 
PREPAID REPLY MAIL 

Annual Permit Fee 

mlthlv Accountinq Fee 

Fee 

$100 

51.000 

.- 
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FEE SCHEDULE 941 
CERTIFIED MAIL 

Description 

Service (per mailpiece) 

Attachment B at page 52 

,Fee 
(in addition to postage) 

Proposed Current 
$1.55 $1.35 
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FEE SCHEDULE 942 
REGISTERED MAIL 

Declared Value of Article’ Fees2 
(in addition to postage) 

Proposed Current 

$0.00 i:o $iOO...............................N/ A 
x! .............................. $7.30 

0.00 ii0 lOO...............................N/ A 
0.01 to 100..............................$7.4 5 

100.01 t:o 500................................8.15 

$4.85 (wifhouf insurance) 
N.A. .................. 
4.95 (with insurance) 
N.A ............... 
5.40 ................ 
5.85 ................. 
6.30 ................. 
6.75 ................. 
7.20 ................. 
7.65 ................. 
8.10 ................. 
8.55 ................. 
9.00.. ............... 
9.45.. ............... 
9.90.. ............... 
10.35 ............... 
10.80 ............... 
11.25 ............... 
11.70 ............... 
12.15 ............... 
12.60 ............... 
13.05 ............... 
13.50 ............... 
13.95.. ............. 
14.40 ............... 
14.85 ............... 
15.30 ............... 
15.75 ............... 
16.20 ............... 
16.65 ............... 

500.01 to 1,000.. .............................. 8.85 
1,000.01 to 2,000.. ............................. .9.55 
2,000.01 to 3,000 .............................. 10.25 
3,000.01 to 4,000 .............................. 10.95 
4,000.01 to 5,000 .............................. 11.65 
5,000.01 to 6,000..............................12.3 5 
6,000.01 to 7,000 .............................. 13.05 
i',OOO.Ol to 8,000 .............................. 13.75 
8,000.01 to 9,000 .............................. 14.45 
9,000.01 to 10,000.. ........................... .15.15 

10,000.01 to 11,000. ............................. 15.85 
11,000.01 to 12,000 .............................. 16.55 
12! 000.01 to 
1:1:000.01 to 

13,000..............................17.2 5 
14,000..............................17.9 5 

141,000.01 to 15,000..............................18.6 5 
15,OOO.Ol to 16,000 .............................. 19.35 
16,000.01 to 17,000..............................20.0 5 
17.000.01 to 18,000..............................20.7 5 
18,000.01 to 19,000..............................21.4 5 
19,000.01 to 20,000..............................22.15 
20,000.01 t'o 21,000..............................22.8 5 
21,000.01 to 22,000..............................23.5 5 
221 000.01 t'o 
23:000.01 tlo 

23,000..............................24.2 5 
24.000 .............................. 24.95 

24.,000.01 t'o 25,000..............................25.6 5 

Attachment Bat page 53 

Handling Charge 

None 
None 
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25.000.01 to $1 million 

Over $1 million to $15 million... 

Over $15 rmillion 

Proposed 

.__. ._.. $25.65 ._. 

.$708.15 

.._.._.. $10,508.15 

Attachment. S at page 54 

Current JrooosedlCurrent 

,$16.65 plus 4.570 
cents for each 
$1,000 (or 
fraction 
thereof) over 
$25,000 

$455.40... ,.. plus 4& 70 
cents for each 
$1,000 (or 
fraction 
thereof) over 
$1 million 

$6,755.40 ._..._....._..._.... plus Amount 
determined by 
the Postal 
Service based 
on weight, 
space and 
value 

’ Articles with a declared value of more than $25,000 can be registered, but compensation for 
loss or damage is limited to $25,000. 

22 7 
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Attachment B at page 55 

FEE SCHEDULE 943 
INSURED MAIL 

Part a - Express Mail Insurance 

Document Reconstruction 

Covarage Fee 
(in addition to postage) 

$0.01 to $500 ..,,...._.__.__..__.____...............................................,, ~_._.__.,,_.. no charge 

Merchandise 

eedaFesLUakreCoveraqe Fee 
(in addition to postage) 

Proposed Current 
$ 0.01 to $ 500 ._. ..__................. .._._._. no charge... ...__.., _._.__. no charge 

500.01 to 5000 $1.00 for each $100 $0.90 for each $100 
(or fraction thereof) (or fraction thereof) 
over $500 in value over $500 in value 

Part b-General Insurance 

-Coverage Fee 2 
(in addition to postage) 

ProposeId Current 
$ 0.01 to $ 50 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $0.9:5 $0.75 

50.01 t0$ 100 .._,..,_..,..,,...,_.......................................,.,..... 1.913 ___.._ 1.60 
100.1 to $5000 1.90 1.60 

plus $1 .OO for each p/us $0.90 
$100 (or fraction for each $100 

thereof) over $100 in (or fraction 
GI~w&~w coveraoe- thereof) in 

declared value 
‘!Jor bulk insurance, deduct $0.40 per piece. 
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FEE SCHEDULE 944 
COLLECT ON DELIVERY 

Amount to be collected, or 
Insurance Coverage Desired 

$ 0.01 to $50 
50.01to 100 

100.01t0200 
200.01 to 300 
300.01 to400 
400.01 to 500 
500.01 to 600 

Fe.2 
(in addition to postage) 

Proposed Current 
$4.00 $3.50 
$5.00 4.50 
$6.00 5.50 
$7.00 6.50 
$8.00 7.50 
$9.00 8.50 

$10.00 9.50 

Notice of nondelivety of COD 

Alteration of COD charges or 
designation of new addressee 

Registered COD 

$3.00 2.80 

$3.00 2.80 

$4.00 3.50 



Doc,ket No. R97-1 
Proposed Rates and Fees 
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FEE SCHEDULE 945 
RETURN RECEIPTS 

Description Fee 
(in addition to postage) 

Receipt Issued at Time of Mailing’ 
Proposed 

Items other than Merchandise . . . . . . . . . . . . .._........................ $1.45 
Merchandise (without another special service) .._._....__._ $1.70 

Current 
$1.10 
$1.20 

Receipt Issued after Mailing2......__..___.....__..,..............,,..,,........ $7.00 $6.60 

’ This receipt shows the signature of the person to whom the mailpiece was 
delivered, the date of delivery and the delivery address, if sluch address is 
different from the address on the mailpiece. 

’ This receipt shows to whom the mailpiece was delivered and the date of delivery, 
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Per Piece 
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FEE SCHEDULE 946 
RESTRICTED DELIVERY 

IFee 
(in addition to postage) 

Proposed Current 

$2.75 $2.75 

. 
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FEE SCHEDULE 947 
CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 

Fee 
(in addition to postage) 

Individual Pieces 

Propclsed Current 
Original certificate of mailing for listed 
pieces of all classes of ordinary mail (per piece) 

Three or more pieces individually listed in a firm 
mailing book or an approved customer provided 
manifest (per piece) 

Each additional copy of original certificate of 
mailing or original mailing receipt for registered, 
insured, certified, and COD mail (each copy) 

$0.60 0.55 

0.25 0.20 

0.60 0.55 

Bulk Pieces 

Identical pieces of First-Class and Single Piece, Regular, 
Enhanced Carrier Route, Nonprofit, and Nonprofit -iced Carrier Route 
Standard Mail paid with ordinary stamps, precanceled stamps, or meter 
stamps are subject to the following fees: 

Up to 1,000 pieces (one certificate 
for total number) 3.00 275 

Each additional 1,000 pieces or fraction Cl.40 0.35 

Duplicate copy 0.60 0.,55 

C 
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FEE SCHEDULE 948 
DELIVERY CONFIRMATION 

Service Fee (in addition to Dostaqe) 

Used in Coniunction with Prioritv Mail 
Electronic $O.OC! 
Manual $0.35 

Used in Coniunction with Parcel Post, Bound Printed Matter, 
j&arv, and Special Standard Mail 

Electronic $0.25 
Manual $0.6C! 
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FEE SCHEDULE 951 
PARCEL AIR LIFT 

Faa 
(In addition to Parcel 
Post postage) 

Up to 2 pounds 
Over 2 up to 3 pounds 
Over 3 up to 4 pounds 
Over 4 pounds 

Proposed 
$0.45 
$0.85 
$1.30 
$1.75 

Current 
$0.40 

0.75 
1.15 
1.55 
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FEE SCHEDULE 952 
SPECIAL HANDLING 

Fee 
(In addition to postage) 

Not more than 10 pounds 
More than 10 pounds 

Proposed 
$17.25 

$ 24.00 

Current 
$5.40 
$7.50 
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FEE SCHEDULE 961 
STAMPED ENVELOPES 

Single Sale 

Sinclle Sale Holoqram 
MBULK (500) #6-3/4 size: Regular 

Window 
*VTED BULK (500) #6-3/4 size Reqular 

m 
BANDED (500) #6-3/4 size 

PlANBULK (500) size > #6-3/4 through #lo’ Regular 
Endow 

m\ITED BULK (500) size > #6-3/4 throuqh #IO Resular 
Window 

Savinqs Bond 

Holoqram 

BANDED (500) size > N-314 throuqh #lO 

P 
Multi-Color Printing (500) #6-314 size 

#I 0 size’ 

Printing Charge per 500 Envelopes (for each type of printed envelope) 

Minimum Order (500 envelopes) 
Order for 1,000 or more envelopes 

Double Window (500) -size > g-314 through #IO’ 
Household (50): size # 6-314 Regular 

Window 
size > #6-3/4 through #IO Regular 

Window 
Holoqram 

NOTES 

Proposed 
$ 0.07 

$ 0.08 

$ 8.50 

$ 8.50 

$14.00 
$ 14.00 

$ 9.50 

$1150 
$11.50 
$ 15.00 

$15.00 

$ 1500 

$ 19,oo 

$ 12.00 

$1400 

$ 15,.00 

$ 0.06 

$ 0.06 

$ 8.20 
$ 9.00 

$ 12.60 
$ 13.40 

$ 8.20 
$ 12.00 

$ 13.00 
$ 16.40 

$ 17.40 

$ 15.00 

$ 16.40 

$ 13.00 

$ 10.50 

5 15.00 

N.A $ 4.40 
N.A. 5 4.40 

$ 11,50 $ 15.00 
$ 3,oo $ 3.00 
$ 3,oo $ 3.10 
$ 3.25 $ 3.20 
$ 325 5 3.30 
$ 3.50 ‘6 3.20 

’ Fee for precancelled envelopes is the same 
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FEE SCHEDULE 962 
STAMPED CARDS 

Fee 
(in addition to postage) 

Propo.sed Current 
$0.02 50.00 
50.04 $0.00 
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FEE SCHEDULE 971 
MONEY ORDERS 

Fee 

Domestic 

APO-FPO 

Proposed Current 

5 0.01 to 5 700 50.85 50.85 

$ 0.01 to 5700 0.30 0.30 

Inquiry Fee, which includes the issuance of 
copy of a paid money order 

2.75 2.75 
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SCHEDULE 1000 

FEES 

First-Class Presorted Mailing &e 

Periodicals Gee6 
A. Original Entry 
B. Additional Entry 
C. Re-entry 
D. Registration for News Agents 

Attachment B at page 66 

Proposed Current 

5100.00 5 85.00 

5305.00 5305.00 
16 50.00 5 85.00 
!I 50.00 5 50.00 
16 50.00 5 50.00 

Regiular, Enhanced Carrier Route, Nonprofit, and 
Nonlprofit Enhanced Carrier Route Standard Mail Bulk Mailing - !6100.00 5 85.00 

Parcel Post: Destination BMC. SCF. and DDU $100.00 $ 85.00 

Special Standard Mail Presorted MailingGee $100.00 5 85.00 

Authorization to Use Permit Imprint $100.00 5 85.00 

Merichandise Return 
(per facility receiving merchandise return labels) 

$100.00 5 85.00 

Busiiness Reply Mail Permit 
(see Fee Schedule 932) 

5 85.00 
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P 

Attachment B at page 67 

PHASING SCHEDULES 

/- 
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SUMMARY OF PROPOSED RATES FOR PHASING SCHEDULE 
STANDARD MAIL RATE SCHEDULE 321.4A 

NONPROFIT SUBCLASS 

Presort Categories 

Rate 

(cents) 

Letter Size 

Step 5 Step 6 

Piece Rate 

Basic 

3/5-Digit 

Destination’Entry Discount per Piece 

BMC 

SCF 

Non-Letter Size 

Piece Rate 

Minimum per Piece 

Basic 

3bDigit 

Destination Entry Discount per Piece 

BMC 

SCF 

Pound Rate 

Plus per Piece Rate 

Basic 

3bDigit 

Destination Entry Discount per Pound 

BMC 

SCF 

16.0 16.5 

13.8 14.3 

1.5 1.5 

1.8 1.8 

23.4 23.9 

17.1 17.6 

1.5 1.5 

1.8 1.8 

55.0 55.0 

12.1 12.6 

5.6 6.3 

7.2 7.2 

6.8 0.0 

-, 
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Proposed Ra,tes and Fees 

P 

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED RATES FOR PHASING !;CHEDULE 
STANDARD MAIL RATE SCHEDULE 321.48 

NONPROFIT SUBCLASS 

Automation Categories 

Rate 

(cents) 
Letter Size 

step 5 Step 6 
Piece Rate 

Basic Letter 
3-Digit Letter 

5-Digit Letter 

Destination Entry Discount per Piece 

BMC 

SCF 

Flat Siz,e 

Piece Rate 

Minimum per Piece 

Basic Flat 

3/5-Digit 

Destination Entry Discount per Piece 

BMC 

SCF 

Pound Rate 

Plus per Piece Rate 

Basic Flat 

3/5-Digit Flat 

Destination Entry Discount per Pouhd 

BMC 

SCF 

11.9 12.4 
10.7 11.2 

9.0 9.5 

1.5 

I.8 

1.5 
1.8 

18.5 

15.0 

19.0 

15.5 

1.5 1.5 

ia 1.8 

55.0 55.0 

7.2 7.7 

3.7 4.2 

7.2 7.2 

a.8 8.8 
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SUMMARY OF PROPOSED RATES FOR PHASING SCHEDULE 
STANDARD MAIL RATE SCHEDULE 321.5 

NONPROFIT ENHANCED CARRIER ROUTE SUBCLASS 
Rate 

Letter Size 
(cents) 

Piece Rate 
Basic 
Basic Automated Letter 
High Density 
Saturation 

Destination Entry Discount per Piece 
BMC 
SCF 
DDU 

Non-Letter Size * 
Piece Rate 

Minimum per Piece 
Basic 
High Density 
Saturation 

Destination Entry Discount per Piece 
BMC 
SCF 
DDU 

Pound Rate 
Plus per Piece Rate 

Basic 
High Density 
Saturation 

Destination Entry Discount per Pound 
BMC 
SCF 
DDU f 

Step 5 3’ 

N/A 
a.7 
7.3 
6.7 

1.5 1.5 
I.8 1.8 
2.3 2.3 

N/A 9.6 
N/A 8.6 
N/A 8.0 

1.5 1.5 
1.8 1.8 
2.3 2.3 

35.0 35.0 

N/A 2.4 
N/A 1.4 
N/A 0.8 

7.2 7.2 
a.8 a.8 

Ill.0 11.0 

Step 6 

9.6 
9.2 
7.8 
7.2 

.-, 

It is anticipated that in order to comply with 39 U.S.C. Section 3642(d), phased rates WIII not be 
implemented for the cells marked N/A. Full rates would apply for these cells, 
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SUMMARY OF PROPOSED RATES FOR PHASING SCHEDULE 
Schedule 323.2: Library 

First Pound 

Proposed Proposed 
Step 5 Rates Step 6 Rates 

(cents) (cents) 
144 144 

Each additional pound through 7 pounds 47 52 

Each additional pound over 7 pounds 24 25 

,--. 
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SUMMARY OF PROPOSED RATES FOR PHASING SCHEDULE! 
RATE SCHEDULE 423.2 

WlTHlN COUNTY 
(Step 5 and Step 6 Rates) 

PER POUND: 
General 
Delivery Off&’ 

PER PIECE: 
Required Presort 
Presorted to 3-digit 
Presorted to 5-digit 
Carrier Route Presort 

PER PIECE DISCOUNTS: 
Delivery Office2 
High Density (formerly 125 pieEj3 
Saturation 

Automation Discounts for Automation 
Compatible Mail4 

From Required: 
Pre-barcoded Letter size 
Pre-barcoded Flat size 

From 3-digit: 
Pre-barcoded Letter size 
Pre-barcoded Flat size 

From 5-digit: 
Pre-barcoded Letter Size 
Pre-barcoded Flat size 

Phase 5 Phase 16 
Rate Rate 
(cents) (cents) 

13.0 
11.7 

9.0 
7.9 
7.6 
4.4 

0.4 
0.4 
0.6 

13.1 
11.7 

9.0 
8.0 
7.7 
4.5 

0.4 
0.5 
11.7 

2.8 2.7 
13 1.2 

1.9 
1.3 

1.8 
1.4 

1.9 
1.4 

1.8 
1.4 
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SUMMARY OF PROPOSED RATES FOR PHASING SCHEDULE 
PERIODICALS RATE SCHEDULE 423.3 

PUBLICATIONS OF AUTHORIZED NONPROFIT ORGANIZ4TIONS” 
(Step 5 and Step 6 Rates) 

Postage 
Rate Unit 

PER POUND: 

Nonadvertising portion: 

Advertising portion:9 
Delivery Office’ 
SCF3 
l&2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
6 

PER PIECE: Less Nonadvertising Facto? 

Pound 

Pound 
Pound 
Pound 
Pound 
Pound 
Pound 
Pound 
Pound 
Pound 

Required Preparation’ Piece 
Presorted to 3.digit Piece 
Presorted to 5-digit Piece 
Presorted to Carrier Route Plee 

Discounts: 
Prepared to Delivery Of& Piece 
Prepared to SCF Piece 
High Density (fomverly 125-Piecr$ Piece 
Saturation’ Piece 

Automation Discounts for Automation Compatible Mail’ 

From Required: 
Pre-barcoded Letter size 
Prebarcoded Flats 

Piece 
Piece 

From >Digit: 
Pre-barmded Letter sze 
Pre-barcoded Flats 

Piece 
Piece 

From 5Digit: 
Pre-barcoded Letter we 
Pre-barcoded Flats 

Piece 
Piece 

Phase 5 Phase 6 

Rate’ Rate 
(cents) (cents) 

153 15.4 

158 15.8 
18.0 16.0 
20.3 20.3 
21.6 21.6 
25. I 25.1 
305 30.5 
36.1 36.1 
41.6 41.6 
47.4 47.4 

4 4 4.4 

24~21 24.4 
16.4 18.5 
16.2 18.3 
112 11.3 

1.2 1.2 
0 6 0~6 
2.0 2.0 
3.3 33 

7.g 7.9 
3.7 3.7 

2.9 29 
2.6 26 

3.2 3.2 
2.E; 2.8 
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SUMMARY OF PROPOSED RATES FOR PHASING SCHEIDULE 
PERIODICALS RATE SCHEDULE 423.4 

CLASSROOM PUBLICATIONS” 
(Step 5 and Step 6 Rates) 

Postage Phase 5 Phase 6 

PER POUND: 
Nonadvertising Portion: 

Advertising Portion9 

Delivery Office’ 

SCP 
182 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 

PER PIECE: Less Nonadvertising Facto? 

Required Preparation5 
Presorted to 3-digit 
Presorted to 5-digit 
Presorted to Carrier Route 
Discounts: 

Prepared to Delivery Ofrice 
Prepared to SCF 

High Density (formerly 125-Piece)6 

Saturation’ 
Automation Discounts for Automation 

Compatible Mail’ 
From Required: 

Pre-barcoded Letter size 
Pm-barcoded Flats 

From 3 Digit: 
Pre-barcoded Letter size 
Pre-barcoded Flats 

From 5 Digit: 
Pre-barcoded Letter size 
Pre-barcoded Flats 

Rate Unit Rate’ 
(cents) 

Pound 15.3 

Pound 15.8 15.8 

Pound 18.0 18.0 
Pound 20.3 20.3 
Pound 21.6 21.6 
Pound 25.1 25.1 
Pound 30.5 30.5 
Pound 36.1 36.1 
Pound 41.6 41.6 
Pound 47.4 47.4 

4.4 4.4 _, 

Piece 24.3 24.4 
Piece 18.4 18.5 
Piece 18.2 18.3 
Piece 11.2 11.3 

Piece 1.2 1.2 
Piece 0.6 0.6 

Piece 2.0 2.0 

Piece 3.3 3.3 

Piece 
Piece 

7.9 
3.7 

Piece 2.9 2.9 
Piece 2.6 2.6 

Piece 3.2 3.2 
Piece 2.8 2.8 ,- 

Rate 
(cents) 

15.4 

7.9 
3.7 

.- 
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ATTACHMENT C 

SPECLFICATION OF THE 
RULES, REGULATIONS, AND PRACTICES THAT ESTABLISH 

STANDARDS OF SERVICE AND CONDITIONS OF MAILABILITY 

In accordance with the Commission’s rules of practice and procedure, 39 C.F.R. 

6 3001.54(b)(2) (1996), the Postal Service designates the contents of the Domestic Mail 

Manual (DMM) as specifying those rules, regulations, and practices that establish 

conditions of mailability and standards of service. The following sets forth the table of 

(contents of the DMM. Compliance with this rule by the Postal Service is not an admission 

that any of the specified rules, regulations, and practices, or any other (contents of the DMM 

or other postal, manuls, are subject to the jurisdiction of the Postal Rate Commission, and 

ihe Postal Service expressly reserves the right to contest any assertion of such Commission 

jurisdiction. 



ATTACHMENT C 

B Addressing 
DMM51 January 1,1997 

Contents 

A000 Basic Addressing 
A01 0 General Addressing Standards 
A040 Alternative Addressing Formats 

A060 Detached Address Labels (DALs) 

A800 Addressing for Automation 

9YKl Yhstomer Support 
A910 Mailing List Services 

A920 Address Sequencing Services 
A930 Other Services 

A950 Coding Accuracy Support System (CASS) 

r\, 
‘L 



Characteristics and Content 
DMM51 January 1, ,997 

C:ontents 

COO0 General Information 
co10 

co20 

co30 

co50 

General Mailability Standards 

RestrIcted or Nonmailable Articles and Substances 

CO21 Articles and Substances Generally 
I^-.- Dsrishables 

co23 IiL.Lrldd~ b..rter 

CO24 Other Restncted or Nonmailable Matter 

Nonmailable Written, Printed, and Graphic Maner 
CO31 Written, Printed, and Graphic Matter Generally 

CO32 Sexually Onented Advertisements 
CO33 Pandering Advertisements 

Mail Processing Categories 

Cl00 First-Class Mail 

C:200 Periodicals 

C:500 Express Mail 

C:600 Standard Mail 

C:800 Automation-Compatible Mail 
0310 Letters and Cards 
C820 Flats 

C830 OCR Standards 

0340 Barcoding Standards 



-5 Deposit, Collection, and Delivery D n - 

Contents 

DO00 Basic Information 
DO10 Pickup Service 

DO20 Plant Load 
DO30 Recall of Mail 

DO40 Delivery of Mail 
DO41 Customer Mail Receptacles 

DO42 Conditions of Delivery 

DO70 Drop Shipment 
DO71 Express Mail and Priority Mail 

DO72 Metered Mail 

DlOO First-Class Mail 

D200 Periodicals 
D210 Basic InformatIon 

D230 Additional Entry 

D500 Express Mail 

D600 Standard Mail 

D900 Other Delivery Services 
D910 Post Office Box Service 

D920 Caller Service 
D930 General Delivery and Firm Holdout 

DMM51 January 1,1997 



,.-. 

Eligibility 

Contents 

EOOO Special Eligibility Standards 
EOlO Overseas Military Mail 

E020 Department of State Mail 
E030 Mail Sent by U.S. Armed Forces 
E040 Free Matter for the Blind and Other Handicapped Persons 

E050 Official Mail (Franked) 

El360 Official Mail (Penalty) 

E070 Mixed Classes 
EOEO Absentee Balloting Materials 

El00 First-Class Mail 
El 10 Basic Standards 
El20 Priority Mail 

El30 Nonautomation Rates 

El40 Automation Rates 

E200 Periodicals 
EZIO Basic Standards 

E211 All Periodicals 
E212 Qualification Categories 
E213 Periodicals Mailing Privileges 

E214 Reentry 
E215 Copies Not Paid or Requested by Addressee 

E216 Publisher Records 

E230 Nonautomation Rates 

E240 Automation Rates 

E250 Destination Entry 
E270 Preferred Periodicals 

E500 Express Mail 

(Continued on reverse) 

,-- 

-- 



E600 Standard Mail 
E610 

E620 
E630 

E640 

E650 

E670 

Basic Standards 
E611 All Standard Mail 

E612 Additional Standards for Standard Mail (A) 

E613 Additional Standards for Standard Mail (B) 

Nonautomation Nonpresort Rates 
Nonautomation Presort Rates 

Automation Rates 

Destination Entry 

E651 Regular, Nonprofit, and Enhanced Carrier Route 
Standard Mail 

E652 Parcel Post 

Nonprofit Standard Mail 



,,r-... 

1 

Forwarding and Related Services 
DMM51 January 1,1997 

Contents 

FOOO Basic Services 
FOlO Basic Information 

FO20 Forwarding 

FO30 Address Correction, Address Change, and Return Services 

.-” 



General Information da ~., 
..- 

A 
DMM51 January 1,1997 

Contents 

GO00 The USPS and Mailing Standards 
GO10 Basic Business Information 

GO1 1 Post Offices and Postal Services 

GO1 3 Trademarks and Copyrights 
GO20 Mailing Standards 

GL -0 Postal Zones 
GO40 Information Resources 

GO41 Postal Business Centers 
GO42 Rates and Classification Service Centers 

GO43 Address List for Correspondence 
GO90 Experimental Classifications and Rates 

GO91 Barcoded Small Parcels 

G900 Philatelic Services 



c Labeling Lists 
DMM51 January 1,1997 

Contents 

LOO0 General Use 
LOO2 3-Digit ZIP Code Prefix Matrix 

LOO3 3-Digit ZIP Code Prefix Groups for 3-Digit Schelne Sortation 

LOO4 3-Digit ZIP Code Prefix Groups for ADC Sortatm 
LOO5 3-Digit ZIP Code Prefix Groups for SCF Sortatim 

LlOO First-Class . . . 
L102 ADCs-Presorted Priority Mail 

L600 Standard Mail 
L601 BMCs-Machinable Parcels 
L602 BMCs-DBMC Rates 

L603 ADCs-Irregular Parcels 
L604 Originating ADCs-Irregular Parcel? 

LB00 Automation Rate Mailings 
LEO1 AADCs-Letter-Size Mailings 

L802 BMCiASF Entry-Perlodlcals and Standard Mail (A) 
L803 Non-BMC/ASF Entry-Periodicals and Standard Mail (A) 



Mail Preparation and Sortation 
CWM51 January 1,1997 

Contents 

MOO0 General Preparation Standards 
MO10 Mailpieces 

MO1 1 Basic Standards 

MO12 Markings and Endorsements 
MO13 Optional Endorsemen” ‘- ^- 

MO14 Carrier Route Information Llrleb 

MO20 Packages and Bundles 

MO30 Containers 
MO31 Labels 
MO32 Barcoded Labels 

MO33 Sacks and Trays 

MO40 Pallets 
MO41 General Standards 

MO45 Palletized Mailings 

MO50 Delivery Sequence 

MO70 Mixed Classes 
MO71 Basic Information 
MO72 Express Mail and Priority Mail Drop Shipment 

MO73 Combined Mailings of Standard Mail Machinable Parcels 

MO74 Plant Load Mailings 

Ml00 First-Class Mail (Nonautomation) 
Ml 20 Priority Mail 
Ml30 Presorted First-Class Mall 

M200 Periodicals (Nonautomation) 

M500 Express Mail 

M600 Standard Mail (Nonautomation) 
M610 Single-Piece and Nonautomation Standard Mail (A) 
M620 Enhanced Carrier Route Standard Mail 

M630 Standard Mail (B) 

M800 All Automation Mail 
MB10 Letter-Size Mail 
M620 Flat-Size Mail 

-T--- 



Postage and Payment Methods n 
l /--- 

DMM51 January .I, 1997 

Contents 

PO00 Basic Information 
PO10 

PO20 

PO30 

PO40 
PO70 

General Standards 
PO1 1 Payment 

PO12 Documentation 
PO1 3 Rate Application and Computation 

PO1 4 Refunds and Exchanges 

Postage Stamps and Stationery 
PO21 Stamped Stationery 

PO22 Adhesive Stamps 

PO23 Precanceled Stamps 
Postage Meters and Meter Stamps 

Permit Imprints 

Mixed Classes 

PI00 First-Class Mail 

PZOO Periodicals 

P!500 Express Mail 

Pt500 Standard Mail 

P700 Special Postage Payment Systems 
P710 Manifest Mailing System (MMS) 

P720 Optional Procedure (OP) Mailrng System 
P730 Alternate Mailing Systems (AMS) 
P760 Plant-Verified Drop Shipment (PVDS) 

P760 First-Class or Standard Mail Mailings With Different Payment Methods 

. 



c Rates and Fees - - 
DMM51 January 1,1997 

Contents 

ROOD Stamps and Stationery 

RlOO First-Class Mail 

R200 Periodicals 

R500 Express Mail 

R600 Standard Mail 

R900 Services 

,- 



I- Special Services 
DMM51 January 1,1997 

Contents 

,-. 

SO00 Miscellaneous Services 
SO1 0 Indemnity Claims 
SO20 Money Orders and Other SewiCeS 

SO70 Mixed Classes 

5500 Special Services for Express Mail 

S900 Special Postal Services 
S910 Security and Accountability 

s911 Registered Mail 
S912 Certified Mail 

S913 Insured Mail 
S914 Certificate of Mailing 

S915 Return Receipt 

S916 Restricted Delivery 
S917 Return Receipt for Merchandise 

5920 Convemence 
5921 Collect on Delivery (COD) Mail 
S922 Business Reply Mail (BRM) 
S923 Merchandise Return Service 

S930 Handling 



ATTACHMXNT D 

CERTIFICATION 

I, John A. Reynolds, Manager, Product Finance, Finance Department, 

United States Postal Service, am familiar with the attached Request of the United States 

Postal Service for a Recommended Decision on Changes in Rates of Postage and Fees for 

Postal Service, together with the accompanying direct testimony and exhibits. 

Pursuant to Rule 54(p) of the Postal Rate Commission’s Rules of Practice and 

Procedure, 39 C.F.R. 5 3001.54(p) (1996), I hereby certify that I have read the Request, that 

the cost statements and supporting data submitted as part of the Request, as we:11 as the 

accompany?ng workpapers, which purport to reflect the books of the Postal Service, 

accurately set forth the results shown by such books, and that, to the best of my knowledge, 

infonnatlon, and belief, every statement contained in the Request is proplx. 

/$%A A. /c++dL 
John A. Reynolds 

-- 
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w. OS 20336 

Repoti of Independent Auditors 

Board of Governors 
united states Postal sewice 

Yn 0111 opinioq the financial shtemcnts rcfemd to above present fairly, in all matehal 
rspec@ the finamid position of the United States Postal Service at September 30,1996 
andl1995,and~errsuttsof~opcr;rtionsaoditsGazh~owsforeachof6hethreeyearSin 
the paiod ended September 30.1996, in conformity with g&y accepted accohg 
jhciplla. 

In accordanw with Govenmrcnt Au&ring&zn&r&,wcbaveakoissucdarrportda& 
Novedxz 8, 1996, on om tideration of the United SIatcs Postal Service’s intcmal 
ana01 ccmcmre and a repoti daM November 8.1996, on its compliance with applicable 
laws and rcgulztions. 

November 8.1996 



As&s 
~cmrmtESUS: 

Cahandcashcquivalam 
,RBz&ables: 

Foreigncoun&s 
U.S. GovuImmt 
consignment 
other 

united states Postal service 

Balance Sheets 

Less auowances 
Total re-chables, net 

!Supplie& m!v-erlws and prepayments 
TOtdCKUQltascts 

Other asse& principally remme foxgone 
rppropuiahons ruxivable (Nofe 5) 

September 30, 
1996 19% 

(dollars in million) 

s 309.8 s 1,516.8 

972 6842 
1095 88.1 
38.1 38.1 

115.8 147.0 
810.6 957.4 
833 79.0 

n73 878.4 
410.0 3793 -. 

1,447.1 z.7745 
I 

354.2 317.5 

I29233 11.9172 

&EC 
8.798.1 
1,997.l 

695.4 618.8 ’ 
25,463J 23J312 

9J57.7 8,078.O 
16m-2 15,2532 
1$51.7 1,6163 

17J357.9 16,869-S 

319443 28J59.7 
S1,6035 S48,9212 

see ocwllqx@ng notcx 

2 



Liabilities and net capital d&ciencg 
cv5mt liabilities: 

Gmlpmsatjon and benets 
-prrpaidposrage 
Payables and accrued cxpascs: 

Foreign cokes 
U.S. GDvmllnent 
other 

Total payables and accrued eqa~es 
Prcpaidboxtentals,pzmitandmeteredmail 
ChrEtanding postal money orders 
Current portion of debt 

Total current liabilities 

Stpwnber 30, 
1996 1995 

(aaars i7l dIiom) 

s 4,7a7 S 5J98.9 
lJz3.4 1,697.4 

7205 958.9 
225.9 314.5 
877.7 740.9 

1$2d.l zo14.3 
lS= 1.430.5 
2g 260.9 6973 

=.5=6 112993 

Lang-tam debt, less cm-rent potion (Note 6) 39092. -. 7.018.6 

othaliabjlilies: 
Amomts payable for retirement IzeneEts (Note 4) 
Warkm’ c.ompen.sdion wst5 6Vote I) 
Retroadve a&ssments payable to tie 

U.S. Govetnm~ (Note 2) 
Employees’ accmnuhed leave 
other 

3q459.4 27.612.9 
4m.o 4,6853 

330.8 5982 
1,621-g 1.555.1 

443.1 -342.8 
37,7452 34.7943 

Net capital deficiency 
Capital conmbutions of the U.S. Govamncnt 
D&tit since reorganintion 

Total net capital defidcncy 

see occompa?ying notes. 
/- 

3,034.4 3,034.l 
(5,657.g) PD.11 
O&35) (4,191.O) 

551.6035 S48921.2 . 

3 



united states Postal service 

statements of operaGons 

Opdng revenue (Note 5) 
opccratingacpcnscs: 

~q-don md bsfis (Notes 1.3. d 4) 

Total operating expenses 

Income from operations 

Intmstandjmeam~~e 

YeusmdttdScpteqber30, 
1996 19% 1994 

(&Dam in millions) 

SW=0 3X293.5 849283.4 

42.6755 419313 39,608.8 
10,437.o 8.798.9 8JM6.4 

53Jl25 50,7302 48,4552 

3a95 3,5633 9282 

141.7 215.9 193.4 

(1.3635) (1.336.4) - 
(566.4) (601.5) 

(473) c19.0) (97.3) 

Interest eqense on &far+ zuiramn liabilitms 
(Note 4) 

interest eqmse on borrDwings 
hptd &crest on OBRA 1990 and OBRA 1993 

rdmactive as.-ents for employet bench 
(Note 2) 

Net income (loss) SlS72 s l,T103 s (913.6) 

See o.wompnying notes. 



/- 
united states Postal service 

Statements of Changes in Net C#d DC~~CIK~ 

years l3xid September 30,1996,1995 and 1994 

-i-l 
contl5butiorls Total Net 

of U.S. D&it Since COpitOl 
Government Reorganization Dekiency 

(iiollars in millions) 

Balance, Scptemba 30,1993 s3,034.1 s&081.8) 
Net Lo!s (913.6) 

S(w47.7) 
(913.6) 

Balance, Septdm 30,1995 
Net home 
Capital Equipment Transfers hm the U.S. Govemment 

Balance, Scptemba 30,1996 

02 

(02) 

pi.;, (4,192) 

(02) 

Ls67.2 

3,033.g (SgS5.4) (5.961.5) 
I.7703 I.7703 

3,034.l 
1J67J’ 

03 03 
s3,034.4 S(5,657.9) 

,/-.. 

See acc~ontpanying nom 



united states Postal service 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Yeus ended September XI, 
1996 1995 1994 

(aak-sinsrilliorrr) 

n3672 s 1.7703 s (913.6) 

1.141.4 991.9 
(20) 0.1 

145 83 23.6 

w-3 (51J) (635) 
(2621 (92.4) 

2052 359.1 (173.8) 

c299.7) (626.1) 074.7) 
66s 415 1155 

1003 110.9 709 

-- 151.1 2.7 (15.7) 
42 976.1 (18-V 163.6 8.9 

G& (211.4) 130.0 633.4 38.0 

161.8 1105 1145 
06.5) (1342) 1333 

2#9.0 3580.9 660.0 

c199.U (6249.r) (10,450.0) 
proatds 5-m sale of US. Govrnrmem sec&iq n-Able-for& 800.0 6368.1 x22192 
Purchse of pmpcrry and equipment cc-m) wO7.7) (1.7265) 
FTcedshmsaleofproparymdcqa@em 3.6 12.7 4.9 

?4aash(nsedia)plvvidoclbyinvcseing~s CW5.l) (1.77W1 47.6 

Gsb nom from ctamdmg btvtti~ 
ls.suimscof~ 1slo.o J300.4 300.0 
paymaBoo&bt G.8409) (3.CCJ8.4, (1.060.7) 

NetaLlB0clin~~~cs w6o.9) (1.708.0) (760.7) 

Na(drrrcase)hcmsebasb~ddcqtdv4lmk OfO7.~) 963 (52.1) 
Cnhmdsrbeqtimtsmbegimbgofycar 15168 I.4203 1.473.6 

C&andcarhcquivailwatmdofya? 5 309.8 s lJ16.8 f 1.420.5 

seerlaom~nota. 
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united states Postal smite 

Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30.1996 and 199s 

:I. Postal Opcmtions and Aeconnthag Pokks 

Natnre of opcmtions 

-. 

The united states Postal sa-vice @xtal service) provides mail service to tk public, 
IDffering a ‘variety Of CkXS Of mail Sa-ViCCS WithOUt ckcrkk&on among its - 
customas. This mwns that within each ciass of mail our price does not vary by customer 
:for the lcvcls of savice WC provide. nis ful5lk OUI legal mandate to offer univa.sal 
:scrvice at a fair price. Our primary lines of business fnc Fi Class, Standard A 
(formerly Third Clasz.), and Priority mail. The principal ma&ets for these services arc the 
~communicatiom, distriitim and delivery, a&chin& aid retail markets. As in the pass 
‘WC cDlltiU!C to coIlduct om si*cant opemions in 1994 to 1996 my in tile 
domestic makes with 0~ Intanafhal operations repcmbg lcssthsn3pcxentofoLu 
stDtal revcmle. 

Our labor force is piimariIy represented by the American Postal Workers Union, National 
Assobtiort of Letter Carriers, National Postal Mail Handlers T&m, and National RI+ 
ILctteI carriers Associaiion Almost 90 pcralt of OUT caea employees ac DOVered by 
collective ba&ning agreemcm. No agreement cxpkcs in 1997. 

Postal Reorganization 

The Postal Service commenced operations on July 1, 1971, in accordance with the 
provisions of the Postal Rexgaization Act The equity that the U.S. Govemment held in 
the fonncr Post OlTicc Dcpallmerlt became tile initial apita! of the Postal scrvic.c. lItc 
Postal Service vatued the assets of tile fomlcr POSI o&e Dcpa-cm at origiuid cost 1cs.s 
aczxmllllated l3!zpaion nc U.S. Govcmmalt rrmained Iesponsiiie 6x all the 
liab~cs attliib~le to opcratiom of the forma Post o&e DcpamQlL 

Basis of Alcconnting and Use of Estiuutes 

-- 

7 
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united stats Pbstal service 

Notes to Financial Statements (amtinued) 

We dktamine the current value of OUI investments in non-ma&able U.S. Govemmmt 
sccudics based Dn the cmrmt value of oquivalalt marketable U.S. Govaomcnt 
swuritk. We~ethecrnrcntvaucofourdebtonwhatwcestim;ueitwouldwn 
ILS to :pay off the debt if arc used the amat yield on cquivalar~ U.S. Trasory debt 

Suppks, achnces and prcpaymaris arc prim&y composed of our inventok of 
supplies, motor mhicle par& rqairable parts for mail procaing ~equipmen~ and 
dvsnocs t4 aqloyas for lrrmual kavc. we value om inventories ;ti the lowex of 
avaqe cost or curcat market price. Total inventories amounted to S211.1 million at the 
mdofyear1996andSl94.1millionattheendofyear1995. 

Properts; md Equipment 

WC~~propatyimdeqaipmentatarhatitcoRusto~~asxl5,includingthe 
intnrstwepayontbemoncyahborrowtopayfartheconshuctionofmajor~ 
additions. This intaesf amounted to S28-5 million in 1996, S47.2 million in 1995, and 
sn.7 dh in 1994. WC d.epd buildings end equipment 0~ thei esfimattd 
useful lives using the straight-line method We amortize leasehold improvcmaxts ova 
the period of the lease or the useful life Of tbc iqxwcmcn~ whichever he is shOrlcr. 

ThisistheamoMtofcasharcestimate~wew~eatdbytheendof~y~for 
serviws that we win pafotm iu the following yeaI. 

Compensation and Ben& Payable 

This i:s the salaries and bcne& WC owt to current and retired employas, including the 
amounts employees have caned but have not yet been paid, tiurcnt workers’ 
wmpmsation, lnlclnplopellt costs, health balefits, and the CtnTmt pzmion of the 
SrmOUIltS payable for rctircmmt knefits. 

8 
_--- ~--.- 
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united states Postal service 

Notes to Financial Statements (conhwd) 

1. Posti Operations and Accounting PoJkies (contiuued) 

Defend Retirement Ben&s 

.‘- 

This is the $rcscn! value of our c&mated legal obligation to the Civil S&ice Ftdranen! 
and Disability Frmd fix the smomu of ret&men! kne& &mated as pqable in the 
futore fM O~TT CIUTW~ C@OJ'CS' r&m’nti and om pmmt Iuirusand~smvivara. 
ne psalt value of om beneiis payable for 0111 cuIrent employees iocreascs when 
managmlent increases basicpay. weEImomztandpaythisportionoftb!!liabiuyova 
30ycalrat5pcrca~ nlepresentvatueofombRle~payableakohlRsses 
when Cht of Living AdjMments (COLAS) are granted to our r&u5 or their survivors. 
Weamortizeandpaythisportionof~eliabilityovalSycarsatSpercent~~ We 
~~asdefenedretirementcoasthcsmo~~andpayableinfunaeyears. we 
amortize and pay these costs over periods of 30 and 15 yean. We accotmt for our 
participation in the U.S. Govamlml sponsMd retiremwt plms as participation in multi- 
employer plan arlangemults. Therefore, wc apense the costs of OUT netirec benefits 
whcnaleincmth5n 

Post-Rl&ement Health BeneSts 

Retire health bench costs are our obligation to pay a portion of the health insuance 
pmnius~ of those r&us and their slwivors &IO paikipate iu the Federal Employees 
Health Bene& Rogmm (FEHBP). We accouu! for our pzticipation iu FEXBP as 
participalion in a muhi-anploycr plan anzmgerncnt Thercforc, wc experse the costs of 
OUT retirees’ health kne&s as we incur them 

Workers’ compensation costs 

We arc self-insured for workers’ compmsation ws& under a pro- ailmininmd by 
the Dcparlmcnt of Labor (DOL). We rewrd these costs, which include the employee’s 
medical~ahdpaymmtfM~n~~onofwaga,asanaperatinl,aq~~w. At 
thecnclofmeycar,o~liabiliryreprrsmtsom~prrscntvatucofthetotal 
amounts we expt to pay for outstanding claims. We base oti esdmztcofthetotalcosts 
of a claim upon the severity of the injury, the age of the injured employer:. the assumed 
life expcctmcy of tbc employee, the trend of our experience with such an injury, and 
otkrfictors. Lnourcalcul~onofprrsmtvalue,wtnsea~discormt~of0.1percent 
for medical expenses aud 3.0 percent for compenration claims. 

T-- 



Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

1. Postal Opentions and Accounting Policies (continuai) 

Workers’ Compemut.ion costs (eontlnucd) 

At the end of 1996, wz &mate 00 total lhbility for hue wo*as’ campm&on cost5 
at S5,423.8 million At I& md of 1995, &is liability was 55218.6 million. la 1996, we 
recorded 57365 million in w&as’ cornpcmaion cqensc, campand to the S8773 
milIionwe~inl995and~S326.8milli~~rrcordcdinl9p4. 

Research and Development Costs 

We accord research and development costs as cxpmses when we incur them. These costs 
were S55.5 million in 1996, S51.9 million in 1995, and S50.4 million in 1994. 

Reclwikations 

We have reclassi&d ccrtaiu previously nzportcd fimncial satemm amt)um in o&r to 
conform to this year’s presamioll 

2. Retroactive Assessments for Employee Ben&s 

Omulbns Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990 

The Orm.ii Budget Ramdiiation AU of 1990 (OBRA 1990) quks us’ to pay our 
porticm of our retirees’ cost of living adjnstmmts (COLAS) (Note 4) and health u 
@otc 3). This Au also retroactively ascssed us S2.14 billion as oulr portion of our 
retires he&b bentits and cost of living adjusbncn~ ibt the U.S. Government had paid 
&om .hly 1.1971 through Septemk 30.1986. We paid this assessmart over a five-year 
period v&J3 the last iirstabcns in 1995. we acpewd s33.7 million in 1995 8!ld s54.4 
million in 1994 as intcres related to OBRA 1990 rcnuaujve a.sscsnnu5. 

10 
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unitedstate.sPostd service 

Notes to Financial Statements (amtimed) 

% Rek-oactive hsasmenk for Employee Ben&k (contimed) 

Omnibus Rudget Reconcitiation Act of 1993 

IfnderthtOmnrbrrsBudgaReEondliationAaof1993,wtmunpayS]?m+m~ 
on the sL14 billion retma&ve assesmmt hm the Omniius Budget Reconciliahn Act 
of1990. we~topaythisinterrstin~equalarrrmalinstallments1tDtalings1.041 
billion. We made the 6rst paycent in 1996. 

Yepr HcdthRen&k colA.5 Total 

1996 S 116.0 s231.0 s 347.0 
1997 116.0 231.0 347.0 
1998 116.0 231.0 347.0 

1,041.O 
Less amount repsen* imputed inlaw at 5 pacmt 
Retroactive interest asscsQnaIt eqmlsdin 1993 
Less: Portion paid in 1996 

Portion to be paid in 1997 classiCed as a cuncnt habiity 
Add: amount of impurea interest expensed tttrougb 1996 

184.0 
857.0 
347.0 
314.7 

w32 million in 1994; S45.0 million in 1995; md 
s473 nlillicm in 1996) 

R-active interest assessment cl&cd as a noncmruxt hbility 

1355 

S 330.8 m- 

3. Post-Retirement Health Ben&t Prqgams 

Eqlqyces of the Postal Sa-vice who participate in the Federal Employees Health 
Benefits Program -P) for zz least the five years immediately before their hranatt 
mayjxnd+atcintheFEJ-lBPProgl2mdlhgthcirrctirancnt undcrtheFEHEsP,we 
pay a portion of the M insnan= premiums of participating tires and their 
survivors. This program is admi&md by the omce of PusoILuel hhlagcmcJlt 

The Omniius Buaget Rcconcilihon Act of 1990 rcquk us to pay the employer’s share 
of hcaith insumxe premiums for au anployces. and the& sln-vivoIs, who participate in 
the FEHBP and who retire on or after July 1,197l. However, wt do not include the costs 
attributable to Federal civilian service before that date. Our FEHBP costs zanountrd to 
$496.8 million in 1996, S5133 million in 1995, and S519.0 million iu 19%. We include 
these costs in our corn~on and bendts cqmse. 



NotestoFhancidStatcmcnts(cxmtinued) 

Civil Service Retirement and Disnbi (CSRS) Fund 

Under tbc Posfal Reorganiration AIX officas and career employees src wvQcd by the 
Civil!krviceRetircmcntandDisabilityFmd,whichprovidesabasicmmityand 
Mediwre wvaage. ‘KS Fmd cmm SubstmtiaUy ELII employees hired #or to January 
1.1984. We and &c pa&@ing employee each wntrii 7 percent of tk cmployw’s 
badcpaytothisFund. Weandthe~loyetalso~~~toMedi~atmC~ 
pesaii by law. We do not match con!riiutions to the Tb& Savings Plan for 
employees who pazticipatc in this FuncL 

Dual Civil Service Retirement and Disability (Dual CSRQSo&J Saurity System 

,!Zmployees with priar U.S. Govcument szrvicc -x310 were hired between Jamy I.1984 
and January 1,1987 m wvem3 by the Dual Civil Savice Retiranent nod Disability 
:Fm&kial Semity Systan We wntrii 7 pacent of the employee’s basic pay to the 
Civil Smioe Retirement and l3isability Funde The cmployec wrmibmcs 0.8 percent of 
‘basic pay. we and the Qnploycc ako wrltriiurc to Social Security7 and Mcdicarc at tie 
rxtespnsiibyl.aw. Wedonot~hmnpibntionstDtheTkmf~PpknfoI 
imlp10yecswhoparei@ucindEDual SysmL 

P&nl Employees Retirement System (FERS) 

EBadvc Jaumry 1, 1987, anployecs hired since Jzmmry 1, 1984, except for those 
~covered by the Dual System, are wvad by the Fcdmal Employees Retirema Syscm 
Act of 1986. Iu addition, employees hised More January 1,1984 could choose dining 
c~pcriodsin1987and1988toparticipatein~FERs. Thi~Systcmwnsimof 
!SocialScnrrity,abasic~~p~andarhriftravingsplan 

we wntriiltted to the basic annuity plan 11 A percent of each cmploycc’s basic pay in 
1996 d 1995, and 12.9 pcrmtt in 1994. Employees wrkbutcxi 0.8 pacent of their 
basic pay in these years. WC and the cmploye also wntrMte tc Social Security and 



uilitcd states Postal service 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

,4. Retirement Programs (continned) 

:Federrl Employees Retirement System (F’ERS) (contimwd) 

Medicareatthcratesprcsaiibylaw. &addAion,wewquiredtowmiitorhe 
‘IhrifrSavingsPlana~~oflpaccntperyeaofthebasj.cpayofempioyees 
covered by this System We also match a volmtq 5ploya wnuiition up to 3 
percent of the mployce’s basic pay, aud SO percent of a wmi%ution between 3 percent 
md 5 puuni of tic pay. 

The number of employees emoIled in each of the r&mmzt plans at the end of 1996, 
119P5and1994isasfollows: 

1996 1995 1994 

FEW 

Ikferd Retirement Costs 

328J70 34oJOP 350,811 
14szo 14,634 14,658 

417348 398,048 362,339 

Ikfmed retirement wets consist of the following defmed liabilities (do&us in millions): 

1996 1995 

CSRS basic pay increases w637.1 s24,097.0 
CSRS retirws’ and sumivo~~’ wst of living 

adjuslmmk 53072 4,862.7 
5319443 S28,959.7 

Deferred Retirement Liability - Civil Service Retirement md Disability Fund 

,,-. 

when we xaisc 00 employees’ lzm-rmt basic pay, we arc liable for tbc additional defemd 
retirement liability. The IiabZty remlk hm the increwe ii2 00 anployecs l&mncnt 
~fikdliCh~bWdOllthiSpYiJlREZ. l-k 05ice of Paxmnel hfmagement 
detamines the edmated increase in 00 defmcd liabii. We aulonize zmd pay this 
mmouot in 30 equal annual instalhmk., which includes &crest wnputed at a rate of 5 
percent pa year. We make the Ent paymmt at the end of the year in which employees 
rweive their pay incmse. 

The kreasc in OUT deferred liability for retirement benefits unda this Fuod vuas $3,696.7 
million in 1996, WOO.4 million in 1995, and $930.6 million in 1994. 
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NotestoFinancial Statcmcnts(contiwd) 

S 3,083.O 
3JC2.4 
3JI46.7 
3,0273 
3.0199 

34.899.4 
s50.128.7 

1.484.9 
18.184.4 

s30.459.4 



united states PostaI service 

Notes to Financial S-tatements (continued) 

4. Retirement ProgRmt (cvntinoed) 

3%xpense components 

Listed below ate the components of OUT total r&cmcnt CqnIscs that aYe included in our 
czmpendon and bene&s expew fix 1596,1995, and 1594 (dollars inmillions): 

1996 1995 1994 

c2a.s s 877.1 s 842.9 S 830.4 
lg2.9 lpo.o IJ30.0 

FBRS-RKiftSWillgsPlan 489.2 400.1 339.8 
Dua.lcsRs/social~ 363 34.4 33.5 
soc5allsecl& l&32.4 1.0082 949.7 
AulolliAtion of defd 
li&&-jits: 

CSRS lJi6.6 988.3 855.5 
&Iosmlt COLA s6.7 470.6 424.2 

S&213 s5,014.5 S4,663.1 

5. RewnueForgone 

our opeiaeng revenue includes acczuak for EvpIue forgor?c. Rcwnlle is folgmle 9&n 
Gxlgress mmdam that we provide free or redd mail rates for CcItain mail=. The 
ciificrcncc between the price Congress has maodared and the price we would have 
charged the ma&? de tenniucstbe amoml! offorgonexwcn~. cmgress apopktes 
money to reimburse us for ody a portion of tkc revenue forgone that we have inamed in 
pastyem.. Inomopmhg~ue,wchave~hpdedas~Qluedle8mo~ 
41pqriad by Congress for revenue forgone of S93.1 million for 1996, S1173 mi!lion 
fotr 1995, arkdS131.4miIiionfor 1994. 

Under the Fkvamc Forgone Reform Act of 1993, Congress is rqrkd -to reimburse us 
S29 million atadly through 2025 (42 YearS). This tcidJurScmCnr F.. for two purposes: 
services we pafamed iu 1991,1992 and 1993 and for which we have not yet been paid; 
and for s,htf& in the reimbmant for the costs WC incunzd ox will incur for 
pmcaskg and delivaing ca?ain non-profit mail shtn 1994 &rough 1998. If Coqrcss 
dosn’tpaymfortheseniwahhavealrradyprovidtd,wecanbyi;~wmakeupthatloa 
home by adju.&g our rates on d mai& tb10ugh the pod rate-m- process. 

15 



united states Postal service 

Notes to Financial Statements (continuea> 

5. Revenue Forgone (eonti~oed) 

TbcRevcrmeForgoncAdof1993ardhorizedatotalofS1218biIIiol~~~~ We 
calculatethe~vallle0f~esefluvre . ’ entssu7pauntintauttobc 
qtpoximately s3PO million At the ad of 1996. we have reco~ CunlOlative 
IEV~UM of qproxkmtely S352.6 million related to these rmpaid anmm& This mnoti 
is a nxxivable es of Septsmk 30, 1996. We recordtd rseivabl~> as of year4 of 
53117.5 million in 1995. We rmogndd rcvmue of S37 million in 1996, rmd S54 million 
in 1995, and S69 miltion iu 1994. 

Ailbough Gmgress paid its debt to us in lP94,1995, and 1996, it approved paying us 
only 523.6 miltion of&e S29 mi&m thy owe us for 1997, due to budget cunsnakts. 
WC: believe tbar iu compliance with the law end the 1996 Chngressi~ confcrmce 
Rqort,CongresswiUrcimburseusthediEezm.einthefuture. 

6. Debt and Related Interest Cask 

Under the Postal Rrqanidon Act, as amen&d by Public hw 101-227, we can issue 
debt obligahons. However, we are limited to net annual increases of S2 billion in our 
debt for capital iqnwements and to Sl billion for opcFdn expcses. Our total debt 
cannotexccedS15biIion 

Debt is due as follows: 

ycor &Ilount 

1997 S2JO9.5 
1998 683.7 
1999 84.9 
2000 852 
2001 51.0 
Afkr2001 3.004.4 

We paid in c&S&S million in intntst in 1996, S576.1 million in 1995 and 5684.6 
dlliion in 19% 

The current estimad value of debt is S6,078.2 million in 1996 and $17.588.6 million in 
1995. 

. . 

II 

--. 
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United States Postal Service 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued:) 

6. Debt and Relata3 Interest Costs (coz~tianed) 

Our debt copsins of the following (doIhs in millions): 

_ kzz Terms 
September 30, 

19% 19% 

2% 
J2u 
90.0 

l.E 1062 180.0 

120 48.0 

168.0 168.0 
450.4 450.0 

z50.0 250.0 

yoi; :g:: 
pJ.0 

100.0 
5W.0 

l., 

z:: . _ 

300.0 

-s - 1,26&l 

324 14.8 - 
_ 591b7 7.2795 

%o%J5 260.9 

-590!32 S7.018.6 
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united statespostal semicc 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued> 

7. comiitmalb 

Al:sqtaber30,1996,~estimate the cost to complete approved Postal stice czlpital 
pjcckinprogrrssisappodmdyS2.84obillion 

1996 19% 1994 

Ncncanallable real estate leases 
hClUChgEhdtWS 56159 S580.5 S555.0 

FEilitkSlWSCdhGencral~ . . Adrmmaa ‘on subject to ItOday 
notice of cauccllahon ii.0 34.6 38.0 

Equipment md other &olt-tamreaals 152.6 150.0 1482 
s804.5 3765.1 1;7412 

At September 30,1996, om future minimm mtal fees for all noncancellable leases are 
BS :foIIows (dohs in millions): 

Ym - opem* Clpitd 

1997 S 489.6 s 20.1 
1998 4095 20.1 
1999 332.1 20.1 
2000 2502 20.1 
2001 1642 20.1 
Afm 2001 643.6 118.6 

Fame minimum lease payrats S 2,2892 s 1119.1 
Less:Inte~stat6.5% ~, 
foal capital lease obligations 
Less: Short-tam pation of capital 
lease ob&atiom 

Long-tam portion of capital lease 
obligations 

62.4 
S 1.56.7 

10.1 

S 146.6 -- 

18 
--. 



united states Postal service 

Notes to Financial Sbtcments (continued) 

7. commitmellts (continlled) 
. 

Most of these kasM co&II renewI options for paiods rauging hm il t0 20 y-. 
Catsin noncanallable real estate leases give us the option to pufchax tbc facilities at 
prices spceed inthe leases. 

Capital leases included in buildings were S156.7 million in 1996 and 5:124-O million in 
1995. Total acutm~ated 1~~10rtktion is S27J GIlion in 1996 and 516.5 milLion in 
1995. Amortization cxpe~ fa sssets rculrdcd mdm capital 1-j is included in 
depnxialion~. 

8. Contingent Liabilities 

l%chquzrterwcviewlitigationp&in.gagainstus. Asarciultofthktiew,we 
class@ and adjust,our contingencks for claims which we think it is probable &at we will 
lose and for which we c5m reasonably &mate the mount of the rmfavorable outcome. 
Tllcse claims cover laboI, qual tallploymeJlt OppmQmiQ, ulviKmmaal issues, tx2.fzc 
accidents, injuries on postal propdie% personal claims and properly damages, and suits 
audcGmsaisiughmpostalco~. Wealsorcwgoiz the setdcment of claims and 
lawsuits and revisions of other cs&arr& 

As reported in last year’s annual rep% the Merit Systems Protcc!ion Bwrd ruled in July 
1993 that the restrue Rarted in 1992 cons&& a reduction-in-f&cc as &tied by 
the &de of Federal Regulations. As a result, wr condwted a compliance reduction-in- 
fora according to applicable proadures. our cslimad liamly a3 of septcmber 30, 
1996isbasedonthe~~ofopenappealsat~endofthcy~,c~kfo~the 
Bomi or pcndiug ‘kforc the U.S. Colpt of Appeas for the Federal Circuit We have 
reduced this liability 6-om prior years. Our Gcnad Counsel has actively litigated and 
Icsohd the majolity of tbc outsmdkg appeals. 

AsapartofourwnlinuingNatuation0festimatts rquircd iu lhe pmpation of OUT 
f&nl&tl statements, we rearded appmximzscly 5120 million in iIKT?aied liabilities in 
1996, and reduced liabilitia by ~zkmzte~ 3360 million in 1995. We recognired 
settlement of claims and law suits and revisal OTJEI &mates in ‘Our dlaugs in 
rzmingcnt liabiies. 



ATTACHFlENT F 

WITNESS 

Mr. Pafford 

Ms. Nieto 

Mr. Hatahush 

Mr. Moden 

Mr. Alexandrovich 

nl- -!o!!ey 

Mr. Tlness 

TESTIMONY 

- 
5 EXHIBITS 

TITLE 

JSPS-T- I 

JSPS-T-2 

_ISPS-T-3 

JSPS-T-4 

USPS-T-5 

NOX 

NOIIC 

NOIE 

N0Ile 

Cost Segments and Components, Base Year 
1996 

Fmal Adjustments, Base Year 1996 

Coast Revenue Analysis, Base Year 1996 

NUMBER 

USPS-5A 

USPS-SD 

USPS-SC 

ITCl”C LA ““I u-“r. 

WORKPAPERS 

NOM 

NOIE 

None 

NOlIt- 

Workpapcrs-A Iluoogh ( 

Workpapers-1-3 

A’ITORNEY 

Anne Reynolds 
(202) 268.2970 

Anne Reynolds 
(202) 268.2970 

Anne Reynolds 
(202) 268-2970 

Scott Reiter 
(202) 268.2999 

Susan Duchek 
(202) 268-2990 

-. _. 
one Keening 
(202) 268.2992 

Eric Koettmg 
(202)268-2992 



EXHIBITS 

-WITNESS TESTIMONY TITLE NUMBER WORKPAPERS ATTORNEY 

Hr. Musgrve USPS-T-S None Yes Susan Duchek 
(202) 268-2900 

Mr. Tayman USPS-T-9 Statements of Revenue and Expense FY 1996-T& USPS-9A Yes Scott Reiter 
Year After Rates (202) 268-2999 

Rollfonvard Source of Change Summaries FY 1996 USPS-9B 
Through the Test Year Afler Rates 

Mail Volume, FY 1996 Through the Test Year After USPS-9c 
Rates 

Mail and Special Services Revenue, FY 1996 USPS-9D 
Through the Test Year After Rates 

Appropriation Revenue, FY 1996 Through the Test USPS-9E 
Year 

Cash Flow Forecast, FY 1997 Through the Test USPS-9F 
Year After Rates 

Interest Income. FY 1997 Through the Test Year I USPS-9G I I 
After Rates 

Revenue Requirement, Summary Analysis of USPS-9H 
Income and Expenses 

Comparative Statements of Revenue and Expense, USPS-91 
Test Year vs. Achml (Docket R94-I) 



- 

I 

WITNESS 

Mr. Macdonaid 

TESTIMONY 

T 
TITLE 

Computation of Weighted Average 
Percentage Revenue and Cost Variances 

Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (OBRA) 
Costs 

Summary ofNet Income (Loss) & Equity 

Summary of Changes in Accrued Costs by 
SOUX 

Net Income (Los) GAP From Equity 
Restoration Target 

Summary of Unit Labor Costs for Major 
Employee Groups 

Summary of Changes in Workyears by 
SOUKe 

Analysis of Changes in Personnel Costs 

1 
Wxk~~~ Compensation Discount Rate 
Analysis Summary Table of Results of 
Estimated Discount Rates Derived from DRI 
Data 1987-1996 

EXHIBITS 

NUMBER 

usps-9J 
1 

I 1 

USPS-9K 

USPS-9L 

USPS-9M 

USPS-9N 

USPS-90 

USPS-9P 

USPS-9Q 

USPS-IOA 

WORKPAPERS 

NOW 

i= 

i 

1 



Workers’ Compensation Medical Discount Rate 
Analysis Cycle Projection 

Workers’ Compensation Discount Rate Analysis 

Workers’ Compensation Medical Discount Rate 
Analysis Historical Trends: 1977.1996 

Workers’ Compensation Discount Rate Analysis 
(Historical Trends) FY 1996 

i 



WITNESS 

Dr. Bradley 

Dr. Bradley 

Mr. Patelunas 

TESTIMONY 

USPS-13 

USPS-14 

USPS-T-15 

EXHIBITS 

TITLE 

Transportation Management Instruction 

Calculation of Variablities for Split Cost 
Accounts 

MODS Operation Numbers 

Calculating the System Volume Variability for 
MODS Offices 

Rollfonvard Factors 

Cost Segments and Components, FY 1997 

Final Adjustments, FY 1997 

Cost and Revenue Analysis, FY 1997 

Cost Segments and Components, TY 1998 

Final Adjustments, TY 1998 at Cunent Rates 

Cost and Revenue Analysis, TY 1998 at Current 
Rates 

NUMBER 

USPS-l3A 

USPS-l3B 

USPS-14A 

USPS-14B 

USPS-l5A 

USPS-ISB 

USPS- I5C 

USPS-I5D 

USPS-ISE 

USPS-ISF 

USPS- I5G 

WORKPAPERS 

Wp-I through 7 

Vote: WP-I through 7 not 
-efiled at this time. See 
w-1 through 7 submitted 
Nith USPS-T-4 in Docket 
Vo. MC97-2 

WP-I through 5 

WP-A through G 

ATTORNEY 

Susan Duchek 
(202)268-2990 

Susan Duchek 
(202)268-2990 

Susan Duchek 
(202)268-2990 



EXHIBITS 

WITNESS TESTIMONY TITLE NUMBER WORKPAPERS A’ITORNEY 

Cost Segments and Components, TY 1998 USPS-ISH 
at Proposed Rates 

Final Adjushnents, TY 1998 at Proposed USPS-151 
Rates 

Cost and Revenue Analysis, 1998 at USPS-15J 
Proposed Rates 

vlr. Hatfield USPS-T- I6 Summary of Parcel Post Unit USPS-16A None Anne Reynolds 
Transportation Costs by Zone (202) 268-2970 

Summary of Code Weight Relationship USPS-l6B None 
Results 

Hr. Baron USPS-T- I7 NOIE NOlIe Richard Cooper 
(202) 268-2993 

blr. Hume USPS-T-18 Reclassified Unit Costs: First Class Mail USPS- IEA Workpapers- I-3 Michael Tidwell 
(202) 268.2998 

Reclassified Unit Costs: Standard Mail USPS-l8B Richard Cooper 
(202) 268-2993 

Reclassified Unit Costs: Nonprofit Mail USPS-IEC 



-WITNESS 

Mr. Nelson 

Mr. Wade 

Mr. Brehm 

Mr. Treworgy 

I USPS-T- I9 

USPS-T-20 

USPS-T-2 I 

I 

I 

I 

L 

USPS-T-22 

TESTIMONY TITLE 

Spreadsheet Refinements 

Data Collection and Analysis Procedures 

Econometric Analyses 

Express Mail Rate Category Cost 
Differentials 

Cost Basis for Pickup Fees 

NOI% 

Economies of Scale in Postage Sales 

Transaction Time Study Regression 
Results 

N0ne 

NUMBER 

USPS-l9A 

USPS-I9B 

UCPS- I9C 

USPS-19D 

USPS-19E 

USPS-21A 

USPS-21B 

WORKPAPERS ATTORNEY 

Richard Cooper 
(202) 268.2993 

Eric Koetting 
(202) 268-2992 

David Rubin 
(202) 268-2986 

Kenneth Hollies 
(202) 268-3083 



WITNESS TESTIMONY TITLE NUMBER WORKPAPERS ATTORNEY 

Mr. Miller USPS-T-23 Outgoing Primary RBCS Mail Flow USPS-23A NOTlt2 Michael Todwell 
(202) 268.2998 

Model Inputs USPS-23B 

RBCS System Leakage USPS-23C 

Handwritten Reply Mail and Prebarcoded Reply USPS-23D 
Mail Cost Models 

Dr. Lion USPS-T-24 NOW NON Kenneth Hollies 
(202) 268-3083 

Mr. Hatfield USPS-T-25 First-Class Mail Processing Cost Summary USPS-25A NOIIC Michael Tidwell 
(202) 268.2998 

Mr. Seeker USPS-T-26 First-Class Flats USPS-26A NOM Kenneth Hollies 
(202) 268.3083 

Periodicals Regular Rate Flats USPS-26B 

Periodicals Nonprofit Flats USPS-26C 

Standard Mail (A) Regular Rate Flats USPS-26D 

Standard Mail (A) Nonprofit Flats USPS-26E 

Periodicals Regular Rate Flats, Constant Mail USPS-26F 
Entry 



‘) i 

EXHIBITS 

WITNESS TESTIMONY TITLE NUMBER WORKPAPERS ATTORNEY 

Periodicals Nonprofit Flats, Constant Mail Entry USPS-26G 

Standard Mail (A) Regular Rate Flats, Constant USPS-26H 
Mail Entry 

Standard Mail (A) Nonprofit Flats Constant Mail 
Entry 

USPS-261 

2. Schenk USPS-T-21 

Presort Composition 

Flow Chart-Advance Deposit BRM 

Flow Chart-Non-Advance Deposit BRM 

Determination of Attributable Cost of BRMS- 
Qualified BRM 

USPS-261 

USPS-27A 

USPS-27B 

USPS-27C 

Yes Michael Tidwell 
(202) 268.2998 
David Rubin 
(202) 268-2986 

Determination of Attributable Cost of Non-BRMS 
Advance Deposit BRM 

USPS-27D 

Determination of Attributable Cost of Non- 
Advance Deposit BRM 

USPS-27E 

Cost of Oversight and Maintenance of BRM 
Advilnce Denorit Arm?!n!s 

1 USPS-27F 1 1 

I I 



WI’INESS TESTIMONY 

IX”lBTK 
UI.1.. 1,” 

TITLE NUMBER WORKPAPERS ATTORNEY 

Cost of BRM Pick-up Postage Due Unit USPS-2lG 

Collection Cost for Non-Advance Deposit BRM- USPS-27H 
Carrier 

Collection Cost for Non-Advance Deposit BRM- USPS-271 
Box Section 

Mr. Crum USPS-T-28 Window Service and Platform Costs USPS-28A None Michael Tidwell 
(202) 268.2998 

Volume and Parcel Post Pieces Entered Upstream USPS-28B David Rubin 
of a BMC/ASF (202) 268.2986 

Outgoing Mail Processing Costs at Non-BMC USPS-28C 
Facilities Avoided by DBMC Parcel Post 

BMC Presort Parcel Post Cost Savings USPS-28D 

Costs Avoided by Depositing Inter-BMC Parcels USPS-28E 
at the Origin BMC with Presort to the 
Destination BMC 

Destination BMC Mail Processing Costs Avoided USPS-28F 
by Farcei Pox Deposited ar Destination SCFs or 
Delivery Units 

Avoided Mail Processing Costs of DSCF Parcel 
Post at SCFs and Deliverg Units 

USPS-28G 

j 



WITNESS 

Mr. Daniel 

TESTIMONY 

JSPS-T-29 

EXHIBITS 

TITLE 

Mail Processing Costs Avoided by Carrier 
Route Presorted Bound Printed Matter 

Revenue, Pieces, and Weight (RPW) Volume 
Summary-Government Fiscal Year 1996 

BMC Presorted Parcel Post Cost Per Piece 

Summary of Standard (A) Regular Letter Mail 
Processing 

Summary of Standard (A) Nonprofit Letter Mail 
Processing Costs 

Summary of First-Class and Standard (A) Mail 
Unit Cost Estimates 

Summary of Standard (A) Test Year Regular 
and Nonprofit ECR Mail Processing Unit Costs 
and Dropship Normalization 

Summary of Selected rarcei Post Maii 
Processing costs 

Summary of Special Standard Mail Processing 
costs 

NUMBER 

USPS-28H 

USPS-281 

USPS-281 

USPS-29A 

USPS-298 

USPS-29C 

USPS-29D 

USPS-2YE 

USPS-29F 

WORKPAPERS 

Jone 

ATTORNEY 

inthony Alvemo 
202) 268-2997 



-WITNESS 

k. O’Hara 

hr. Bernstein 

vir. Frank 

- 
E TESTIMONY 

USPS-T-30 

I USPS-T-3 I 

i 

- 

T 
I 

TITLE 

Test Year Before Rates Financial 
Summary 

Test Year After Rates Financial 
Summary 

Special Services Cost Coverages 

Proposed Increases-Mail Classes 

Proposed Increases-Special Services 

Test Year After Rates Cost Adjustments 

Test Year Atier Rates Volume 
Adjustments 

NOttt? 

..- 
First-Ciass salt Kate Proposai 

First-Class Mail Test Year Financial 
Results 

NUMBER 

USPS-30A 

USPS-30B 

USPS-3oc 

USPS-30D 

USPS-30E 

USPS-30F 

USPS-30G 

USPS-32A 

USPS-32B 

WORKPAPERI 

Yes 

NOM 

WP-I-III 

ATTORNEY 

Michael Tidwell 
[202) 268-2998 

Eric Koetting 
:202) 268-2992 
Richard Cooper 
1202) 268-2993 

Michael Tidwell 
:202) 268.2998 



- c I 

i 

-WITNESS 

vlr. Sharkey 

TESTIMONY 

JSPS-T-33 

- 
T 
+ T!TLE 

Express Mail Revenues Test Year 

Express Mail 1996 and Test Year Volumes 
by Service 

Express Mail FY 1996 Volume and 
Calculated Revenue 

Express Mail Test Year Before Rates 
Volume, Calculated Revenue and Postage 
Pounds 

Express Mail Test Year A& Rates 
Volume, Calculated Revenue and Postage 
Pounds 

Express Mail Distribution of Transportation 
Costs Test Year Before Rates 

Express Mail Postage Pounds by Service, 
Test Year Before Rates 

Express Mail Test Year Per-Piece Costs 

Express Mail Distribution of TYBR 
Purchased Transportation Costs to 
Distance-Related & None-Distance Related 
Costs Using 1996 Breakdown of Costs 

USPS-33A 

USPS-33B 

USPS-33c 

USPS-33D 

USPS-33E 

USPS-33F 

USPS-33G 

USPS-33H 

USPS-331 

WORKPAPERS ATTOIWEY 

<ichard Cooper 
202) 268-2993 



- 
E -WITNESS TESTIMONY 

T 

1 

TITLE 

Deve!opmw! nf Pickup and Delivery Fee 

Priority Mail FY 1996 Volume and 
Calculated Revenue 

J 
Priority Mail Test Year Before Rates Volume, 
Calculated Revenue and Postage Pounds 

Priority Mail Test Year After Rates Volume, 
Calculated Revenue and Postage Pounds 

Priority Mail Test Year Before Rates Non- 
Transportation Cost Development 

Priority Mail Test Year Before Rates 
Distribution of Transportation Cost to Zone 

Priority Mail Test Year Before Rates 
Development of Transportation Distribution 
keys to Zone 

Priority Mail Test Year Before Rates Distance 
.ii: NW-=is:ancc Re!czed COS!S 

Priority Mail Delivery Confirmation 
Revenue, Volume and Cost Adjustments 

Express Mail Rate Design Comparison Table 

Priority Mail Rate Design Comparison Table 

NUMBER 

USPS-33J 

USPS-33K 

USPS-33L 

USPS-33M 

USPS-33N 

USPS-330 

USPS-33P 

USPS-33Q 

USPS-33R 

USPS-33s 

USPS-33T 

---I WORKPAPERS 

l- 

1 

ATTORNEY 



EXHIBITS EXHIBITS I I 

r- 
-WITNESS 

1 

USPS-T-34 NON 
Mr. Taufioue I I 

I ! 
) USPS-T-35 NOW 

-II r(l”PPT 

I NOW I I 
\A”-, --- -_ 

1,. ll”^^,IPr I USPS-T-36 

-WITNESS 

Mr. Taufique 

h.41. Kaneer 

or. Moeller 

Ms. Mayes 

Mr. Adra 

Ms. Needham 

Mr. Plunken 

TEST!MO?!Y 

USPS-T-34 

USPS-T-35 

USPS-T-36 

USPS-T-37 

USPS-T-38 

USPS-T-39 

USPS-T-40 

NON 

NOW 

NOW 

NOW 

Library Rate 

NO!E 

NOW 

TITLE 
NUMBER WORKPAPERS ATTORNEY 

WP-RRA-N David Rubin 

WP-WC A - J (202) 26X-2986 

\KP-A-O Anthony Alvemo 
(202) 268.2997 

wp-1-3 Anthony Alvemo 
(202) 268-2997 

WP-I-II Scott Reiter 
(202) 268-2999 

USPS-38A Yes Scott Reiter 
(202) 268-2999 

wp-I-17 David Rubin 
(202) 268-2986 

wp-l-13 David Rubin 
(202) 268-2986 



-WITNESS TESTIMONY TITLE NUMBER WORKPAPERS ATTORNEY 

Mr. Takis USPS-T-41 Overview of Incremental Cost Development USPS-41A WF-1 Richard Cooper 
(202) 268-2993 

Results of Incremental Cost Analysis (Subclasses) USPS-418 Eric Koetting 
(202)268-2990 

Results of Incremental Cost Analysis (Groups) USPS-4IC 

Mr. Culrie USPS-T-42 NOIE NOlIe Kenneth Hollies 
(202) 268-3083 



ATTACHMENT G 

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT 

As with prior rate filings, the Postal Service is submitting a detailed guide to the 

manner in which it has complied with the basic standards set out in the Commission’s 

rules of practice and procedure. The statement is contained in this attachment, which is 

organized by each pertinent provision of Rules 54 and 64. Where information required is 

not included in direct testimony or exhibits of the Postal Service witnesses, it is contained 

in this or other attachments of the Request, or has been incorporated by reference in the 

testimony, exhibits, Request, or attachments, and made available to the Commission. 



RULE: 54(a)(l) 

REQUIREMENT: This rule requires a description of any changes proposed by the 
Postal Service in the attribution procedures applied by the 
Commission in the most recent general rate proceeding in which its 
recommended rates or fees were adopted. If a request proposes to 
change the cost attribution principles applied by the Commission 
in the most recent general rate proceeding in which its 
recommended rates were adopted, the Postal Service’s request shall 
include an alternate cost presentation satisfying Rule 54(h) that 
shows what the effect on the Postal Service’s request would be if it 
did not propose changes in attribution principles. If the required 
information is set forth in the Postal Service’s prepared direct 
evidence, it shall be deemed to be part of the formal request 
without statement. 

The testimony and workpapers of Mr. Alexandrovich reflect the costing principles 

applied by the Postal Service to the base year in this case. Estimates for the Test Year 

applying these costs are described in the testimony and workpapers of Mr. Patelunas. 

Alternate cost presentations are found in Library Reference H-196, which constitutes the 

Postal Service’s fust attempt to comply with this new requirement. For further ,.l 

information, please see Notice of United States Postal Service Concerning, Provision of 

Information Pursuant to Rule 54(a)(l). Other information pertaining to the Postal 

Service’s distributions of costs can be found in the testimonies and workp:apers of Dr, 

Bradley, Mr. Degen, Mr. Hatfield, Mr. Baron, Mr. Hume, Mr. Nelson, Dr. Wade, Mr. 

Brehm, and Dr. O’Hara. 



RULE: 54(b) (11, (2)s (4) 

REQUIRBMENTS: These Rules require the submission of the schedule of the 
existing effective rates of postage and fees for all postal service 
and those rates and fees as proposed to be changed or adjusted. 
The schedule must 

-_ specify the full rates and, where applicable, the phased rates 
under section 3626 of title 39 U.S.C., and any proposed 
adjustment to such phased rates under sec,tion 3627 (of title 
39 U.S.C., indicated by the circumstances: known at the 
time of the filing; 

_- be presented in summary fashion and tariff-like foml 
(“E.g., there shall be a specification of those rules, 
regulations and practices which established conditions of 
mailability and standards of service.“); 

__ address such functions as mail pickup and delivery, 
process, and “other similar functions;” 

__ be accompanied by identification of all noon postal services 

Attachment A to this Request specifies the present and proposed full rates of postage 

and fees for postal services, and the fees for special services 

Attachment B presents proposed phasing schedules 

Attachment C incorporates by references the rules, regulations, and practices that 

establish conditions of mailability and standards of service. As noted, the Postal 

Service’s response to Rule 54 (b) (2) should not be construed to admit that the 

Commissio,n’s jurisdication extends to any of the specified rules, regulations, or practices. 

Nonpostal services are discussed later in this statement. 



RULE: 54(b)(3) 

REQUIREMENT: This Rule requires that the rate and fee schedules required by Rule 
54@)(l) “contain a statement identifying the #degree of economic 
substitutability between the various classes and subclasses, e.g., a 
description of cross-elasticity of demand as between various classes 
of mail.” 

This requirement is satisfied basically by the testimonies of Dr. Tolley, Dr. 

Musgrave and Mr. Thress. The nature of substitutability is also discussed in the restimony 

of Dr. O’Hara and in the rate design testimonies of Mr. Fro&, Mr. Sharkey, Mr. Taufique;, 

Mr Moeller, Mr. Mayes, Mr. Adra, Ms. Needham, and Mr. Plunkett 



RULE: 54(c) 

REQUIREMENT: This rule requires “an identification of the characteristics of the 
mailer and recipient, and a description of the contents of items 
mailed within the various classes and subclasses of mail and 
service.” 

The subject matter of this requirement is addressed in the testimonies of Dr. Tolley, 

Dir. Musgave, Dr. O’Hara’, Mr. Fronk, Mr Sharkey, Mr. Taufique, MI. Kaneer, Mr. 

Moeller, Ms. Mayes, Mr. Adra, Ms. Needham, Mr. Plunkett, and Mr. Cwrie. 



RULE: 54(d) 

REQUIREMENT: This Rule requires “an identification of the physical attributes of the 
items mailed by class and subclass, including shape, weight, and 
distance.” 

The two attached tables from the Origin-Destination Information System for FY 

1996 present originating and destinating average daily volumes (pieces) by class and trpe of 

mail. Data pertaining to weight and distance are summarized in the testimonies, exhibits 

and workpapers of Mr. Alexandrovich and Mr. Patehmas. Further information describing 

the various classes and subclasses of mail and special services is contained in the rate and 

fee design testimonies of Mr. Fronk, Mr. Sharkey, Mr. Taufique, Mr. Kaneer, Mr. Moeller, 

Ms. Mayes, Mr. ,4dra, Ms. Needham, Mr. Phmkett, and Mr. Currie, 



i 

,\ 
J 

tIePORT HSA380PI 
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RULE: 54(e) 

REQUIREMENT: To the extent such information is not included within material 
supplied under Rule 54(b)(2), this Rule requires “a summary 
statement describing special service arrangements provided to, or 
requested or required of, mailers by the Postal Service which bear 
upon the cost of service or the value of the mail service to both the 
sender and the recipient, s, services relating to mailer preparations 
in excess of requirements specified by the [Dornestic&Qnp&l], 
pick-up and delivery, expedited or deferred processing, and other 
similar activities performed.” 

Domestic Mail Manual provisions are incorporated by reference in Ah:achment CL To the 

extent they might exist, other arrangements and circumstances having a bearing on the cost 

and value of mail service would be reflected in the testimony and workpapers of Mr. 

Alexandrovich,, Mr Patelunas, and Dr. O’Hara and may be mentioned in the testimonies 

and workpapers of witnesses listed in Attachment F for pertinent mail categories 



RULE: 54(f)(l) 

REQUIREMENT: This rule requires the Request to present “the total actclal accrued 
costs during the most recent fiscal year for which they are reasonably 
available.” 

Mr. Tayman’s testimony and exhibits present total actual accrued co:;ts for FY 

1996, 

_- 

- 



RULE: 54(f)(2) (Basic Submissions) 

REQUIREMENT: This rule requires: 

__ for the year in which the filing is made (FY 1997), estimates 
of the total actual accrued costs of the Postal Service, 
assuming the prefiling (existing) rates and fees; 

-- for the year in which the filing is made (FY 1997), estimates 
of the total actual accrued costs of the Postal Service, 
assuming the proposed rates and fees; 

_- for a year which forms the basis for the proposed rates and 
fees, beginning not more than 24 months after the filing date 
of the Request (FY 1998), estimates of the total actual 
accrued costs of the Postal Service, assuming the prefiling 
(existing) rates and fees; 

-- for a year which forms the basis for the proposed rates and 
fees (FY 1998), estimates of the total actual accrued costs of 
the Postal Service, assuming the proposed rates and fees. 

Mr. Pai:elunas’s testimony presents FY 1997 estimated total actual accrued costs 

assuming prefiling rates and fees (“Before-Rates”). Mr. Patelunas’s testimony also presents 

estimated total actual accrued costs for FY 1998, the year which folms the basis for the 

Postal Service’s proposals, assuming prefiling (“Test Year Before R.ates”) and proposed 

(“Test Year AAer Rates”) rates and fees. 



RULE: 54(f)(2) (Methods and Procedures) 

REQUIREMENT: For the estimated total accrued costs specified in this provrsion, the 
rule requires an explanation of the methods and procedures used for 
the cost projections, including 

__ an explanation of the projection of total volumes; 

._ an explanation of the effect of the projected volume llevels on 
estimated total costs; 

-- specification of the cost savkgs which will be realized Corn 
gains and improvements in total productivity, indicating such 
factors as operational and technological advances and 
innovations: 

__ identification of abnormal costs which are expected to be 
incurred in the test year. 

The testimonies of Dr. Tolley and Dr. Musgrave explain the methods and 

procedures by which volumes were estimated. Mr. Patelunas’s testimony addresses the 

effect of projected volume levels on estimated costs. Mr. Tayman’s testimony specifies the 

cost savings resulting horn cost reduction programs, which are korporated in Mr. 

Patelunas’s roll-forward projections. The presence or absence of .abnormal costs is 

addressed in Mr. Tayman’s testimony, 



RULE: 54(f)(3)(i) and (ii) (Operating Costs) 

REQUIREMENT: For the basic cost submissions required in Rule 54(f)(l) and (2), this 
rule requires a statement and explanation of 

__ operating costs in detail as to their accounting and functional 
classifications; 

__ the cost amounts for depreciation on capital facilities and 
equipment, debt service, contingencies, and extraordinary or 
nonrecurring expenses. 

These financial data are presented in the testimony and workpapers of Mr. Tayman. 

- -- 



RULE: 54(f)(3)(m) (Cost Assignment and Distribution) 

REQUIREMENT: For the basic cost submissions required in Rule 54(f)(l) and (2), this 
rule requires, assignment and distribution of costs to each of the 
functions comprising “the mail process.” This presentati’on shah 
include 

__ an itemization of costs by the major accounts as refLected by 
the Service’s books of accounts for all cost segments; 

-- an itemization of costs by functions such as collection, 
acceptance, general overheads, etc.; 

__ an assignment and distribution of the costs by :account, 
together with related mail volumes, for each function:, 

__ an assignment and distribution of the costs by :account, 
together with related mail volumes, to “such subtimctions 
within each category for which informatjon is available or 
can be developed, 

-_ an explanation of the method by which the: costs by accounts 
are assigned and distributed to functions. 

For t,he development of base year cost estimates, Mr. Alexandrovich’s testimony 

and exhibits provide the itemization, allocation, and distribution of costs for all cost 

segments, and by function. The costs of particular cost segments are also addressed in the 

testimonies of MI. Degen, Dr. Bradley, Mr. Hatfield, Mr. Nelson, Mr. Elrehm, Mr. Hume, 

Dr. Wade, and Mr. Baron. Data pertaining to “related mail volumes” associated with 

subfunctions are not produced by Postal Service data systems 



,,I-- 
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RULE: 54(g) 

REQUIREMENT: This rule requires historical costs for “each fiscal year since the last 
filing pursuant to this section” to be submitted “ti a form as nearly 
consistent as possible with the filing under [Rul’e 54(f)], together 
with explanations of any departures Tom such form and the effect of 
such departures.” 

Actual accrued costs for FY 1994, FY 1995 and FY 1996 are presented in the Cost 

and Revenue Analysis (CRA) Reports on file with the Commission. FY 1996 costs are also 

presented in Library References H-2 and H-3. Actual accrued costs for FY 1996 are 

presented in the testimonies and exhibits of Mr. Tayman and Mr. Alexandrovich. 

--. 



RULE: 54(h)(l) 

REQUIREMENT This rule requires the separation of actual and estimated total costs, 
for the fiscal years specified in Rule 54(f), as between postal iservices 
(including international mail) and nonpostal services. “The 
presentation shall show the methodology for separating posl.al costs 
as between postal services and nonpostal services, and shall be in 
sufficient detail to allow a determination that no nonpostal costs 
have been assigned or allocated to postal services.” 

International mail costs are separated in Mr. Alexandrovich’s and Mr. Patehmas 

exhibits. 

Costs and revenues for several services which could be considered nonpostal’ -- 

such as insurance, C.O.D., and money orders -- are contained in Mr. Alexandrovich’s and 

Mr. Patelunas’ exhibits. Identifiable costs reported for some nonpostal s,ervices were $16.9 

million in FY 1996. Reimbursements associated with provision c#f these and other 

nonpostal services totaled $24.1 million in FY 1996. The differenc’e of $7.2 million 

reduced the institutional costs borne by other postal services by that amount in FY 1996, 

The S 16.9 million of costs includes labor costs for handling; food stamps and 

passport applications, and selling migratory bird stamps. It also includes $95 thousand for 

paper stock for migratory bird stamps. Costs of providing the remaining nonpostal services 

are not available. Experience with measurement of expenses for nonpostal services 

currently identified in cost sampling suggests that, for most other nonpostal services, costs 

may be so low as to be insignificant. 

‘The word “nonpostal” is used here in a generic rather than jurisdictional sense. Some 
special services (such as money orders) have nonpostal aspects. 

.---~ .- 
-- 



RULE: 54(h)(Z) and (3) (Separation of costs by functions) ,,.-.. 

REQTJIREMENT: For the actual and estimated total costs presented for the years 
specified in Rule 54(f), these rules require the costs to be separated 
as follows: 

__ those direct costs which can be attributed to each class of 
mail or type ofmail service; 

__ those indirect costs which can be attributed to each class of 
mail or type of mail service; 

_. any other costs of the Service which csn be reasonably 
assigned to each class of mail or type of mail service; 

__ any other costs of the Postal Service which cannot be 
attributed or reasonably assigned. 

The methodology used to derive these costs is acquired to be set 
forth in detail. 

Mr. Alexandrovich’s testimony, exhibits, and workpapers provide the 

information required by this rule for FY 1996: See also the testimonies of Dr. O”hara, Dr. 

Panzar, and Mr. Takis. Mr. Pateulnas’s testimony, exhibits, and workpapers provide 

information for FY 1997 and the test year. 

- ‘The Postal Service interprets this rule in accordance with -al Association of 
Greeting Card Publishers v. United States Postal Service, 462 U.S. 810 (1982). 



Costs for the nonpostal services for which reported costs are not currently available -. 

are believed to be small -- well within the $7.2 million by which the Postal Service has 

reduced institutional costs from reimbursements for such services. 

The following table identifies services which could be termed nonpostal and their 

cost elements: 



SERVICE 

Insurance 

COD 

Money Orders 

Sale of Philatelic Products 

IDENTIFICATION OF NONPOSTAL SERVICES 
AND THEIR COST ELEMENTS: 

Sale of Food Stamps 

Sale of Passports 

Sale of Migratory Bird, 
Hunting and Conservation 
stamps 

Sale of Miscellaneous Products 
(e.g., jiffy bags) 

Photo Copy Service 

Vending Stands and Vending Machines 

Post Office Assistance to Civil 
Service Commission 

Draft Registration 

COST ELEMENTS 

See Mr. Alexandrovich’s and 
MrPatebmass’ Exhibits. 

See Mr. Alexandrovich’s and 
Mr. Patelunass’ Etilibits 

See Mr. Alexandroxich’s and 
Mr. Patelunass’ Exhibits 

Window service clerk costs; 
possibly postal service penalty 
mail Cost:3 and certam supply 
costs. 

Window :service clerk costs 

Window :service clerk and city 
carrier costs; possibly some 
postal service penalty mail 
costs. 

Window service clerk costs; 
costs of printing stamps. 

Window service clerk costs; 
possibly some postall service 
penalty mail costs. 

None 

Window s:ervice clerk costs 

Window s:ervice clerk costs 



RULE: 54(h)(4), (12) 

REQUIREMENT: This rule applies to the costs identified in Rule 54(h)(2). It requires 
that these costs be separately attributed to mail classes, subclasses, 
and special services. It also requires identification of the 
methodology used in attribution and an analysis of the effect of costs 
on the following: 

__ volume; 

._ peaking patterns; 

__ 

_. 

_- 

__ 

__ 

priority of handling; 

mailer preparations; 

quality of service; 

the physical nature of the item mailed; 

expected gains in total productivity, indicating suc:h factors 
as operational and technological advances and innov.ations; 

__ any other factor affecting costs 

The data relevant to the analyses of the effect on costs of these 
factors must also be provided. 

The methodologies employed by the Postal Service to develop direct and indirect 

costs are addressed in the testimonies and exhibits of Mr. Alexandrotiich, Mr. Patelunas, 

Mr. Degen, Dr. Bradley, Mr. Hatfield, Mr. Baron, Mr. Hume, Mr. Nelson, Dr. Wade, Mr. 

Brehm, Mr. Treworgy; Dr. Lion, Dr. Schenk, and Mr. Miller. See also Ihe tetimony of Dr. 

O’Hara. The effect of volume on costs is also indicated by these testimonies. 

Factors identified in this rule in addition to volume which influence cost incurrence 

and which are recognized in the methods of cost analysis employed by the Postal Service 

include the following: 



__ peaking patterns; 

__ priority of handling; 

__ mailer preparations; 

__ quality of service; 

_. the physical nature of the item mailed; 

__ cost reduction programs. 

These factors are associated with Postal Service cost attributions in the following 

ways: 

:L The cost consequences of peaking patterns in mail processing and 

other relevant cost segments are reflected in the testimonies of Mr 

Alexandrovich, Mr. Patehmas, Mr. Degen, and Dr. Bradley. 

2. Mail entitled to priority handling often requires manual culling or 

other selection methods to separate it from the general mailstream. 

Such selection methods consume time, and the associated labor costs 

are charged to the affected categories. Also, to the extent priority 

handling involves a commitment to supply premium cost 

transportation, such costs are attributed to the mail so transported. 

3. Mailer preparation enables the Postal Service to ;avoid the incurrence 

of certain costs in the mail processing and kamportation functions. 

The results obtained by the In-Office Cost System (IOCS) and the 

Transportation Cost System (TRACS), by sampling the types of 

--- ~-- -----~~ T--- 



mail handled at various stages in these functions, reflect differences 

in costs resulting !?om mailer preparation. Other estimates of cost 

differences resulting from mailer preparation are provided in the 

testimonies of Mr. Hatfiled, Mr. Seckar, Mr. Chum, Mr. Miller and, 

Ms. Daniel. 

4. The cost consequences of quality of service are not isolated and 

quantified separately. They are, nevertheless, included to some 

extent in the level of costs. For example, the higher costs of air 

transportation are allocated to the classes and subclasses that benefit 

Tom that mode of transportation. Certain other featmes associated 

with quality of service, such as freedom from inspection, have no 

effect on the allocation of costs. 

5. The physical nature of the item mailed affects the time consumed in 

processing mail, the space occupied in transportation, and the facility 

with which carriers can sort and deliver pieces of mail. The cost 

consequences of physical characteristics are not isolated :md 

quantified separately in the allocation process, except insofar as 

particular charactenshcs are largely associated with particular 

categories of mail, e.g., cards. These cost consequences :are, 

however, reflected in cost distributions. For instance, incidence: of 

-- - 



time is affected by weight-density factors, and tratxportation costs 

are tiuenced by weight and cube. 

6. The testimony of Mr. Tayman indicates the role of cost reduction 

programs, including programs designed to improve productive 

relationships, in development of the Postal Service’:: overall revenue 

requirement. The results of these programs are carried forward in 

estimates of costs for the test year and attributed to the classes and 

subclasses of mail in a manner indicated in Mr. Pateh~mas’s 

testimony. 



RULE: 54(h)(5) - (h)(lO) (“Roll-Forward” model) 

REQUIREMENT: These provisions generally specify particular items which must be 
included in the presentation of the process by which base year costs 
are rolled-forward to test-year costs, such as listings of the 
forecasting factors, piggyback factors, interim period workpapers, 
and an overall summary cost table. Rules 54(h)(6) and (7) require an 
explanation of the atibutable cost final adjustments and the “other 
services” adjustments. 

The items required by this rule are found in the testimony, exhibits, and workpapers 

of witness Patelunas. 



,- 
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RULE: 54(h)(ll) (Nonattributed costs) 

REQUIREME‘NT: This rule applies to costs that are identified as “nonamibuted or 
unassigned” pursuant to Rule 54(h)(2). It requires an explanation as 
to why such costs cannot be attributed or :assigned. It further 
requires the identification, to the extent possible, of all such costs 
which benefit more than one class of mail or type of service (but not 
all classes or types), together with the mail classes or types of 
services so benefitted. 

Ultimately, all postal costs are either attributed or assigned. The following table 

however, identifies institutional costs which benefit more than one, but not all, classes or 

types of service, in accordance with the following standard: given the permissible shape, 

weight, method of postage payment, and other characteristics of a ‘type of m;s.il, would 

pieces of that type of mail likely appear in the operations encompassed by the cost element? 

If yes, the mail is “benefitted.” 

As a practical matter, nearly all classes and services benefit to some degree from the 

various institutional costs. In the strict sense, therefore, there are few truly restricted 

institutional costs in the postal system.. For example, Periodicals and Standard Mail (A) 

Regular mail are not listed as benefitting from clerk window service activities. Yet these 

classes are handled by window service clerks at smaller offices. At larger offices;, window 

service clerks may be responsible for accepting fees and bust fund payments relating to 

Periodicals and Standard (A) Regular mail. Window service activities also inc1ud.e the sale 

of precanceled stamps, setting of postage meters for use on Standard (A) Regular mail, and 

general delivery service for all types of mail. Consequently, the fact that a class is not listed 

as benefitting from a particular cost does not mean that the class is not handled at all in 

activities for which the patticular cost is incurred 

--.. 



Conversely, the fact that a class is listed as benefitting from a particular cost activity 

does not mean that a substantial portion of the class benefits, but only that given the 

characteristics of that class, some pieces of that class will of necessity require handrings 

contained within that cost component. 



INSTITUTIONAL COSTS THAT BENEFIT MORE THAN 
ONE TYPE OF MAIL BUT NOT ALL TYPES 

TFe of Cost Tpes Piirnarilv Benefitted 

Segments 2 and 3: 
Clerks-Window Service 
plus related supervision, 
primarily the institutional 
portion of stamps, 
cards and meters 

First-Class Mail, Priority 
mail, Standard (A) 
single piece, zone-rated 
parcels, non-presorted 
Standard (B) Special 
rate, library rate, and Express Mail. 

Segments 6 and ‘7: 
City carriers-institutional 
portion of collection 
plus related supervision 

First-Class Mail, 
Priority mail, Standard (A) 
single piece, Standard (B) 
zone-rated parcels, non-presorted 
Standard (B) special, libray rate, and 
Express Mail. 

City carriers-institutional 
portion of parcel delivery 
plus related supervision 

Standard (B) Mail, free mail 
for the blind and handicapped 
Priority and Express Mail. 



RULE: 54(i) 

REQUIREMENT: This rule requires a statement of the criteria employed by the Postal 
Service in construction of the proposed rate schedule. The statement 
must include: 

._ the identification of the relationship between the revenues 
derived from the rates and fees for a particular class and 
subclass of mail or service and the costs attributed and 
assigned to that class or subclass of service; 

__ the identification of the procedures and methods used to 
apportion (to postal services) that part of the total revenue 
requirement, which is in excess of costs attributed; 

-- such other studies, information and (data relevant to the 
criteria established by section 3622 of I:itle 39, U.S.C., with 
appropriate explanations as will assist the Commission in 
determining whether or not the proposed rates or fees are in 
accordance with such criteria. 

The testimonies and workpapers of Dr. O’Hara, Mr. Fronk, Mr. Sharkey, Mr. 

Taufique: Mr. Kaneer, Mr. Moeller, Ms. Mayes, Mr. Adra, Ms. Needham, Dr. P:mzar, Mr. 

Berstein, Mr. Currie and Mr. Plunket respond to this rule, 



RULE: 54(i)(l), (2), (3) ad (4) 

REQULRJZMENT: These rules require specification of revenues for certain fiscal years 
including the test year. Revenues must be submitted for 

-- FY 1996, assuming prefiling (existing) rates and fees; 

__ FY 1997, assuming prefilmg (existing) rates and fees; 

__ FY 1997, assuming proposed rates and fee:s; 

__ test year, assuming prefiling (existing) rates and fees; 

__ test year, assuming proposed rates and fees 

The actual and estimated revenues for these years, must be shown in 
total and separately for each class and subclass of mail and postal 
service and for all other sources from which ihe Postal Service 
collects revenues. 

Each revenue presentation must be supported by i~dentification of the 
methods and procedures employed. 

Revenues for FY 1996 are provided by Mr. Alexandrovich. Revenues for FY 1997 

and the test year are provided by Mr. Patelunss and can be found in Dr. O’Hara’s 

workpapers. These revenue estimates relate to volume and revenues per piece which are 

presented in the testimonies of Mr. Fro& Mr Sharkey, Mr. Taufique, Mr. Kaneer, Mr. 

Moeller, Ms. Mayes, Mr. Adra, Ms. Needham, and Mr. Plunkett 

FY 1997 revenues at suggested rates and fees are not provided. 

.-- --- 



RULE: 54(j)(5) (volume estimates) 

REQUIREMENT: This rule requires that the Postal Service present for each class and 
subclass of mail and special service 

__ for each postal quarter beginning with the Crst quarter of the 
most recent complete fiscal year and ending one year beyond 
the last quarter of the test year, actual or estimated mail 
volumes at the prefiled (existing) rates and fees; 

__ for each postal quarter beginning with the quarter in which 
the rates are assumed to become effective and ending one 
year beyond the last quarter of the test year, the estimated 
volume of mail assuming the effectiveness of the proposed 
rates. 

Volumes for FY 1996 are presented in Mr. Alexandrovich’s exhibils. Other 

requested volumes are presented in Dr. Tolley’s and Dr. Musgrave’s testimonies. 



RULE: 54(j)(5), (6), (7) (Demand study -- methodology and documentation) 

REQUIREME~: These rules require that the volume estimates provided pursuant to 
Rule 54(j)(5) must be derived from an econometric demand study 
relating postal volumes to their economic and noneconomic 
determinants, including postal rates, discounts and fees, personal 
income, business conditions, competitive and complementary postal 
services, competitive and complementary nonpostal activities, 
population, trend, seasonal patterns and other factors. The study 
must be furnished with the request, and any departure Tom the 
assumptions and specifications in the demand study made in 
estimating volumes of any class or subclass of mail must be 
explained. 

For volume and revenue estimates, and subject tla Rule 54(,a)(2), the 
Postal Service must provide: 

__ a detailed explanation of the methodology emplloyed to 
forecast volumes for each class and subclass of mail and 
postal service. Representative derivations of these forecasts 
horn the economemc demand study must be presented in 
detail for two major mail classes, showing each intermediate 
value or factor employed. For remaining classes and 
subclasses of mail, such derivations may be summarized, 
except where their derivations depart from the representative 
methods presented; 

__ a detailed explanation of the method.ology employed to 
forecast changes in revenues for each class and subclass of 
mail and postal service resulting from changes in rates and 
fees: 

_- a computer implementation of the methodology employed to 
forecast volumes and revenues for each class and :subclass of 
mail and postal service. The computer implement.ation must 
comply with Rule 31(k)(3), and must be able to compute 
forecasts of volumes and revenues compatible with those 
specified in Rules 54(j)(2), (3), and (5) for 

0 any set of rates and fees within a reasonable range of 
the prefiled (existing) and the proposed rates, 

0 any date of implementation within the range spanned 
by the assumed date of implementation and the start 
of the test year, 



0 alternative forecasts of the economic determinants of 
postal volumes, other than postal rates and fees, and 

0 alternative values of any parameters with assigned 
values that are based upon unverifiable judgments. 

Subject to Rule 54(a)(2), the Postal Service must make available at 
the offices of the Commission, in a form that can be read directly by 
a standard digital computer, the following: 

__ all of the input files and programs needed to replicate the 
required econometric demand study; 

-- any input files and programs employed to derive ;I price 
index for any class or subclass of mail or postal service from 
postal rates, discounts, and fees; 

-- any input files and programs used to prepare data for use in 
the required econometric demand study. 

The material required by this rule is provided in the testimonies and workpapers of 

Dr. Tolley, Dr. Musgrave, and Mr. Thress, and related library references. 



RULE: 54(k) 

REQUIREMENT: This rule covers basic financial statement information. It requires 
the submission, for FY 1995 and FY 1996 (the two fiscal years 
immediately preceding the year in which the request is :filed), the 
Balance Sheet, the Statement of Income and Expense, basic 
statistical information, and the Statement of Income and Expense by 
budget category. The request must include data with respect to the 
following: 

-- Balance Sheet and a supporting schedule for each item 
appearing thereon; 

-- Statement of Income and Expense and a supporting schedule 
for each item appearing thereon; 

__ as appropriate, statistical data with respect to revenue, pieces 
(by physical attributes, showing separately amounts of mail 
identified as stamped, metered, and imprinted, or other), 
weight, distance, postal employees (number, total payroll, 
productivity, etc.), postal space, post offices (numbers, 
classes, etc.), and any other pertinent factors which have 
been utilized m the development of the proposed rate 
schedule; 

__ Statement of Income and Expense by cost segment. 

A reconciliation of the budgetary information with actual accrued 
costs must be provided for the most recent fiscal Iyear. 

If the fiscal information for FY 1996 (the immediately preceding 
fiscal year) is not fully available, a preliminary or pro forma 
submittal must be made, and upon final completion an updated 
report must be filed. 

The data called for by this rule are presented primarily in Mr. Tayman’s exhibits, 

which include a Balance Sheet and related schedule. 

Other data for revenue, pieces, weight, and distance are shown in exhibits to Mr. 

Alexandrovich’s testimony. Information concerning postal employees (number, total 

payroll, productivity) is included in Mr. Tayman’s and Mr. MacDonald’s workpapers. 



Dr. O’Hara’s testimony and workpapers furnish other “statistical d:xta” referred to by 

this rule. 

-, 

--.. 



RULE: 54(1)(l) 

REQUIREMENT: This rule requires a statement (which can be in workpaper form) 
indicating for each class and subclass of mail and postal service the 
relevant billing determinants (e.g., the volume ofmail related to each 
rate element in determining revenues) separately for the current rates 
and the proposed rates. Proposed changes in rate design and the 
related adjustments should be explained in detail, 

The information required by this rule is found generally in Dr. O’Hara’s 

workpapers. In some instances, the testimonies and workpapers of other witnesses provide 

support for the billing determinants used by Dr. O’Hara. 

.-- --r- 



RULE: 54(l)(2) 

REQUIREMENT: This rule requires, subject to subsection (a)(2), the base year volume 
of third-class bulk mail by ounce increment for each shape (letter- 
size, flat, irregular parcels, and parcels), submitted separately for 
regular and prefemed, by presort level. 

See Library Reference H-186. 

.-~- 
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RULE: 54(m) 

REQUIREMENT: This rule requires a statement, which can be in workpaper form, 
presenting detailed calculations of continuing appropriations 
according to 39 U.S.C. 5 2401(c) and phasing appropriations under 
39 U.S.C. 5 3626 and any proposed adjustment .to such phased rates 
under 39 USC. 5 3627 indicated by circumst:mces known at the 
time of the filing. Calculation of all the phased rates for the entire 
applicable phasing period should be explained in detail. 

The workpapers of MI. Moeller, Mr. Adra, Mr. Taufique, and Mr. Kaneer reflect 

preferTed rate calculations, and incorporate issues related to phasing of rates. See also 

Attachment B. 



RULE: 54(n) 

REQUREMElW This rule requires identification of any performance goals which 
have been established for the classes and subclasses of mail. The 
Request must identify the achieved levels of service for tho:se classes 
and subclasses of mail and mail services for which performance 
goals have been set. 

The currently effective service standards for mail are shown belo’w. 

. . : UNlTED.STATES- POSTAL SERylCE 

: Seivice Commitments 
.(ZIP Coded mall pnly) : ‘, : 

., 

Fourth 
Ck.S 

. 
Primarily a 
two-day 
product. .~ 

Surface 
preferential 

See lx+ BMC 
Manager for 
Parcel Post 
Commitments. 
- 
Mail entered at ., 
the Destination : 
P&DChasaZ&: 
day conimitmer& 
- 

Achieved levels of performance are shown in the Origin-Destination Information System 

(ODIS) -- Quarterly Statistics Report, prepared by the Postal Service. 

-. 



RULE: 54(o) 

REQUIREMENT: This rule requires seven sets of workpapers to be filed with the 
Request. 

The required workpapers are supplied with the testimonies of the Postal Service’s 

witnesses. 



RULE: 54@) 

REQLJREMENT: This rule requires one or more certifications stating that the cost 
statements and supporting data submitted as part of the formal 
request, as well as the accompanying workpapers, which purport to 
reflect the books of the Postal Service, accurately set forth the results 
shown by such books. The required certification must be signed by 
one or more representatives of the Postal Service .authorized to make 
such certification. 

The required certification is submitted as Attachment D to this Re:quest. 
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RULE: 54(q) 

REQLJIFcmE~r: This rule requires an opinion fkom an independen!t public accountant 
to the extent and as required by 39 U.S.C. 5 2008(e). 

An opinion by the independent accounting tirm of Ernst & Young covering Fiscal 

Years 1995 and 1996 is submitted as Attachment E. 



Rule: 64(b) 

REQUIREMNT: This rule requires for every classification change proposed 

__ a statement of the present and proposed classification 
schedule provisions; 

__ a specification of the rules, regulations, and practices which 
establish the conditions of mailability and the standards of 
service; 

__ a statement identifying the degree of economic 
substitutability between the various classes and subclasses; 

-- an identification of nonpostal services. 

1. Present and Proaosed Classification Schedule Provisions 

The affected present and proposed provisions of the DMCS, in context, with new 

provisions underlined and old provisions bracketed, are contained in Attachment A. 



2. Rules. Reeulations and Practices 

The pracztices of the Postal Service regarding those classes and subclasses of mail, 

and special service, for which classification schedule changes are proposed, are addressed 

in the testimonies of Mr. Frank, Mr. Taufique, Mr. Kaneer, Mr. Moeller, Mr. Sharkey, 

Ms. Needham, MS Mayes, Mr. Adra, Mr. Currie, and Mr. Phmkett. A specification of the 

rules, regulations, and practices which establish conditions of mailability and the 

standards of service is found in Attachment C. The Postal Service will promulgate rules 

and regulations consistent with the proposed classification schedule changes pursuant to 

its statutory authority. See 39 U.S.C. 5 402(2). 
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3. Deeree of Economic Substitutabilitv and Identification of Nonuostal Services 

The degree of substitutability is addressed and discussed in the testimonies of Dr. 

O’Hara, Mr. Adra, Ms. Mayes, Ms. Needham, Mr. Sharkey, Mr. Moeller, Mr. Plunkett, 

Dr. Tolley, Mr. Bernstein, Mr. Thress, and Dr. Musgrave. 

Nonpostal services are identified in the discussion of Rule 54, which is 

incorporated here by reference. 
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Rule: 64(c) 

REQUIREMN’: This rule requires information on mail characteristics 
concerning the nature of the items and the methods of mailing, 
characteristics of the mailer, recipient, and contents of items 
mailed, physical attributes of the mail, and applicable special 
service arrangements. 

A discussion of the mailers and recipients of mail, the contents: of mail, and 

methods of mailing is contained in the testimonies of Dr. O’Hara, Mr. Frank, Mr. 

Taufique, Mr. Kmeer, Mr. Moeller, Ms. Mayes, Mr. Adra, Mr. Sharkey, Ms. Needham, 

Mr. Plunkett, and Mr. Currie. Physical attributes of mail are addressed in the response to 

Rule 54(l), incorporated here by reference. Special service arrangements are addressed in 

sections of this statement responding to Rule 54(b)(2) and Rule 54(e), incorporated here 

by reference 



Rule: 64(d), (e) 

REQUIREMNT: This rule requires that effects of the changes on cosit assigmnents, 
total cost assignments, total costs and total revenues be provicled, 
on a before and after rates basis. 

,- 

The testimonies of Dr. O’Hara, Mr. Frank, Mr. Taufique, Mr. Kaneer, Mr. 

Moeller, Ms. Mayes, Mr. Adra, Mr. Sharkey, Ms. Needham, and Mr. Phmkett, and Mr. 

Patelunes address the costs and revenues of the Postal Service on before and after change 

bases. 
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P Rule: 64(f) 

REQUIREMNT: This rule requires a complete statement of the reasons and bases 
for the proposed changes. 

The testimonies of Dr. O’Hara, Mr. Fronk, Mr. Tautique, Mr. Kaneer, Mr 

Moeller, Ms. Mayes, Mr. Adra, Ms. Needham, Mr. Currie, and Mr. Plunkett provide 

reasons for the proposed changes. 



Rule: 64(h) 

REQUIREMNT: This rule provides that the requirements of Rule 54 apply in certain 
cases involving classification changes having rates, fee, or total 
cost change implications. 

The Rule 54 compliance statements, which include the response to this 

requirement, are incorporated here by reference. 
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